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Fiberweb is implementing plans efficiently to adapt the changing conditions
and pursuing significant growth by turning problems into opportunities. As the
complexity of COVID-19 spreads, we will use our collective strength to confront this
unprecedented situation and develop defensive and offensive tactics with the goal
of being able to adapt to and surpass any situation. We are devoted to achieving
corporate success and addressing social concerns by efficiently reacting to emerging
societal needs.

Safeguarding
lives and
livelihoods

We stand behind the power of
technical textile products and
its ability to not only meet but
exceed sustainability goals for
our customers and society

Disclaimer

This Annual Report can be
downloaded from our website at

https://fiberwebindia.com/wp-content/
uploads/2021/08/Fibeweb_Annual_Report_2021-1.
pdf
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In this annual report, we have disclosed certain forward-looking information to enable
investors to comprehend our prospects and take informed investment decisions. This
report and other statements - written and oral - that we periodically make certain forwardlooking statements that set out anticipated results based on the management’s plans
and assumptions. We have tried wherever possible to identify such statements by using
words such as ‘anticipates’, ‘estimates’, ‘expects’, ‘projects’, ‘intends’, ‘plans’, ‘believes’,
and words of similar substance in connection with any discussion of future performance.
We cannot guarantee that these forward-looking statements will be realised, although we
believe we have been prudent in our assumptions. The achievement of results is subject
to risks, uncertainties and even inaccurate assumptions. Should known or unknown risks
or uncertainties materialise, or should underlying assumptions prove inaccurate, actual
results could vary materially from those anticipated, estimated or projected. Readers
should bear this in mind. We undertake no obligation to publicly update any forwardlookingstatements, whether as a result of new information, future events or otherwise.
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This is the
Fiberweb India

36 years
of Global presence

Fiberweb (India) Ltd. was
founded in 1985 and specialised
in the production and export
of Injection, Blow and Roto
Moulded products, as well as
garbage and carrier bags, using
German machinery.
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Spunbond

5000 MTPA

Melt Blown

3000 MTPA

Quality Standards

Mission

Fiberweb planned to diversify
into the non-woven sector in
the early 1990s to meet the
expanding
global
demand
for non-woven fabrics and to
de-risk the existing business
strategy. Since commissioning
of its plant in 1996, it has
become 100% EOU, exporting to
countries like UAE, South Africa,
Australia, USA, UK and Europe.

ISO 9001:2015
Intertek

To leverage capabilities of technical textiles
to provide sustainable products that meet the
evolving needs in healthcare, hygiene, medical,
agriculture and various industrial segments,
while helping us fulfill our social objectives.

ISO 14001:2015
UKAS
ISO 45001:2018

Empowering people lives for a better
tomorrow!

Vision

Revenue

EBITDA

` 107.5 Cr. ` 23.6 Cr.
Margin 21.7%

Fiberweb India Limited

CSR Spent of
` 41.26 lakhs in
the education
and healthcare
sector.

Due to the recent global scare of Covid-19, there has been
huge demand for melt blown fabrics from India for face
masks. Fiberweb has efficiently provided raw material for
manufacturing:

To be a trusted brand recognised for it’s
innovative,
cost
effective,
sustainable
solutions that leave the world a better place.

FY21 - Standalone

The company also has in-house
facilities for manufacturing
stitched garments like medical
and Industrial gowns and
overhauls, Aprons, Car Covers
and Other made-ups as per
client’s specifications. It has
also set-up a new product line of
Melt Blown Non-woven fabrics
used in facemask, filteration,
absorbent, rail track etc. The
company today having become
debt free and is exploring new
opportunities
and
product
segments for growth.

State of the Art
manufacturing unit

Personal Protective Equipment (PPE) Kits
Face Masks N95 and N99

PAT

` 14.4 Cr.
Margin 13.2%

Annual Report 2020-21

Cash from Ops.

` 15.3 Cr.

Book Value

` 55.02

Zero Debt
Company
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Manufacturing Facility

Spunbond Fabric
and Its Usage

Capacity:

Automotive

5,000 MTPA

Bumper Covers, Interior Carpets, Trunk
Carpets, Underbody Panels

Started 1996
Industrial Applications

These are produced by depositing
extruded, spun filaments onto a collecting
belt in a random manner followed by
bonding the fibers. The fibers are separated
during the web laying process by air jets or
electrostatic charges

Hospital Masks and Industrial
Garments

Agricultural Applications
Crop Cover, Soil Cover , Weed
Protection

Spunbond Fabric Line Process
End Usage

POLYMER CHIPS

POLYMER
FILTER

PUMP

Personal Hygiene Applications

POLYMER
FILTER

POLYMER CHIPS

Baby Diapers, Female Hygiene, Adult
Incontinence and Face Masks

PUMP

EXTRUDER

EXTRUDER

QUENCHING

QUENCHING

AIR

Textile Applications
Curtains, Lining/Backing/Interlining
in Upholstery, Luggage and Garments,
Bedsheets / Pillow Covers

AIR
KISS ROLL
PACKING

LAY DOWN
SUCTION

SUCTION

DRIER
WEB FORMING

Technical Application
WINDER

Geotextiles and Structural Engineering

CALENDER
DISPATCH
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Manufacturing Facility

Melt Blown Fabric
and its Usage

Capacity:

Medical Fabrics

3,000 MTPA

Face Masks, Disposable Gowns,
Drapes and Sterilization Wraps.

Started 2017
Oil Absorbents

These are extremely fine fibers which
differ from spunbond, in that they have
low intrinsic strength and a less dense
web structure offering key properties not
present in spunbond

For Oil Spills In Water, Absorbent
Flooring In Machine Shops /
Industrial Plants.

Wipes
Face Wipes, Hand Wipes, Surface
Cleaning (Wood, Leather, Floors, Tiles Etc).

Melt Blown Fabric Line Process
End Usage
POLYMER
CHIPS

Filteration

EXTRUDER

Filteration Of Chemicals, Oil, Air,
Liquids And Face Masks

POLYMER
FILTER

PUMP
DIE TIP
WITH HOT

Sanitary Products

POLYMER
FILTER

Feminine Sanitary Napkins, Baby
Diapers and Disposable Adult
Incontinence Products

ACCUMALATOR
CALENDAR
WINDER

PACKING

SPIN
BELT

SUCTION
BLOWER

Apparel

STATIC
CHARG

Disposable Industrial Apparel, Thermal
Insulation and Substrates for
Synthetic Leather

DISPATCH
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Chairman’s
Speech

First And Foremost, We
Care For Our Society

Dear Stakeholders,

Pravin Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

During these 36 years, Fiberweb
has earned its reputation by
keeping our culture, people and
brand trilogy as our key assets,
thereby creating sustainable
growth environment and longterm value for our stakeholders.
The world is facing a global
pandemic that has affected
us all in unprecedented
ways, both personally and
professionally. On behalf of the
company, I would like to convey
our
heartfelt
condolences
to everyone who have been
affected by COVID-19, as well
as their families and friends.
The global pandemic and
continuous lockdowns are
wreaking havoc on people’s
lives, livelihoods and general
well-being. I also want to
express our sincere gratitude
to those working to prevent the
spread of illness, particularly
those in the domains of
healthcare,
medicine
and
essential services.
This year has been full of fresh
experiences and achievements.
We are really happy of how we
have come out of this year, as
well as our workers who worked
together to achieve exceptional
outcome in an ever-changing
environment.
Our
priority
has always been to put our
workers and consumers first.
We have mobilized our entire
organisation in response to
the worldwide pandemic. We
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have become more flexible,
modified our working methods,
and concentrated on a few key
areas to ensure company’s
longevity
and
continuous
service to our clients. Several
steps have been taken to
guarantee that our production
activities are not disrupted. As
always, we have worked really
hard to create solutions that
offer value to a wide range of
clients, people, society and
stakeholders. Furthermore, we
have strictly enforced social
distancing, masks at work,
and frequent hand sanitization
across our industrial facilities
and offices.
Important aspect of our
ideology is in upholding the
dynamics of our community
and playing an active role in
its development and success.
Our endurance, adaptability,
and
organisational
agility
have enhanced our company’s
capabilities, allowing us to
advance from a position of
strength and grow over time.
The increase in the number
of COVID-19 cases worldwide
and the growing need for
healthcare
workers,
are
expected to boost the demand
for
disposable
hospital
supplies
and
non-woven
materials. The rise in demand
for
non-woven
products
and solutions for hygiene,
medicinal,
construction,
and filtration applications is

Fiberweb India Limited

We have stayed true to our mission and
principles throughout the Year of uncertainties

fueling the expansion of the
non-woven fabrics market. In
India, melt blown non-woven
fabrics are in the early growth
stage and gaining popularity
in the medical, filtration,
and absorbent industries. To
address the growing global
demand for face masks and
related products, we have
already invested in a new fine
fiber melt blown production
line and have increased our
protective material offerings.
We were able to produce highquality fine fibers, and melt
blown filtering media for face
masks, surgical masks, and
respiratory masks. With this
new production line, we will
be greatly increasing their
supply and helping alleviate
melt blown material shortages.
We have been able to achieve
a positive outcome and
make substantial progress
across the board, regardless
of the concerning economic
upheaval.
As we look ahead to this
coming year, we will witness
an era marked by unequivocal
changes. Consumer behaviour
will shift in a variety of ways,
from the demand for more
integrated digital experiences
to the prioritization of health
and safety aspects in purchase
decisions. We aspire to excel
in our markets and continue
to deliver to the bottom line
by
remaining
consumer
centric and maintaining cost
discipline. As we enter the

Annual Report 2020-21

next phase of our journey, we
continue to advance, guided
by a new business philosophy
that shall display our passion
for pioneering in the world of
fibers and continue to be a
vital component in the fight
against pandemic related
uncertainties and preserving
the health of people all over the
world.
We were able to start the year
strong, persevere through
the pandemic and eventually
develop and serve successfully
throughout the year because
of our guiding principals and
clear strategy. We all have
experienced challenging times
but I believe that our timely
execution and consumers
response validate that we have
the right strategy in place.
We
express
our
deep
appreciation
for
the
unconditional support from
staff,
shareholders
and
bankers, which has given us
the courage to forge ahead
in this journey. Thank you for
assisting us in making the
world a cleaner and safer place
for everyone. Let us all work
together to support our country
overcome this situation. It
may take some time but
there is reason to believe it is
attainable.

We continue
to draw
inspiration
from our vision
to be a world
class leader
in non-woven
textile industry,
that enrich lives
of the people

Jai Hind..
Pravin Sheth
Chairman Emeritus
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President’s
Message
Our 36 years of experience has allowed us to
remain focussed and determined even in the
challenging times and helped the society with our
operational capabilities

Bhavesh Sheth
President

Dear Stakeholders,
The global COVID-19 pandemic has affected every Now, let me give you an overview of your company’s
aspect of our lives. Coronavirus caught every financial performance for the financial year 2021.
nation by surprise. It was a tumultuous time for
all with pandemic-induced lockdowns and lack of
Capacity Utilised During FY21
opportunities for businesses and beyond. It has
changed mindsets, perceptions and strategies.
The financial year 2021 started on a challenging
note with nationwide lockdowns at the start of Q1,
however we were declared as an essential unit since
our products form the primary component used in
making Personal Protection Equipment (PPE) Kits and
Protective Face Masks. Prior to the pandemic, there was
not a huge demand for PPEs, so there was negligible
production in India and majority of the requirement
was met by imports, primarily from China. Hence,
when the pandemic started, the requirement for PPEs
sky-rocketed and with non-availability of imported
materials, we were among the handful of producers in
India and certainly the one with the largest capacity to
produce the filtration materials for PPEs. This allowed
us to aid our country and the rest of the world in the
battle against the pandemic.
Now, let me give you an overview of your company. Let
me start with an overview of your company’s operating
performance for the financial year 2021.

Spunbond : 82%
Melt Blown : 67%

Our top line increased by 9.33% to `108.63 Cr. Our
full-year EBITDA was up by 31.06% to `23.59 Cr. Our
full-year PAT was up by 42.26% to `14.37 Cr. Which is
commendable given that we are 100% export-oriented
unit and there was export ban in place for a year for
one of our product i.e. melt blown, and how quickly we
managed to shift our focus to domestic markets and
add more than 25 new customers without any special
marketing efforts. Which reflects our strong brand
recognition among the customers.
Our total sales can be divided into the following sectors:
SR.
PARTICULARS
NO.

SPUN-BOND MELT BLOWN

1

Hygiene and Health-care

20.00%

30.00%

2

Agriculture

50.00%

-

3

General Textile

30.00%

5.00%

We have two product categories, Spunbond Fabrics
Absorbent
40.00%
and Melt Blown Fabrics, with both the products 4
having a huge demand for multiple applications. 5
Filtration
25.00%
We have a Spunbond capacity of 5,000 MTPA with
Total
100.00%
100.00%
utilisation level of 4,100 MTPA and we have a Melt
Blown capacity of 1,500 MTPA with utilisation level of
1,000 MTPA. Spunbond fabrics contribute to 70% of our Corporate vulnerabilities are always changing in a
total revenue, while melt blown fabrics contribute to dynamically changing business environment along
with varied customer expectations. As a result, the
30% of our total revenue.
panorama of developing risk varies significantly
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amongst companies. We continued to stay focused
on understanding changing customer needs across
all the business segments we serve and addressing
these through new products and solutions with a
strong value proposition for our customers. While we
continued to manage the business dynamics to address
the uncertainties in the aftermath of the pandemic. If
there is one takeaway, it is that long-term growth and
development necessitates the holistic development of
human, environmental, and financial capital.
We have seen increased demand for melt blown products
due to the pandemic and seeing its market potential for
next 3 years. We have started the process of increasing
the capacity of our melt blown line and it was increased
from 1,500 MTPA to 3,000 MTPA before the end of the year
through internal accruals only.
Our approach has always been one of measured
incremental growth, to ensure we continue to increase
our revenues and enrich shareholders. We do it by
diversifying into niche technical textiles that have
significant potential and higher margins. We had
diversified from spunbond into melt blown precisely
with this approach and it yielded the desired results. We
are currently planning the next phase of our growth and
hope to share the news with you shortly as soon as we
have concluded our study and our due diligence.
I am sure that we can look forward to better times as
Individuals and as a Company. I assure you that your
Company is on the growth path and together as Fiberweb
family, we can continue to serve the society and grow
bigger.

Being a 100% EOU, we
were able to showcase
our brand recognition
by adding 25 new
clients in India.

Ensuring business
continuity by
prioritising the
well-being of the
employees, their
families and other
stakeholders

With Warm regards
Bhavesh Sheth
President
Annual Report 2020-21
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Core
Management Team
Pravin
Sheth

Bhavesh
Sheth

Rajesh
Shukla

G Ravindran

Mukesh
Pandya
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Corporate
Information

CA by profession. Over 5 decades of industry experience.
Responsible for driving the vision and strategy for the
Company.

Responsible for business development, business process and
organization strategy.
Total Experience – 30 years (10 years with Fiberweb (India)
Limited). Earlier worked with Fortune 500 Companies in USA
as Senior Management.

B.Com (Major in Finance and Marketing) with 35 years of
experience in retail industry, managing business and sales
operations. He is the CEO at Fiberweb (India) Limited.

B. Tech (Chem Engg), M.Tech (Ind. Management) from
IIT-Kharagpur and responsible for manufacturing facility in
Daman Total experience – 40 years, 30 years with Fiberweb
(India) Limited.

Qualified FCA, DISA and CISA with more than 22 years
experience in accounts, auditing and taxation. He is the Chief
Financial Officer of Fiberweb (India) Limited.
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Financial Highlights (Standalone)

Key Performance

(` in Lakhs)
21.7

(` in Lacs)
Particulars

FY19

FY20

FY21

Profit and Loss Statement
Revenues
Other Income
Expenditure
EBITDA
EBITDA Margin(%)

15,271
63
12,733
2,601
17.0%

9,818
118
8,136
1,800
18.1%

10,745
118
8,504
2,359
21.7%

Interest
Depreciation
PBT
PBT Margin (%)
Exceptional items
PBT after exceptional items
Tax
PAT
PAT Margin(%)

0
454
2,147
14.0%
1,569
578
0
2147
14.0%

134
471
1,195
12.0%
0
1,195
177
1018
10.2%

0
513
1,846
17.0%
0
1,846
409
1437
13.2%

Balance Sheet
Fixed Assets
Investments
Non Current Assets
Current Assets
Total Assets
Equity
Reserve and Surplus
Net Worth
Long Term Borrowings
Total Non current Liabilitie
Short Term Borrowings
Total Current Liabilities
Total Liabilities

9,150
20
407
4,819
14,396
2,879
10,651
13,530
0
0
0
866
14,396

9,071
20
722
5,927
15,740
2,879
11,669
14,549
0
0
611
580
15,740

10,151
20
236
6,803
17,210
2,879
12,963
15,842
0
0
0
1,368
17,210

1,120
-1,169
-48

609
-633
507

1,528
-1,569
-111

Cash Flow statement
Cash from Operations
Cash from Investments
Cash from financial Activities
Ratios
Current Ratio
EPS (Rs) Basic
EPS (Rs) Diluted
BV (Rs)

14

17.0
15,271

5.57
2.01
2.01
46.99

10.22
3.54
3.54
50.53

4.97
4.99
4.99
55.02

Fiberweb India Limited

18.1

2,601
9,818

10,745

Total
Revenue

2,359
1,800

EBITDA and
EBITDA Margin(%)

(In INR Lakhs)
FY19

FY20

FY19

FY21

FY20

FY21

14.0
13.2
2,147

13,530

10.2

14,549

15,842

1,437
1,018

PAT and
PAT Margin(%)

Networth
FY19

FY20

FY21

FY19

10.22

5.57

FY20

FY21

10,151

9,150

9,071

FY19

FY20

4.97

Current
Ratio

Fixed
Asset
FY19

FY20

FY21

55.02

1,528

50.53
46.99

1,120

Book
Value

609

Cash from
Operations
FY19

Annual Report 2020-21
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FY20

FY21

FY19

FY20

FY21
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Indian Economy

industrial growth, resulting in lower per capita income and
discretionary spending, which was significantly impacted
by the pandemic’s disruptions across the country. Despite
this, the Indian economy’s fundamentals remained robust,
with GDP growth forecast to pick up in the first quarter of
2020-21.

Global Textile Industry

Economy and Industry Outlook
Global economy

The year in consideration is one of the most difficult in
recent years, marked by volatility and instability. Countries
across the world faced a multi-dimensional crisis that
encompassed health scares, local economic upheaval,
capital flow reversals, commodity price collapses and
a drop in international demand. Governments from all
around the world jumped in with extraordinary policy

IMF expects the Global Economy to
rebound faster in 2021 and 2022, with
growth of 6% in 2021 and 4.4 percent
in 2022
support, limiting the economic devastation that could
have resulted otherwise. Central banks have implemented
additional monetary and prudential measures to boost
liquidity and ensure financial stability. The pandemic also
demonstrated a dramatic global employment crisis. The
challenges to business posed by the inflationary pressure
and the uncertain market conditions, would place strong
emphasis on managing the business in a dynamic manner
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and altering operational priorities to cover the changing
market conditions. The ability of governments and regions
to adapt to the pandemic crisis will likely define the
outlook. While there are still many obstacles to overcome
and multispeed economic recovery is underway.
As the globe tries to vaccine itself out of this pandemic,
the mutations and paths of the disease’s genesis remain
mostly unknown, casting a shadow over the situation.
Countries should also collaborate on climate change
mitigation, digitalization, international co-operation, tax
modernization and measures to prevent cross-border
profit shifting, avoidance and evasion. We have seen
huge changes in economic policy and massively scaledup assistance at the national level over the last year,

According to the World Bank, the
global economy will grow at 5.6
percent in 2021, the fastest rate since
the Great Depression.
particularly among advanced economies that can afford
these efforts. Maintaining comparable bold initiatives
in the foreseeable future will aid the global economy in
navigating these uncharted circumstances. Increased
COVID-19 caseloads, vaccine barriers and a partial loss of
macroeconomic support are offsetting some of the benefits
of stronger external demand and higher commodity prices
in many emerging markets and developing economies
(EMDEs). The United States is likely to surpass its preCOVID GDP level this year, whereas many other advanced
economies will not return to pre-COVID levels until 2022.

Fiberweb India Limited

The global textile sector was impacted by the pandemic
with production standstill, supply chain interruptions and
market closures.
COVID-19, with its altered contagious strains, has
resurfaced in 2021, with a drastic rise of cases over the
world, particularly in India. The pandemic demanded a
complete nationwide lockdown, followed by an ‘unlock’
phase marked by intermittent regional lockdowns and

According to the National Statistical
Office (“NSO”), India’s GDP is
estimated to contract by 8.0% in FY
2020-21.
limitations, resulting in the biggest real GDP drop on record
in the first quarter at 23.9 percent year-on-year.
The Indian economy was similarly impacted by the crisis,
with a de-growth rate of 10.4 percent in the first nine
months of FY 2020-21, compared to 4.4 percent the previous
year (Source: Ministry of Statistics and Programme
Implementation, Government of India). The Indian GDP
shrank by 7% in the fiscal year that ended in March 2021.
The economy, which had plunged off a cliff in Q1, began to
display a V-shaped rebound, fueled largely by government
spending and exports. The first-half decrease of 15% was
countered by 3% growth in the second half of FY21.

The counter measures resulted in
a cumulative stimulus of ~20 lakh
crore (~10% of the GDP) with a clarion
call to make India self-reliant under
the “Aatmanirbhar Bharat Abhiyan”.
The economy’s long-term development fundamentals, such
as favorable demography, a stable geopolitical environment
and rising urbanisation are expected to continue to fuel
India’s growth story in the long run. Consumer sentiment
was subdued due to macroeconomic issues such as slowing
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The market is expected to reach
US$821 Bn in 2025 at a CAGR of 6%.
According to the new market research report ‘Textile Global
Market Report 2021: COVID-19 Impact and Recovery To 2030’
published by The Business Research Company, the global
textile market is expected to grow from US$594 Bn in 2020
to US$654 Bn in 2021 at a compound annual growth rate
(CAGR) of 10%. The growth is mainly due to the companies
rearranging their operations and recovering from the
COVID-19 impact, which had earlier led to restrictive
containment measures involving social distancing, remote
working, and the closure of commercial activities that
resulted in operational challenges.

Indian Textile Industry
India is the world’s second-largest textile and clothing
producer. It is also the world’s fifth-largest exporter of
textiles, which includes clothes, household goods and
technical items. The textile industry contributes nearly
13% of industrial output and 2% of GDP, making it a critical
component of economic growth. COVID-19 has had an
influence on Indian textile and apparel exports, which are
estimated to exceed US$ 65 Bn by FY26.

The textile industry has around 45
million of workers employed
The textile sector in the country is fueled by a robust
manufacturing base that includes a diverse range of yarns,
fibres, and fabrics. The Indian apparel market was US$ 40
Bn in 2020 and is expected to reach US$ 135 Bn by 2025.
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Global Technical Textile
Technical textiles have seen an upward trend globally in
the recent years due to improving economic conditions.
Technological advancements, increase in end-use
applications,
cost-effectiveness,
durability,
userfriendliness and eco-friendliness of technical textiles has
led to the upsurge of its demand in the global market.
Indutech, Mobiltech, Packtech, Buildtech and Hometech
together represent 2/3rd of the global market in value.

The global demand for technical
textiles was pegged at US$ 165 Bn in
the year 2018 and is expected to grow
up to US$ 220 Bn by 2025, at a CAGR
of 4% from 2018-25.
The Asia-Pacific has been leading the technical textiles
sector by capturing 40% of the global market, while North
America and Western Europe stand at 25% and 22%
respectively.
Asia-Pacific has seen a tremendous growth in this
sector and captures the largest market share due to
rapid urbanisation and technological advancements in
medical, automobile and construction industries. This is
further catalysed by easy production, low cost labour and
conducive government policy support.

Indian Technical Textile
India’s strengths have already been defined in traditional
textiles and natural fibres globally. Technical textiles is a
fast-growing sub-segment that finds its usage in various
sectors. The end use application of technical textiles is
widespread and seen in industries such as agriculture,

India is the second largest producer
of polyester in the world and is now
emerging as a key player in technical
textiles industry contributing to a
market size of US$ 19 Bn.

The government is equally focused on technical textile and
to meet the growing demand, had launched a Technology
Mission on Technical Textile (TMTT) with an outlay of Rs 200
crore in December 2010 and includes setting up Centres
of Excellence & Market Development and setting up of
Focus Incubation Centres. Accordingly, the government
has created 8 centre of excellence and 11 Focus Incubation
centres spread across the country.

mn in 2019-20. During April – November 2020, India’s imports of Technical Textile was at US$769 mn clearly indicating
India’s domestic production is increasing, sufficing the country’s needs.

Technical Textile is the demand of time and focus is to
derive the benefits of technical textile in various fields
of applications. Currently there are 92 application areas
identified for mandatory use across ten Ministries/
Departments. Under Make in India Initiatives, the
government has notified minimum local content for public
procurement in 10 segment which will have minimum 50%
-80% local content.

There is a huge potential to fulfil a large demand gap as the consumption of Technical Textile in India is still only at 5-10%
against 30-70% in some of the advanced countries. A National Technical Textiles Mission has been set up that aims at an
average growth rate of 15-20% to increase the domestic market size of Technical Textile to US$ 40-50 Bn by the year 2024.

The government of India with a view to position the country
as a global leader in Technical Textiles, National Technical
Textiles Mission has been approved for creation at a total
outlay of `1,480 crore with four-year implementation
period from FY2020-21 to FY2023-24. The thrust would
be on Research and Development, Promotion and Market
Development, Export Promotion and Education, Training
and Skill Development.
Corona virus has affected every part of the world where
there was increase demand of PPE body coverall (Personal
Protection Equipment). PPE are specialized protective
suits for providing high level of protection to the health
professionals dealing with Covid-19 patients with stringent
technical requirement prescribed by Ministry of Health
and Family Welfare. The need was to develop right fabric,
which is light in weight and reasonably comfortable but
impermeable to any liquid.
With concerted efforts, India was able to convert the
exigency into an opportunity and within a short period of
two months created a new industry worth US$ 1 bn or `7,000
crore with nearly 1,100 manufacturers certified by 11 approved
laboratories, all developed indigenously with break neck
speed. The actual production level of Body Coverall peaked
to more than 4.5 lakh pieces per day. Today, India stand tall
proclaiming to be the second largest producer of PPE with
enough surpluses to meet export demands.

construction, sports apparel, healthcare etc. India’s
leap towards modernisation and its manufacturing
competitiveness are some of the key contributors to the
growth of this segment.

The need and demand is rising for technical textile. As per
report published by Wazir Advisors, the Indian Technical
Textile market was estimated at US$ 20 Bn in FY2019-20
which grew at a CAGR of 10% since 2015-16. India’s export
of Technical Textile in FY2019-20 was worth US$2,423 mn
which grew from US$1,528 mn at a CAGR of 12%. India’s
exports of Technical Textiles from April – November 2020
has been US$1,370 mn

Technical Textile is classified into 12 relevant categories
like Agrotech, Meditech, Mobiltech, Packtech, Sportech,
Buildtech, Clothtech, Hometech, Protech, Geotech,
Oekotech, Indutech.

Earlier, India was dependent on imports of Technical Textile
which have grown at CAGR of 10% during 2015 to 2018. But
as India started manufacturing it and its imports have
declined at 23% from US$2,209 mn in 2018-19 to US$1,730

Currently, Technical textile accounts for approximately 13% of India’s total textile
and apparel market and contributes to India’s GDP at 0.7%.

To boost Technical Textile Market, Indian Government has taken various initiatives as listed below:

1

Harmonized System of Nomenclature (HSN): In 2019, 207 HSN codes were dedicated to help increase
international trade, monitor the data of import and export, provide financial support and other
incentives to manufacturers.

2

100% FDI under Automatic Route Government of India allows 100% FDI under automatic route.

3

Organization of flagship event Technotex India which enables the participation of stakeholders from
across the global technical textile value chain.

4

National Technical Textile Mission to position India as a global leader in Technical Textile.

5

Launch of scheme for Integrated Textile Park dedicated to Technical Textile.

6

Amended Technology Upgradation Fund Scheme (ATUFS).

7

Various states schemes have been launched to develop and promote Technical Textile.

Sources: Wazir Advisors, Ministry of Textiles, Invest India, IMARC, KPMG
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FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED

CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
Registered office: Airport Road, Kadaiya, Nani Daman, Daman (U.T) 396210
Phone: 0260-2221458 Fax: 0260-2220758 Website: www.fiberwebindia.com Email: fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com

NOTICE
Notice is hereby given that the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Members of Fiberweb (India) Limited will
be held on Tuesday, 28th September, 2021 at 09.00 a.m. at the Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach,
Nani Daman (U.T.) - 396 210 to transact the following business:
ORDINARY BUSINESS:
1. To receive, consider and adopt:
(a) the Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended
31st March, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Statutory Auditor thereon.
(b) the Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st March,
2021 together with the Report of Statutory Auditors thereon.
2. To appoint a Director in place of Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) who retires by rotation and being eligible
offers himself for re-appointment.
3. To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajesh U. Shukla (DIN: 08690226) who retires by rotation and being
eligible offers himself for re-appointment.
SPECIAL BUSINESS:
4. Appointment of Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195) as a Non-Executive, Independent Director:
To consider and if thought fit, to pass, with or without modification(s), the following resolution as an Ordinary
Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195) who was appointed by the Board of Directors as an
Additional Director of the Company (and categorised as ‘Independent Director’) with effect from 28th May,
2021, and who holds office up to the date of this Annual General Meeting of the Company in terms of Section
161 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“ the Act”), and who has submitted a declaration that he meets the criteria of
Independence under Section 149(6) of the Act and the Listing Regulations and who is eligible for appointment
under the provisions of the Act, and Rules made thereunder, and SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements), Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”),be and is hereby appointed pursuant to the
provisions of Sections 149 and 152 of the Act read with the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of
Directors) Rules, 2014, read with Schedule IV to the Act and Regulation 17 and other applicable regulations
of the SEBI Listing Regulations, as amended from time to time and other applicable provisions,if any, of the
Act, as an Non-Executive Independent Director of the Company for a period of 5 years, and such 5 years be
computed from the date of his initial / first appointment, i.e. 28th May, 2021, subject to his compliance with the
requirements as prescribed under the Act with regard to an Independent Director and such other provisions
as may be applicable, if any, from time to time, and further during the tenure of his appointment, the said
Independent Director shall not be liable to retire by rotation."
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and / or Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deed, things and matters as they may consider necessary, expedient
or desirable for giving effect to the foregoing resolution.”
5. To approve the continuation of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) as a Non-Executive, NonIndependent Director of the Company, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of the Members be and is hereby accorded for the continuation
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of appointment of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) as a 'Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director' of
the Company, liable to retire by rotation."
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and / or Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deed, things and matters as they may consider necessary, expedient
or desirable for giving effect to the foregoing resolution.”
6. To approve the continuation of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997) as a Non-Executive, Independent
Director of the Company, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015
To consider, and if thought fit, to pass, the following resolution as a Special Resolution:
“RESOLVED THAT pursuant to Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, approval of the Members be and is hereby
granted to the continuation of appointment of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997) as a 'Non-Executive,
Independent Director' of the Company."
“RESOLVED FURTHER THAT Board of Directors and / or Company Secretary of the Company be and are
hereby authorised to do all such acts, deed, things and matters as they may consider necessary, expedient
or desirable for giving effect to the foregoing resolution.”
By order of the Board of Directors
For Fiberweb (India) Limited
Place: Mumbai
Date: : 06th August, 2021

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
Air Port Road,
Kadaiya, Nani Daman
Daman (U.T.) 396 210.
CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
E-mail:fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com
Website: www.fiberwebindia.com
NOTES:
1. A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE AT THE ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING (THE “MEETING)
IS ENTITLED TO APPOINT A PROXY/ PROXIES TO ATTEND AND VOTE ON A POLL INSTEAD OF
HIMSELF/HERSELF AND THE PROXY NEED NOT BE A MEMBER OF THE COMPANY. The Instrument
appointing Proxy, in order to be effective should be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, duly
completed and signed, not less than 48 Hours before the commencement of the Annual General Meeting.
A PERSON CAN ACT AS A PROXY ON BEHALF OF MEMBERS NOT EXCEEDING FIFTY (50) AND
HOLDING IN THE AGGREGATE NOT MORE THAN TEN PERCENT OF THE TOTAL PAID UP SHARE
CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS. A MEMBER HOLDING MORE THAN TEN
PERCENT OF THE TOTAL SHARE CAPITAL OF THE COMPANY CARRYING VOTING RIGHTS MAY
APPOINT A SINGLE PERSON AS PROXY AND SUCH PERSON SHALL NOT ACT AS A PROXY FOR ANY
OTHER PERSON OR SHAREHOLDER.
2. Corporate Members intending to send their authorized representative(s) to attend the Meeting in terms of
Section 113 of the Companies Act, 2013, are requested to send the Company a certified true copy of the
Board Resolution authorizing such representative to attend and vote on their behalf at the Meeting.
3. A Explanatory Statement pursuant to Section 102(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, which sets out details
relating to the Special Business to be transacted at the Meeting is annexed hereto.
4. In terms of the provisions of Section 152 of the Act, Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) and
Mr. Rajesh U. Shukla (DIN: 08690226), Directors, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting.
Nomination and Remuneration Committee and the Board of Directors of the Company recommend their
respective re-appointments.
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Mr. Pravin V. Sheth is interested in the Ordinary Resolution set out at item Nos. 2, of the Notice with regards
to his re-appointment. Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth and Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth being related to Mr. Pravin V. Sheth,
Director / Chairman Emeritus, may be deemed to be interested in the resolution set out at item Nos. 2 of the
Notice. Save and except the above, none of the Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their
relatives are, in any way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the Ordinary Business set out
under Item Nos. 1 to 3 of the Notice.
5. The relevant details as required under Regulation 36(3) of SEBI (Listing obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 (“SEBI Listing Regulations”) and clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard
on General Meeting (“SS-2”) of the persons seeking appointment /re-appointment as Directors /Directors are
provided in Annexure to this Notice.
6. Members holding shares in dematerialised form are requested to intimate any changes in their address, bank
details etc. to their respective Depository Participants (DPs) and those holding shares in physical form are to
intimate the above said changes to the Registrar and Share Transfer Agent ofthe Company at Link Intime
India Private Limited, C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400083. The Company will not
entertain any direct request from such members for this.
7. Pursuant to provisions of Section 91 of Companies Act, 2013, the Share Transfer Books and the Register of
Members of the Company will remain close from 22nd September, 2021 to 28th September, 2021 (both
days inclusive).
8. The relevant documents referred above to in any of the items of the Notice are available for inspection by
the members at the Registered Office of the Company on any working day during the business hours of the
Company upto the date of the meeting and at the meeting.
9. In case of joint holders attending the meeting, only such a joint holder who is higher in the order of names will
be entitled to vote.
10. Members who hold shares in dematerialized form are requested to bring their CLIENT ID AND DP ID numbers
for easy identification of attendance at the meeting. Only bona fide members of the Company whose names
appear on the Register of Members / Proxy holders, in possession of valid attendance slips duly filled and
signed along with the identity proof will be permitted to attend the meeting. The Company reserves its right
to take all steps as may be deemed necessary to restrict non-members from attending the meeting.
11. Members seeking any information with regard to accounts of the Company are requested to send their
queries so as to reach the registered office at least 10 days before the meeting to enable the management
to keep the information ready for clarification.
12. Copies of the Annual Report shall not be distributed at the meeting and therefore members are requested to
bring their copies of Annual Report to the meeting.
13. Annual Report for the financial year 2020-21 along with the Notice of 36th Annual General Meeting, remote
e-voting, proxy form and attendance slip will be sent through electronic mode to the Members whose email
ids are registered with the Company / Depositories for communication purpose unless any Member has
requested for a physical copy of the same. Physical copy of the Notice along with the aforesaid documents
will be sent by the permitted mode to those Members whose email ids are not registered with the Company
/ Depositors. Further the aforesaid documents can also be accessed on the Company’s website i.e. www.
fiberwebindia.com and website of BSE Limited i.e. www.bseindia.com
14. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (vide circular nos. 17/2011 and 18/2011 dated April 21 and April 29, 2011
respectively), has undertaken a Green Initiative in Corporate Governance and allowed companies to serve
documents to its shareholders through electronic mode. Members are requested to support this green
initiative by registering/updating their e-mail address, in respect of shares held in dematerialized from with
their respective Depository Participants and in respect of shares held in physical form with company / its
Share Transfer Agents.
15. In terms of provisions of Section 72 of the Companies Act, 2013, nomination facility is available to individual
shareholders. The shareholders who are holding shares in physical form and are desirous of availing this
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facility may kindly write to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent, M/s. Link Intime India Private Limited, C
101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West, Mumbai 400083 for nomination form quoting their folio number.
Shareholders holding shares in the dematerialized form may contact their Depository Participant for recording
nomination in respect of their shares.
16. The Equity Shares of the Company are listed at the following stock exchange:
BSE Limited, Phiroze Jeejeebhoy Towers, Dalal Street, Fort, Mumbai - 400001
The listing fee to the above exchange has been paid.
The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd., Ahmedabad, Kamdhenu Complex, Opp. Sahajanand College, Panjara
Pole, Ahmedabad - 380 015 – This Stock Exchange was derecognized by SEBI.
17. Information and other instruction relating to e-voting are as under:
(i) In compliance with provisions of Section 108 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with Rule 20 of the
Companies (Management and Administration) Rules, 2014, as amended from time to time and Regulation
44 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015, the Company is pleased to provide its Shareholders the facility to exercise their right
to vote at the Thirty Sixth Annual General Meeting of the Company by electronic means and the business
may be transacted through e-voting services provided by CDSL.
(ii) For Shareholders attending the Meeting who have not cast their vote by remote e-voting, the Company
shall be making arrangements for the Shareholders to cast their votes in respect to the business stated
in this Notice through ballot form. The Shareholders who have cast their votes by remote e-voting prior
to the Meeting may also attend the Meeting but shall not be entitled to cast their vote again.
(iii) The Company has engaged the services of Central Depository Service Limited (“CDSL’’) as the Agency
to provide e-voting facility.
(iv) The Board of Directors of the Company has appointed K. Pratik & Associates Company Secretary
in Practice, Mumbai as Scrutinizer to scrutinise the remote e-voting process in a fair and transparent
manner and he has communicated his willingness to be appointed and will be available for same purpose.
(v) Voting rights shall be reckoned on the paid-up value of shares registered in the name of the
member / beneficial owner (in case of electronic shareholding) as on the cut-off date i.e.
21st September, 2021.
(vi) A person, whose name is recorded in the register of member or in the register of beneficial owners
maintained by the depositories as on the cut-off date, i.e. 21st September, 2021 only shall be entitled to
avail the facility of remote e-voting as well as voting at the AGM through Ballot paper.
(vii) Any person who acquires shares and become member of the Company after dispatch of the notice and
holding shares as on the cut-off date may obtain the login ID and password by sending a request at www.
evotingindia.com or issuer / RTA.
(viii)Once the vote on a resolution is cast by a member, the member shall not be allowed to change it
subsequently or cast the vote again.
The instructions for shareholders voting electronically are as under:
(i) The voting period begins on Saturday, 25th September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m. and ends on Monday,
27th September, 2021 at 5.00 p.m. During this period shareholders’ of the Company, holding shares
either in physical form or in dematerialized form, as on the cut-off date (record date) of Tuesday, 21st
September, 2021, may cast their vote electronically. The e-voting module shall be disabled by CDSL for
voting thereafter.
(ii) Shareholders who have already voted prior to the meeting date would not be entitled to vote at the
meeting venue.
(iii) The shareholders should log on to the e-voting website www.evotingindia.com.
(iv) Click on “Shareholders” module.
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(v) Now Enter your User ID
		

a. For CDSL: 16 digits beneficiary ID,

		

b. For NSDL: 8 Character DP ID followed by 8 Digits Client ID,

		

c.	Shareholders holding shares in Physical Form should enter Folio Number registered with the
Company.

		

OR

		

Alternatively, if you are registered for CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, you can log-in at
https://www.cdslindia.com from Login - Myeasi using your login credentials. Once you successfully login to CDSL’s EASI/EASIEST e-services, click on e-Voting option and proceed directly to cast your vote
electronically.

(vi) Next enter the Image Verification as displayed and Click on Login.
(vii) If you are holding shares in demat form and had logged on to www.evotingindia.com and voted on an
earlier voting of any Company, then your existing password is to be used.
(viii) If you are a first time user follow the steps given below:
PAN

For Shareholders holding shares in Demat Form and Physical Form
Enter your 10 digit alpha-numeric *PAN issued by Income Tax Department
(Applicable for both demat shareholders as well as physical shareholders)
•

Dividend
Bank Details
OR Date of
Birth (DOB)

Shareholders who have not updated their PAN with the Company/
Depository Participant are requested to use the sequence number sent
by Company/RTA or contact Company/RTA.
Enter the Dividend Bank Details or Date of Birth (in dd/mm/yyyy format) as
recorded in your demat account or in the company records in order to login.
•

If both the details are not recorded with the depository or company please
enter the member id / folio number in the Dividend Bank details field as
mentioned in instruction (v).

(ix) After entering these details appropriately, click on “SUBMIT” tab.
(x) Shareholders holding shares in physical form will then directly reach the Company selection screen.
However, members holding shares in demat form will now reach ‘Password Creation’ menu wherein
they are required to mandatorily enter their login password in the new password field. Kindly note that
this password is to be also used by the demat holders for voting for resolutions of any other company
on which they are eligible to vote, provided that company opts for e-voting through CDSL platform. It is
strongly recommended not to share your password with any other person and take utmost care to keep
your password confidential.
(xi) For Shareholders holding shares in physical form, the details can be used only for e-voting on the
resolutions contained in this Notice.
(xii)Click on the EVSN for the FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED on which you choose to vote.
(xiii)On the voting page, you will see “RESOLUTION DESCRIPTION” and against the same the option “YES/
NO” for voting. Select the option YES or NO as desired. The option YES implies that you assent to the
Resolution and option NO implies that you dissent to the Resolution.
(xiv)Click on the “RESOLUTIONS FILE LINK” if you wish to view the entire Resolution details.
(xv) After selecting the resolution you have decided to vote on, click on “SUBMIT”. A confirmation box will be
displayed. If you wish to confirm your vote, click on “OK”, else to change your vote, click on “CANCEL”
and accordingly modify your vote.
(xvi)Once you “CONFIRM” your vote on the resolution, you will not be allowed to modify your vote.
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(xvii)You can also take out print of the voting done by you by clicking on “Click here to print” option on the
Voting page.
(xviii)If Demat account holder has forgotten the same password then Enter the User ID and the image
verification code and click on Forgot Password & enter the details as prompted by the system.
(xix)Shareholders can also cast their vote using CDSL’s mobile app “m-Voting”. The m-Voting app can be
downloaded from respective Store. Please follow the instructions as prompted by the mobile app while
Remote Voting on your mobile.
(xx) Note for Non – Individual Shareholders and Custodians
		

•

Non-Individual shareholders (i.e. other than Individuals, HUF, NRI etc.) and Custodian are required
to log on to www.evotingindia.com and register themselves as Corporates.

		

•

A scanned copy of the Registration Form bearing the stamp and sign of the entity should be emailed
to helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.

		

•

After receiving the login details a compliance user should be created using the admin login and
password. The Compliance user would be able to link the account(s) for which they wish to vote on.

		

•

A scanned copy of the Board Resolution and Power of Attorney (POA) which they have issued in
favour of the Custodian, if any, should be uploaded in PDF format in the system for the scrutinizer to
verify the same.

(xxi) In case you have any queries or issues regarding e-voting, you may refer the Frequently Asked Questions
(“FAQs”) and e-voting manual available at www.evotingindia.com, under help section or write an email to
helpdesk.evoting@cdslindia.com.
		

I.

		

II. A copy of this notice has been placed on the website of the Company and the website of CDSL.

		

III. The Scrutinizer shall immediately after the conclusion of voting at the Annual General Meeting, first
count the votes at the Annual General Meeting. The Scrutinizer shall not later than 48 hours of
conclusion of the meeting, make a consolidated Scrutinizer’s report of the total votes cast in favour
or against, if any to the Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing who shall countersign the
same.

			
		

At the Annual General Meeting at the end of the discussion of the Resolution on which voting is to be
held, the Chairman shall with the assistance of the Scrutinizer, order voting for those members who
are present but have not cast their vote electronically using the Remote e-voting facility.

The Chairman or a person authorized by him in writing shall declare the result of voting forthwith.

IV. The Results shall be declared after the conclusion of the AGM of the Company. The Results declared
along with the Scrutinizer’s Report shall be placed on the Company’s website www.fiberwebindia.
com and on the website of CDSL within two (2) days of passing of the resolutions at the AGM of the
Company and communicated to BSE Limited.

MANDATORY REQUIREMENT
Updation of Bank Account Details for Payment of Dividend
SEBI vide its Circular dated 20thApril, 2018, made it mandatory to incorporate Bank details in dividend warrants.
Shareholders holding shares in physical or demat form and not provided the bank details are requested to submit
the bank details along with original cancelled cheque leaf to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent at the address
mentioned here in above in Note 15. The cancelled cheque leaf shall have the shareholder’s name printed on it.
If cheque leaf does not contain the name of shareholder, then along with cancelled cheque leaf, shareholder is
required to submit copy of bank passbook page / bank statement having the name of shareholder, address and
bank account number, duly attested by the officer of the same Bank with his signature, name, employee code,
designation, bank seal & address stamp, phone no. and date of attestation.
Updation of PAN details
Securities and Exchange Board of India (SEBl) has mandated the submission of Permanent Account Number
(PAN) bye very participant in securities market. Members having shares in electronic form are therefore, requested
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to submit their PAN details to their depository participant. Members holding shares in physical form are required
to submit their self attested copy of PAN card to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent at the address mentioned
here in above in Note 15.
No Effect of Transfer of Shares in Physical Form
Securities and Exchange Board of India has amended the Regulation 40 of SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosures Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in accordance with the provisions of the said regulation, transfer
of shares would be carried out only in dematerialized form and no transfer of shares in physical form will be
processed except in case of transmission or transposition.
Shareholders holding shares in Physical form are urged to have their shares in dematerialized form, as it be
able to freely transfer and facilitates easy liquidity, change in particulars of Shareholders such as bank details,
address, no loss of share certificates, etc.
The details of various banks and agencies providing dematerialization of shares services are available on the
website of NSDL and CDSL.
STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 102 OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013
As required under Section 102 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“Act”), the following explanatory statement sets out
all material facts relating to business mentioned under Item Nos. 4 to 6 of the accompanying Notice;
Item No. 4
On the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors at its meeting
held on 28th May, 2021 approved appointment of Mr. Sorabh Gupta as an Additional Director with effect from 28th
May, 2021. In terms of Section 161(1) of the Act, Mr. Sorabh Gupta holds office as an Additional Director upto the
date of this Annual General Meeting.
Further pursuant to the provisions of Sections 149, 152 read with Schedule IV and all other applicable provisions of
the Companies Act, 2013 and the Companies (Appointment and Qualification of Directors) Rules, 2014 (including
any statutory modification(s) or re-enactment thereof for the time being in force) and Regulation 25 of the SEBI
Listing Regulations, 2015 and as per the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration committee,
Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195), who was appointed as an Independent Director of the Company for five
consecutive years from 28th May, 2021, subject to the approval of Shareholders at the Annual General Meeting.
Brief profile of Sorabh Gupta is given below for reference of the member:
Mr. Sorabh Gupta, Age: 52 years, Qualification: Bachelor in Science from Allahabad University. He studied
Political Science at Institute of Advance Studies, Meerut. He has also studied M. Phil in Public Administration
from Institute of Advance Studies, Meerut. He has experience in Financial Market and Investment Banking.
Name of the companies in which he also holds Directorship: None, Name of other Companies in which he holds
Membership/ Chairmanship: None
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors has recommended the appointment of
Mr. Sorabh Gupta as a "Non-Executive, Independent Director" of the Company for 5 years term, considering his
vast experience, expertise and immense contribution made to the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company has also received declarations from Mr. Sorabh Gupta, that hemeet the criteria of independence
as prescribed under both, sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Act and under Regulation 25 of the Listing
Regulations.
The Members are, therefore, requested to grant their approval by way of a Ordinary Resolution for the of
appointment of Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195)as a “Non-Executive, Independent Director” of the Company,
who is not liable to retire by rotation.
None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 4 of the Notice.
Item Nos. 5
Pursuant to sub-regulation (1A) of Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
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Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, approval of the Members by way of
a Special Resolution is necessary for appointment / continuation of appointment of any Non-Executive Director
who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years.
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth is a Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director, of the Company liable to retire by rotation.
Brief profile of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth is given below for reference of the member:
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth Age: 82 years, Qualification: B.Com. LL.B., F.C.A. Practicing Chartered Accountant, Nature
of expertise: Expert in field of Finance, Management, Accounting, Auditing, Taxation and Law. Having good
knowledge about plastic industries for last 30 years. Name of other Companies in which also holds directorship:
1) M/s. Sun Properties Pvt. Ltd., 2) M/s. Star Developers Pvt. Ltd., 3) M/s. Parijat Pvt. Ltd., 4) M/s. Sun Capital
and Consultancy Pvt. Ltd. Name of Companies in which he holds Membership/Chairmanship: Chairman Emeritus
of Fiberweb (India) Ltd.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors has recommended the continuation of
appointment of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth as a "Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director," of the Company, considering
his vast experience, expertise and immense contribution in the growth of the Company since its incorporation,
the Members are, therefore, requested to grant their approval by way of a Special Resolution for the continuation
of appointment of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) as a 'Non-Executive, Non-Independent Director' of the
Company, liable to retire by rotation.
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth and Mrs. Soniya Pravin Sheth are related as husband and wife. Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth, son
of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth being related may be deemed to be interested in the said resolution set out at Item No. 5
of the Notice, to the extent of his shareholding interest, if any, in the Company.
Save and except Mr. Pravin V. Sheth and his relatives, to the extent of their shareholding interest, if any in the
Company, none of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, in any
way, concerned or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 5 of the Notice.
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item Nos.5 of the Notice for approval of the members.
Item Nos. 6
Pursuant to sub-regulation (1A) of Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, approval of the Members by way of
a Special Resolution is necessary for appointment / continuation of appointment of any Non-Executive Director
who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years.
Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997) is a Non-Executive, Independent Director of the Company not liable to
retire by rotation.
Brief profile of Gopalji M. Rana is given below for reference of the member:
Mr. Gopalji M. Rana Age: 79 years, Qualification: B.E. Bachelor of Engineering, M.B.A. Nature of expertise:
Management & Marketing, Name of the companies in which he also holds Directorship: None. Name of companies
in which he holds Membership/ Chairmanship: None.
The Nomination and Remuneration Committee of the Board of Directors has recommended the continuation of
appointment of Mr. Gopalji M. Ranaas a "Non-Executive, Independent Director" of the Company, considering his
vast experience, expertise and immense contribution made to the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Company has also received declarations from Mr. Gopalji M. Rana that he meet with the criteria of
independence as prescribed under both, sub-section (6) of Section 149 of the Actand under Regulation 25 of the
Listing Regulations.
The Members are, therefore, requested to grant their approval by way of a Special Resolution for the continuation
of appointment of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997) as a “Non-Executive, Independent Director” of the
Company, who is not liable to retire by rotation.
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None of the other Directors / Key Managerial Personnel of the Company / their relatives are, inany way, concerned
or interested, financially or otherwise, in the resolution set out at item no. 6 of the Notice.
The Board recommends the Special Resolution set out at Item Nos. 6 of the Notice for approval by the members.
By order of the Board of Directors
For Fiberweb (India) Limited
Place: Mumbai
Date: : 06th August, 2021

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Registered Office:
Air Port Road,
Kadaiya, Nani Daman
Daman (U.T.) 396 210.
CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
E-mail:fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com
Website: www.fiberwebindia.com
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19th August, 1939
30th September, 2018
B.Com. LL.B., F.C.A. Practicing
Chartered Accountant
Expert in field of Finance, Management, Management & Marketing
Accounting, Auditing, Taxation and Law
also having good knowledge about
plastic industries for last 30 years.
- Sun Properties Pvt. Ltd.,
- Star Developers Pvt. Ltd.,
- Parijat Pvt. Ltd.,
- Sun Capital & Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.
NIL

35,54,873 equity shares
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth and Mrs. Soniya
Pravin Sheth are related as husband
and wife. Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth son of
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth.
As per Nomination and Remuneration
Policy of the Company

Date of Birth

Date of appointment

Qualification

Nature of Expertise

Directorship held in other Public and
Private Companies

List of Membership/ Chairmanship of the
Committees* of other Board as at 31st
March, 2021

Shareholding in Fiberweb (India) Limited
as on 31st March, 2021

Relationship between directors inter-se

Terms and Conditions of appointment

As per Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the
Company

-

NIL

NIL

NIL

B.E. Bachelor of Engineering,
M.B.A.

25th September, 2018

24th June, 1942

01982997

00138797

DIN

Mr. Gopalji M. Rana

Mr. Pravin V. Sheth

Name of the Director

As per Nomination and
Remuneration Policy of the
Company

-

NIL

NIL

NIL

Experienced in Trading and
Marketing

B.Com. Graduation

6th February, 2020

27th August, 1964

08690226

Mr. Rajesh Umashankar Shukla

(In pursuant of SEBI (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015

DETAILS OF DIRECTORS SEEKING APPOINTMENT/RE-APPOINTMENT AT THE FORTHCOMING ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Annexure
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Registered Office:
Air Port Road,
Kadaiya, Nani Daman
Daman (U.T.) 396 210
CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
E-mail:fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com
Website: www.fiberwebindia.com

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021

*Only Audit and Stakeholders Relationship Committees are considered.

Nature of Expertise
Directorship held in other Public and Private Companies
List of Membership/ Chairmanship of the Committees* of other Board as at 31st
March, 2021
Shareholding in Fiberweb (India) Limited as on 31st March, 2021
Relationship between directors inter-se
Terms and Conditions of appointment

Name of the Director
DIN
Date of Birth
Date of appointment
Qualification

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

By order of the Board of Directors
For Fiberweb (India) Limited

NIL
As per Nomination and Remuneration Policy of the Company

Mr. Sorabh Gupta
05124195
15th July, 1968
28th May, 2021
M.Phil in Public Administration from Institute of Advance
Studies
Financial Market
NIL
NIL

DIRECTORS’ REPORT
Dear Shareholders,
Your Directors have pleasure in presenting the 36th Annual Report and Audited Financial Statements (Standalone
and Consolidated) of the Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021.
SUMMARISED FINANCIAL RESULTS:					
Particulars

2020-21
Standalone

Sales and other Receipts

(` In Lakhs)
2019-20

Consolidated

Standalone

Consolidated

10863.17

10863.17

9936.38

9936.38

2358.84

2358.84

1666.56

1666.56

512.80

512.80

471.32

471.32

1846.04

1846.04

1195.24

1195.24

-

-

-

-

Profit/ (Loss) before and after taxation

1437.17

1437.17

1018.24

1018.24

Balance carried from earlier year

6530.26

8114.92

5512.02

7096.67

-

-

-

-

Profit available for appropriation

1437.17

1437.17

1018.24

1018.24

Balance carried forward to next year

7823.47

9408.12

6530.26

8114.92

Gross Profit / (Loss) before depreciation
Less: Depreciation
Profit from regular Activities
Extra ordinary items (Net)

Other Adjustments (Dividend)

BUSINESS OUTLOOK:
During the year under the review, the total revenue of your Company has been increased by about 9.33%. Due to
the revenue from the MELT BLOWN machine installed in 2018, your Company could achieve the sales turnover
of ` 109 Crore. Due to various methods taken by the Company there was improvement in the profitability of the
Company as against last year’s profit of ` 10.18 crore, this year it is ` 14.37 crore increase by 40%.
In view of the above facts, the earning per share of the face value of shares ` 10.00 each has gone up from `
3.54 to ` 4.99.
During the year the Company’s 100% subsidiary had to stop the business of exporting to USA from the month
of September, 2018, due to high tariff levied by USA on materials imported from China. As you are aware
the subsidiary was buying from China and Exporting to USA and the business was well established giving
approximately 10% profitability. However, due to high tariff levied the business is unviable.
COVID-19 PANDEMIC:
The COVID-19 pandemic developed rapidly into a global crisis, forcing governments to enforce lock-downs of all
economic activity, resulting temporary disruption in the manufacturing activity of the company. There is complete
ban of Melt Blown Non- woven Fabrics since 19th March, 2020 and the Company has developed local market of
its Melt Blown Products. Necessary steps have been taken to ensure the smooth functioning of the operations of
the Company. Your directors are hoping that, there won’t be any further impact on the Company.
DIVIDEND:
The Board of Directors after considering various factors including expansion planned for Flat Bond Project and to
conserve resources, have deemed it prudent not to recommend any final dividend on equity shares for the year
ended 31st March, 2021.
TRANFSER TO RESERVES:
For the year ended March 31, 2021, your Directors do not propose to transfer any amount to the General Reserve
and amount of ` 1437.17 Lakh is proposed to be retained as surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss account
under the heading Retained Earnings.
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SHARE CAPITAL:
The Paid up Equity Share Capital of the Company as on March 31, 2021 was ` 28,79,17,100 divided into
2,87,91,710 Equity shares having face value of ` 10 each. During the year under review, the Company has not
issued any shares with differential rights, sweat equity shares and equity shares under Employees Stock Option
Scheme.
The Company has paid Listing Fees for the financial year 2020-21 to each of the Stock Exchanges, where its
equity shares are listed.
EXPANSION AND MODERNISATION:
The Company proposes to expand their manufacturing facility in Flat Bond Fabrics over and above their existing
Spun Bond and Melt Blown plants which is presently at Nani Daman which will requires huge funds. The Company
invested in wholly owned subsidiary Sheth Non Woven Trading FZE. The details of the expansion programme is
available at Company’s website: HYPERLINK http://www.fiberwebindia.com.
INVESTMENT IN SUBSIDIARY, JOINT VENTURE AND ASSOCIATE COMPANY:
Sheth Non Woven Trading FZE, continues to be a wholly owned subsidiary of your Company, set up in RAS
AL Khaimah Free Trade Zone United Arab Emirates. As of March 31, 2018 the Capital of the Company is AED
100000 (One Lakh) divided into 100 (One Hundred) Shares of the value of AED 1000 (One Thousand) each.
During the year under review, there have been no companies which have become or have ceased to be the
subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies of your Company. Further Neither the Managing Director nor
the Whole-time Directors of your Company receive any remuneration or commission from any of its subsidiaries.
A Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of its Subsidiary Company pursuant to first
proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts)
Rules, 2014 is provided as Annexure I to this report in form AOC – 1.
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 129 of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 and applicable Accounting Standards, the Company has prepared a Consolidated Financial Statement of
the Company, its Subsidiary Company in the same form and manner as that of the Company, which shall be
laid before the ensuing 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company along with the laying of the Company’s
Standalone Financial Statement.
The Annual Report of the Company inter alia contains the StandaloneAudited Financial Statement of the Company
and Consolidated Audited Financial Statement of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary Company
ShethNon Woven Trading FZE.
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 136(1) of the Companies Act, 2013, the Standalone Audited Financial
Statements of the Company, Consolidated Financial Statements along with relevant documents required to be
attached theretoand separate Audited Financial Statements in respect of its Subsidiary Company are also placed
on the Company’s website: www.fiberwebindia.com.
The Audited Financial Statements of the Subsidiary Company and the related detailed information will be made
available to any member of the Company / its Subsidiary Company, who may be interested in obtaining the same.
The Audited Financial Statements of your Company and of its Subsidiary Company would be kept for inspection
by any Member at the Registered Office of your Company.
HEALTH, SAFETY AND ENVIRONMENT:
Top priority continues to be given to environmental protection for all the units of the Company by keeping emission
levels to the minimum possible. Adequate Insurance cover has been taken for properties of the Company including
Buildings, Plant & Machineries, Stocks and other assets.
All Plant sites of the Company are environment regulations compliant.
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PUBLIC DEPOSITS:
The Company has not accepted or renewed any amount falling within the purview of provisions of Section 73 of
the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Acceptance of Deposit) Rules, 2014 during the year under
review. Hence, the requirement for furnishing of details of deposits which are not in compliance with the Chapter
V of the Act is not applicable.
CONSERVATION OF ENERGY, TECHNOLOGY ABSORPTION, FOREIGN EXCHANGE EARNINGS AND
OUTGO:
Particulars in respect of conservation of energy, technology absorption and foreign exchange earnings and outgo,
as required under Section 134(3) (m) of the Companies Act, 2013 read with the Companies (Accounts) Rules,
2014 are set out as follows.
The Company constantly takes effective steps to attain energy conservation.
The Company does not employ any foreign technology which needs absorption or adaptation.
Relevant figures of foreign exchange earnings and outgo are given in notes to accounts paragraph annexed to
the financial statements.
SEGMENT REPORTING:
Your Company's main business is "Polymer Processing" and all other activities of the company revolve around this
main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments within the Company and hence, the segment
wise reporting as defined in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments (Accounting Standards 17) is not applicable to
the Company.
SUBSIDIARIES, JOINT VENTURES AND ASSOCIATE COMPANIES:
During the year under review, companies listed in Annexure I to this Report no company have become or ceased
to be Company’s subsidiaries, joint ventures or associate companies.
A statement containing the salient features of the financial statement of subsidiary / associate / joint venture
companies is provided as Annexure I to this report and therefore not repeated to avoid duplication.
The audited financial statement including the consolidated financial statement of the Company and all other
documents required to be attached thereto may be accessed on the Company’s website at the www.fiberwebindia.
com. The financial statements of each of the subsidiaries may also be accessed on the Company’s website at the
link: www.fiberwebindia.com. These documents will also be available for inspection on all working days, that is,
except Saturdays, Sundays and Public Holidays at the Registered Office of the Company.
The Company has formulated a policy for determining material subsidiaries. The Policy may be accessed at the
link: www.fiberwebindia.com.
CHANGE IN THE NATURE OF BUSINESS, IF ANY:
There was no change in the nature of business of your Company during the Financial Year ended 31st March,
2021.
MATERIAL CHANGES AND COMMITMENTS AFFECTING FINANCIAL POSITION:
No material changes and commitments, affecting the financial position of the Company occurred between the
end of the Financial Year of the Company i.e. 31st March, 2021and the date of this Directors’ Report i.e. 06th
August, 2021.
CORPORATE GOVERNANCE:
Your Company has always been conducting its business with due compliance of laws, rules, regulations
and with sound internal control systems and procedures. As per Clause ‘C’ of Schedule V on Annual Report
pursuant to Regulations 34(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure
Requirements) Regulations, 2015 the Company has complied with all the provisions of Corporate Governance.
The Company has obtained a Certificate from the Auditors of the Company regarding compliance of conditions
of Corporate Governance as stipulated in the SEBI (LODR) Regulations, 2015. This is annexed to the Directors
Report.
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POLICY ON DIRECTORS’ APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION:
Including criteria for determining qualification, positive attributes, independence of a Director, policy relating to
remuneration for Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and other employees;
Policy on Directors’ Appointment
Policy on Directors’ appointment is to follow the criteria as laid down under the Companies Act, 2013 and the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
Emphasis is given to persons from diverse fields or professions.
Policy on Remuneration
Guiding Policy on remuneration of Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the Company is that –
•

There has never been union since incorporation and is not likely to be there in view of cordial relation with
workers. As such the Board felt that there is no need to form policy for unionized workers.

•

Remuneration to Key Managerial Personnel, Senior Executives, Managers, Staff and Workmen (non
Unionized) is industry driven in which it is operating taking into account the performance leverage and factors
such as to attract and retain quality talent.

•

For Directors, it is based on the shareholders resolutions, provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
framed therein, circulars and guidelines issued by Central Government and other authorities from time to
time.

ANNUAL EVALUATION BY THE BOARD OF ITS OWN PERFORMANCE, ITS COMMITTEES AND INDIVIDUAL
DIRECTORS:
The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own performance, its
committees and individual directors. The results of the evaluation are satisfactory and adequate and meet the
requirement of the Company.
DECLARATION OF INDEPENDENCE BY THE INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS:
Pursuant to Section 149(7) of the Companies Act, 2013 as well as Regulation 25(8) of the Listing Regulations, all
the Independent Directors of the Company have made a declaration confirming the compliance of the conditions
of the independence stipulated in Section 149(6) of the Act, Regulation 16(1) (b) of SEBI Listing Regulations and
the same has been taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Company.
The Independent Directors of the Company have confirmed that they have registered their names with the
Institute of Corporate Affairs for inclusion of their name in the data bank.
DIRECTORS AND KEY MANAGERIAL PERSONNEL:
During the year, Mr. Rajesh Umashankar Shukla (DIN: 08690226) was regularized as Executive Director at the
35th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th September, 2020.
During the year, Mr. C. A. Rege (DIN: 01707700) was re-appointed as an Independent Director of the Company
to hold office for a second consecutive term of 5 (five) years at the 35thAnnual General Meeting of the Company
held on 30th September, 2020.
Appointments / Re-appointments:
In accordance with the provisions of the Act and the Articles of Association of the Company, Mr. Pravin V.Sheth
and Mr. Rajesh U. Shukla, Directors of the Company, retire by rotation at the ensuing Annual General Meeting
and being eligible offer themselves for reappointment. Your Directors recommend that re-election of Pravin V.
Sheth and Mr. Rajesh U. Shukla will be in the interest of the Company.
Further on the recommendation of the Nomination and Remuneration Committee, the Board of Directors had
appointed Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195) as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Independent) of the
Company in their meeting held on 28th May, 2021 not liable to retire by rotation, who shall hold the office until the
Annual General Meeting. The appointment of Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195) as Independent Director forms
part of the Notice of the forthcoming 36th Annual General Meeting (‘AGM’) and Resolutions are recommended
for the Member’s approval.
Annual Report 2020-21
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Pursuant to sub-regulation (1A) of Regulation 17 of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 inserted by the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) (Amendment) Regulations, 2018, approval of the Members by way of
a Special Resolution is necessary for appointment / continuation of appointment of any Non-Executive Director
who has attained the age of 75 (Seventy Five) years. Hence approval of the Members sought for the continuation
of appointment of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797) and Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997).
Profile of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth, Mr. Sorabh Gupta, Mr. Gopalji M. Rana and Mr. Rajesh U. Shukla, as required by
Regulations 36(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015 (‘Listing Regulations’) and Clause 1.2.5 of the Secretarial Standard - 2, is given in the Notice
of the 36th Annual General Meeting.
Non Disqualification of Directors Certification is attached as Annexure IV in this report.
DIRECTORS' RESPONSIBILITY STATEMENT:
Pursuant to the requirements of Section 134(3) (c) and 134(5) of the Companies Act, 2013 and on the basis of
explanation and compliance certificate given by the executives of the Company, and subject todisclosures in the
Annual Accounts and also on the basis of discussions with the Statutory Auditors of the Company from time to
time, we state as under:
●

That in the preparation of the accounts for the financial period ended 31st March, 2021, the applicable
accounting standards have been followed along with proper explanation relating to material departures;

●

That the Directors have selected such accounting policies and applied them consistently and made judgments
and estimates that were reasonable and prudent so as to give a true and fair view of the state of affairs of the
Company at the end of the financial year and of the profit of the Company for the period under review;

●

That the Directors have taken proper and sufficient care for the maintenance of adequate accounting records
in accordance with provisions of the Companies Act, 2013 for safeguarding the assets of the Company and
for preventing and detecting fraud and other irregularities;

●

That the Directors have prepared the annual accounts for the financial period ended 31st March, 2021on a
'going concern' basis.

●

The Directors have laid down internal financial controls to be followed by the Company and that such internal
financial controls are adequate and are operating effectively; and

●

The Directors have devised proper system to ensure compliance with the provisions of all applicable laws
and that such systems are adequate and operating effectively.

NUMBER OF MEETINGS OF THE BOARD:
Five (5) meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year. For further details, please refer report on
Corporate Governance in the Annual Report.
DETAILS OF COMMITTEE OF DIRECTORS:
Composition of Audit Committee of Directors, Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors and
Stakeholders Relationship/ Grievance Committee of Directors, Number of meetings held of each Committee
during the financial year 2020-21and meetings attended by each member of the Committee as required under the
Companies Act, 2013 are provided in Corporate Governance Report forming part of the report.
All the recommendations made by the Audit Committee were accepted by the Board.
SECRETARIAL STANDARDS:
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly complied by the Company. Also SS-3 “Dividend”
is duly complied by the Company whenever applicable.
PARTICULARS OF CONTRACT OR ARRANGEMENT WITH RELATED PARTY:
There is no transaction with Related Party which requires disclosure under Section 134(3) (h) of the Companies
Act, 2013 and Rule 8(2) of the Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014.
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There was no Material Related party transaction(s) made with the Company’s promoters, Directors, Key
Managerial Personnel or their relatives as specified under Regulation 23 of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
All Related Party Transactions are placed before the Audit Committee for their prior approval. The Policy on
Materiality of Related Party Transactions and on dealing with Related Party Transactions as approved by the
Board is uploaded on the Company’s website: www.fiberwebindia.com.
Since all the transaction with Related Parties entered during the Financial Year 2020-21 by the Company, were
in its ordinary course of business and on arm’s length basis FORM AOC- 2 is not applicable to the Company.
However the same are provided in the financial statement forming part of this annual report.
PARTICULARS OF LOANS GIVEN, INVESTMENTS MADE, GUARANTEES GIVEN AND SECURITIES
PROVIDED:
Particulars of Loans given, investments made, guarantees given and securities provided, if any, along with the
purpose for which the loan or guarantee or security is proposed to be utilized by the recipientare provided in the
standalone financial statement forming part of this annual report.
INTERNAL FINANCIAL CONTROLS:
The Company is having in place Internal Financial Controls System. The Internal Financial Controls with reference
to the financial statements were adequate and operating effectively.
RISK MANAGEMENT:
The Company has laid down a well defined risk management policy. The Board periodically reviews the risk and
suggests steps to be taken to control and mitigation the same through a proper defined framework.
The Company manages monitors and reports on the principle risks and uncertainties that can impact its ability
to achieve its strategic objectives. The Company’s management systems, organizational structures, processes,
standards, code of conduct and behaviors that governs how the Group conducts the business of the Company
and manages associated risks.
The constitution of Risk Management Committee is not mandatory for your Company as per provisions of
Regulation of 21 of LODR is applicable to the Top 1000 listed entities. However, the Company has already
constituted the Committee.
VIGIL MECHANISM:
The Vigil Mechanism of the Company, which also incorporates a whistle blower policy in terms of the Listing
Agreement, includes an Ethics & Compliance Task Force comprising senior executives of the Company. Protected
disclosures can be made by a whistle blower through an e-mail, or dedicated telephone line or a letter to the Task
Force or the Chairman of the Audit Committee. The Policy on vigil mechanism and whistle blower policy may be
accessed on the Company’s website at the link: www.fiberwebindia.com
WHISTLE BLOWER MECHANISM:
Your Company has put in place Whistle Blower Mechanism. The detailed mechanism is given in Corporate
Governance Report forming part of this report.
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES:
Pursuant to the provisions of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules,
2014, the names and other particulars of employees are set out in a separate statement attached herewith and
forming part of the report. (Annexure-II)
CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY (CSR):
As per section 135 of Companies Act, 2013, all the companies having net worth of ` 500 crores or more, or a
turnover of ` 1,000 crores or more or a net profit of ` 5 crores or more during financial year will be required to
constitute corporate social responsibility (CSR) committee of the board of directors comprising three or more
directors, at least one of whom will be an independent director.
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Aligning with the guidelines, we have constituted a committee comprising of Mr. C. A. Rege (Non-Executive &
Independent Director) being the Chairman of Committee, Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah (Non-Executive & Independent
Director) and Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth (Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director) being the members of the
Committee. The committee is responsible for formulating and monitoring the CSR policy of the Company.
The Annual Report on CSR activities of the Company is furnished in Annexure III and is attached to this report.
ANNUAL RETURN:
Pursuant to Section 92(3) read with Section 134(3)(a) of the Act, the Annual Return as on 31st March, 2021 is
available on the Company’s website at www.fiberwebindia.com
PARTICULARS OF EMPLOYEES AND RELATED DISCLOSURES:
In terms of the provisions of Section 197(12) of the Act read with Rules 5(2) and 5(3) of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, a statement showing the names and
other particulars of the employees drawing remuneration in excess of the limits set out in the said rules should be
provided in the Annual Reports. None of the Company’s employees were covered by the disclosure requirement.
Disclosures pertaining to remuneration and other details as required under Section 197(12) of the Act read with
Rule 5(1) of the Companies (Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014 are not
provided in the Annual Report but will be provided to shareholders on asking for the same.
Having regard to the provisions of the first proviso to Section 136(1) of the Act and as advised, the Annual
Report excluding the aforesaid information is being sent to the members of the Company. The said information is
available for inspection at the registered office of the Company during working hours and any member interested
in obtaining such information may write to the Company Secretary and the same will be furnished on request. The
full Annual Report including the aforesaid information is being sent electronically to all those members who have
registered their email addresses and is available on the Company’s website.
DEPOSITORY SYSTEM:
Electronic trading of the Company's Equity Shares has been made compulsory by the Securities & Exchange
Board of India (SEBI) from 30th October, 2000. As on 31st March, 2021, about 95.77% shareholding representing
2,75,74,463 Equity Shares of the Company has been dematerialized. Your Company has executed agreements
with both NSDL and CDSL for demat of its shares.
INTER-SE TRANSFER OF SHARES AMONG PROMOTERS:
During the year there were no inter-se transfer of shares among promoters which is carried out in compliance with
the provision of the Companies Act, 2013 and rules and regulation of SEBI (LODR) Regulation, 2015.
AUDITORS AND AUDITORS' REPORT
M/s. Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates, Chartered Accountants (Firm Registration Number 138182W), have been
appointed as the Auditors of the Company to hold office for a term of 5(five) consecutive years from the conclusion
of 34th Annual General Meeting held on 26th September, 2019 until the conclusion of the 39th Annual General
Meeting, i.e. for the Financial Years from 2019-20 to 2023-24.
The notes on financial statement referred to in the Auditors' Report are self explanatory and therefore do not
call for any further explanation. The Auditor’s Report does not contain any qualification, reservation or adverse
remark.
SECRETARIAL AUDITOR:
Pursuant to the provisions of Section 204 of the Companies Act, 2013, read along with Rule 9 of the Companies
(Appointment and Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014, the Board of Directors of the Company
had appointed M/s. K. Pratik & Associates, Mumbai, Practising Company Secretary (COP No. 12368) as
Secretarial Auditor, for the year ending 31st March, 2021. The Secretarial Audit Report contains Qualifications,
Reservation and explanations, if any are self explanatory.
The Secretarial Auditor has submitted its Report in Form No. MR-3 for the Financial Year ended 31st March, 2021
and the same is set out in Annexure V, forming part of this Report.
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GENERAL:
Your Directors state that no disclosure or reporting is required in respect of the following items as there were no
transactions on these items during the year under review:
1. Issue of equity shares with differential rights as to dividend, voting or otherwise.
2. Issue of shares (including sweat equity shares) to employees of the Company under any scheme.
3. Neither the Managing Director nor the Whole-time Directors of the Company receive any remuneration or
commission from any of its subsidiaries.
4. No significant or material orders were passed by the Regulators or Courts or Tribunals which impact the
going concern status and Company’s operations in future.
5. There was no instance of fraud during the year under review, which required the Statutory Auditors to report
to the Audit Committee and / or Board under Section 143(12) of the Act and Rules framed thereunder.
Your Directors further state that during the year under review, there were no cases filed pursuant to the Sexual
Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013.
ACKNOWLEDGEMENT:
Yours Directors place on record their deep appreciation of the continued support received from shareholders,
bankers and entire staff of the Company.
For and on behalf of the Board

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021

Soniya P. Sheth
Pravin V. Sheth
DirectorDirector
DIN: 02658794
DIN: 00138797

Registered Office:
Air Port Road,
Kadaiya, Nani Daman,
Daman (U.T.) 396 210
CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
e-mail:fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com
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Annexure – I

Form AOC – 1
(Pursuant to first proviso to sub-section (3) of section 129 read with rule 5 of Companies (Accounts) Rules, 2014)
Statement containing salient features of the Financial Statement of Subsidiaries/Associate Companies/ Joint
Ventures.
Part “A”: Subsidiaries
						

Sr. No. Particulars
1.
Name of Company
2.

Reporting period

3.

Reporting currency

4.

Exchange rate at the end of the relevant Financial year in
the case of foreign subsidiaries

(Currency: Indian Rupees)

Sheth Non Woven Trading FZE
Year ending 31/03/2021
USD
1 US $ = INR 73.50
Amount in INR in Lakhs

a)

Share Capital

18.84

b)

Reserves & Surplus

1677.06

c)

Total Assets

1774.39

d)

Total liabilities

1774.39

e)

Investments

-

f)
g)
h)

Turnover
Profit /(Loss) before taxation
Provision for taxation

-

i)

Profit/ (Loss) after taxation

-

j)

Proposed dividend

-

k)

% of Shareholding

100%

Notes:
1. Name of Subsidiary which are yet to commence operations – N.A.
2. Name of Subsidiaries which have been liquidated or sold during the year – N.A.
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Annexure II

ANNEXURE TO DIRECTOR’S REPORT
STATEMENT CONTAINING INFORMATION AS PER SECTION 197(12) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 2013 READ
WITH RULES 5(2) AND 5(3) OF THE COMPANIES (APPOINTMENT AND REMUNERATION OF MANAGERIAL
PERSONNEL) RULES, 2014 AND FORMING PART OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT FOR THE YEAR ENDED, 31ST
MARCH, 2021.
Name, Designation, Remuneration Received (`) Nature of Employment, Qualification, Experience (Years),
Date of Commencement of Employment, Age (Years), Last Employment held, Equity Share in the Company
(Percentage).
(a) Employed throughout the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration at a rate in aggregate not less
than ` 1,02,00,000/NIL
(b) Employed throughout the financial year and was in receipt of remuneration at a rate in aggregate not less
than ` 8,50,000/- per month.
NIL
(c) Employed throughout the financial year or part thereof, was in receipt of remuneration in the year which, in
the aggregate or at a rate which in the aggregate was in excess of that drawn by the whole-time Director/
Managerial Director and holds by himself or along with his spouse and dependent children, not less than 2%
of the equity shares of the Company.
NIL
Notes:
1. Remuneration includes salaries, house rent allowance, personal allowance, ex-gratia, performance allowance
, leave travel assistance, encashment of leave, medical expenses/ allowances, accident insurance premium,
Company’s Contribution to Provident and Superannuation funds and the monetary value of perquisites
calculated in accordance with the provisions of the Income-tax Act, 1961 and the Rules made there under
and excludes provision for retiring gratuity for which separate figure is not available.
2. The above employees are not relative of any Director of the Company.
For and on behalf of the Board of Directors
Pravin V. Sheth
Director
DIN: 00138797
Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021
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Annexure III

ANNUAL REPORT ON CSR ACTIVITIES
1. Brief outline on CSR Policy of the Company:
Your Company is committed to operate and grow its business in a socially responsible way. The Company’s
vision is to grow its business, whilst reducing the environmental impact of its operations and increasing its
positive social impact. The Board shared its vision to actively help / assist the weaker sections of the Society,
mainly in and around the geographical areas where Company’s plants / offices / customers are located,
Promoting Education / Skill Development / Upliftment of weaker section of the society / Medical Relief /
Relief to poors and advancement of general public utility while constituting its CSR Policy. The Company has
extended funds to trusts for promoting education and Medical in rural and urban areas and helping weaker
section of the society.
2. Composition of the CSR Committee:
SR.
No.

Name of Director

Designation / Nature of
Directorship

1
2
3

Mr. C. A. Rege
Chairman, Independent Director
Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah Member, Independent Director
Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth Member, Non-Executive NonIndependent Director

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
held during the year
4
4
4

Number of meetings
of CSR Committee
attended during the
year
4
4
4

3. Provide the web-link where Composition of CSR committee, CSR Policy and CSR projects approved
by the board are disclosed on the website of the company:
Composition of the CSR committee shared above and is available on the Company’s website on: http://www.
fiberwebindia.com.
CSR policy – http://www.fiberwebindia.com.
CSR projects – http://www.fiberwebindia.com.
4. Provide the details of Impact assessment of CSR projects carried out in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of
rule 8 of the Companies (Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014, if applicable (attach the
report) – Not Applicable
5. Details of the amount available for set off in pursuance of sub-rule (3) of rule 7 of the Companies
(Corporate Social responsibility Policy) Rules, 2014 and amount required for set off for the financial
year, if any: Not Applicable
6. Average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 1424.00 Lakhs
7. (a) Two percent of average net profit of the company as per section 135(5): ` 28.48 Lakhs
(b) Surplus arising out of the CSR projects or programmes or activities of the previous financial
years: Nil
(c) Amount required to be set off for the financial year, if any: Nil
(d) Total CSR obligation for the financial year (7a+7b-7c): ` 28.48 Lakhs
8. (a) CSR amount spent or unspent for the financial year:
		

Total Amount Spent for the Financial Year. (in `): ` 40.75 lakhs

		

Amount Unspent (in `): Nil

(b) Details of CSR amount spent against ongoing projects for the financial year: Nil
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(c) Details of CSR amount spent against other than ongoing projects for the financial year:
(1)
Sl.
No.

(2)
Name of the
Project

(3)
Item from the
list of activities
in schedule VII
to the Act

(4)
Local
area
(Yes/
No)

(5)
Location of the
project.
State District

(6)
Amount
spent
for the
project
(in `)

(7)
Mode of
implementation
- Direct (Yes/
No)

1.

Supporting
To Students
Promoting
Healthcare

Education,
Schedule VII(ii)
Healthcare/
Medical Relief,
Schedule VII(i)
Healthcare/
Medical Relief,
Schedule VII(i)

Yes

Mumbai,
Maharashtra
Mumbai,
Maharashtra

25,75,000

No

6,00,000

No

Daman, UTDaman Diu

9,00,000

No

2.
3.

Promoting
Healthcare

Yes
Yes

Total

(8)
Mode of implementation Through implementing agency
Name
CSR
registration
number
D.Y. Patil
NA
University
Sheth Public
NA
Charitable Trust
Jairamdas
Agarwal
Charitable Trust

NA

40,75,000

(d) Amount spent in Administrative Overheads: Nil
(e) Amount spent on Impact Assessment, if applicable: Not Applicable
(f) Total amount spent for the Financial Year (8b+8c+8d+8e) : ` 40.75 Lakhs
(g) Excess amount for set off, if any: Nil
9. (a) Details of Unspent CSR amount for the preceding three financial years: Not Applicable
(b) Details of CSR amount spent in the financial year for ongoing projects of the preceding financial
year(s): Not Applicable
10. In case of creation or acquisition of capital asset, furnish the details relating to the asset so created
or acquired through CSR spent in the financial year: Not Applicable
11. Specify the reason(s), if the company has failed to spend two percent of the average net profit as per
section 135(5): Not Applicable
For Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Director
DIN: 00138797
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Annexure IV
CERTIFICATE OF NON-DISQUALIFICATION OF DIRECTORS
(Pursuant to Regulation 34(3) read with Schedule V Para C clause (10)(i) of the SEBI (Listing Obligations and
Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015)
To
The Members of,
Fiberweb India Limited
Airport Road, Kadaiya Village,
Daman – 396210 (U. T.)
We have examined the relevant registers, records, forms, returns and disclosures received from the Directors
of Fiberweb (India) Limited having CIN : L25209DD1985PLC004694 and having registered office at Airport
Road, Kadaiya Village, Daman – 396210 (U. T.) (hereinafter referred to as 'the Company'), produced before us in
electronic mode by the Company for the purpose of issuing this Certificate, in accordance with Regulation 34(3)
read with Schedule V Para-C Sub clause 10(i) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations
and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the verifications (including Directors Identification
Number (DIN) status at the portal www.mca.gov.in) as considered necessary and explanations furnished to us by
the Company & its officers, We hereby certify that none of the Directors on the Board of the Company as stated
below for the financial year ending on 31st March 2021 have been debarred or disqualified from being appointed
or continuing as Directors of companies by the Securities and Exchange Board of India, Ministry of Corporate
Affairs or any such other Statutory Authority.
Sr.
No.
1
2
3
4
5
6
7

Name of the Director
Pravin Vrajlal Sheth
Bhavesh Pravin Sheth
Soniya Pravin Sheth
Bhadresh Hasmukhbhai Shah
Gopalji Motiram Rana
Chidambar Arvind Rege
Rajesh Umashankar Shukla

DIN

Date of appointment in company

00138797
02862487
02658794
00629457
01982997
01707700
08690226

01/08/2007
30/01/2010
30/03/2015
07/01/1997
16/01/2008
30/04/2009
06/02/2020

Ensuring the eligibility for the appointment / continuity of every Director on the Board is the responsibility of the
management of the Company. My responsibility is to express an opinion on these based on my verification. This
certificate is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the efficiency or effectiveness
with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
For K Pratik & Associates
Practising Company Secetary

Date: May 28, 2021					
Place: Mumbai		

Pratik Harshad Kalsariya
Proprietor
M. No. A33502
C. P. No. 12368
* UDIN No. : A033502C000380376

* Note: Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) is generated for this certificate and same is reported to
the Institute of Company Secretaries of India and the UDIN is issued in accordance with the applicable provisions
of the ICSI Unique Document Identification Number (UDIN) Guidelines, 2019.
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Annexure V
FORM NO. MR -3

SECRETARIAL AUDIT REPORT

FOR THE FINANCIAL YEAR ENDED ON 31ST MARCH, 2021
[Pursuant to section 204(1) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule No. 9 of the Companies (Appointment and
Remuneration of Managerial Personnel) Rules, 2014]
To,
The Members,
FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED
Airport Road,
Kadaiya Village,,
Nani Daman,
Daman- 396210.
We have conducted the secretarial audit of the compliance of applicable statutory provisions and the adherence to
good corporate practices by M/s. Fiberweb (India) Limited herein after called “the Company”). Secretarial Audit
was conducted in a manner that provided us a reasonable basis for evaluating the corporate conducts/statutory
compliances and expressing our opinion thereon.
Based on our verification of the Company's books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records
maintained by the Company and also information provided by the Company, its officers, agents and authorized
representatives during the conduct of secretarial audit, we hereby report that in our opinion, the Company has
during the audit period covering the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 complied with the statutory provisions
listed hereunder and also that the Company has proper Board-processes and compliance- mechanism in place to
the extent, in the manner and subject to the reporting made hereinafter:
We have examined the books, papers, minute books, forms and returns filed and other records maintained by M/s.
Fiberweb (India) Limited for the financial year ended on 31st March, 2021 according to the provisions of:
(i) The Companies Act, 2013 (the Act) and the rules made there under:
(ii) The Securities Contracts (Regulation) Act, 1956 ('SCRA) and the rules made there under;
(iii) The Depositories Act, 1996 and the Regulations and Bye-laws framed there under;
(iv) Foreign Exchange Management Act, 1999 and the rules and regulations made there under to the extent of
Foreign Direct Investment, Overseas Direct Investment and External Commercial Borrowings;
(v) The Regulations and Guidelines prescribed under the Securities and Exchange Board of India Act, 1992
('SEBI Act') viz.:
(a) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Substantial Acquisition of Shares and Takeovers)
Regulations, 2011;
(b) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading) Regulations, 1992;
(c) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue of Capital and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2009;
(d) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Employee Stock Option Scheme and Employee Stock
Purchase Scheme) Guidelines, 1999;
(e) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Issue and Listing of Debt Securities) Regulations. 2008;
(f) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Registrars to an Issue and Share Transfer Agents)
Regulations, 1993 regarding the Companies Act and dealing with client;
(g) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Delisting of Equity Shares) Regulations, 2009; and
(h) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Buyback of Securities) Regulations, 1998;
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(i) The Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulations, 2015.
(vi) Other laws specificallyapplicable to the Company, namely;
1. Factories Act, 1948
2. Industrial Disputes Act, 1747
3. Payment of Wages Act, 1936
4. The Minimum Wages Act, 1948
5. Employees’ State Insurance Act, 1948
6. The Payment of Bonus Act, 1965
7. Payment of Gratuity Act, 1972
8. The Maternity Benefit Act, 1961
9. The Child Labour (Prohibition and Regulation) Act, 1986
10. The Industrial Employment (Standing Orders) Act, 1946
11. The Employees' Compensation Act, 1923 (earlier known as Workmen's Compensation Act, 1923)
12. Equal Remuneration Act, 1976
13. The Environment (Protection) Act, 1986
14. The Environment (Protection) Rules, 1986
15. The Hazardous Wastes (Management, Handling And Trans boundary Movement) Rules, 2008
16. The Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1974
17. Water (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Rules, 1975
18. The Air (Prevention & Control of Pollution) Act, 1981
19. The Air (Prevention & Control Of Pollution) Rules, 1982
20. Sale of Goods Act, 1930
21. Income Tax Act, 1961
22. Central Excise Act, 1944
23. Central Excise Rules, 2002
24. Central Sales Act, 1956
25. Service Tax Rules, 1994
26. The Sexual Harassment of Women at Workplace (Prevention, Prohibition and Redressal) Act, 2013
27. Customs Act, 1962
28. Wealth Tax Act, 1957
29. The Employee Provident Fund And Miscellaneous Provision Act, 1952
30. The Trade Union Act, 1926.
31. The Special Economic Zones Act, 2005.
The management of the Company has informed us that other than the Acts as mentioned above, there is no industry
specific law which is applicable to the Company.
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We have also examined compliance with the applicable clauses of the following:
(i) Secretarial Standards issued by The Institute of Company Secretaries of India.
(ii) The Listing Agreements entered into by the Company with the Bombay Stock Exchange and the Ahmedabad
Stock Exchange.
During the year under report, the Company has complied with the provisions of the Act, Rules, Regulations,
Guidelines, Standards, etc. as mentioned above except to the extent as mentioned below and subject to the fact
that the consolidated financial statements of this Company for the year ended 31st March, 2021 were prepared on
the basis of audited financial statements of Sheth Non Woven Trading F. Z. E. a subsidiary Company, for the year
ended on that date.
We further report that,
The Board of Directors of the Company is duly constituted with proper balance of Executive Directors, NonExecutive Directors and Independent Directors. The changes in the composition of the Board of Directors that took
place during the period under review were carried out in compliance with the provisions of the Act.
Adequate notice is given to all Directors to schedule the Board Meetings, agenda and detailed notes on agenda
were sent at least seven days in advance and a system exists for seeking and obtaining further information and
clarifications on the agenda items before the meeting and for meaningful participation at the meeting.
Majority decision is carried through while the dissenting members' views are captured and recorded as part of the
minutes.
We further report that there are adequate systems and processes in the Company commensurate with the size
and operations of the Company to monitor and ensure compliance with applicable laws, rules, regulations and
guidelines.
				
Date: 06/08/2021
Place: Mumbai

M/S. K. PRATIK & ASSOCIATE
Practising Company Secretary
M. No. A33502 COP No.: 12368
UDIN: A033502C000749250

Note: This report is to be read with our letter of even date which is annexed as ‘ANNEXURE A’ and forms an
integral part of this report.

Annual Report 2020-21

47

ANNEXURE A’
To,
The Members,
FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED
Airport Road,
Kadaiya Village,
Nani Daman,
Daman- 396210.
Our report of even date is to be read along with this letter.
1. Maintenance of secretarial record is the responsibility of the management of the Company. Our responsibility
is to express an opinion on these secretarial records based on our audit.
2. We have followed the audit practices and processes as were appropriate to obtain reasonable assurance
about the correctness of the contents of the Secretarial records. The verification was done on test basis to
ensure that correct facts are reflected in secretarial records. We believe that the processes and practices, we
followed provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.
3. We have not verified the correctness and appropriateness of financial records and Books of Accounts of the
Company.
4. Where ever required, we have obtained the Management representation about the compliance of laws, rules
and regulations and happening of events etc.
5. The compliance of the provisions of Corporate and other applicable laws, rules, regulations, standards is the
responsibility of management. Our examination was limited to the verification of procedures on test basis.
6. The Secretarial Audit report is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor of the
efficacy or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
				
Date: 06/08/2021
Place: Mumbai
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MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
INDUSTRY- STRUCTURE AND DEVELOPMENT:
As you are aware, your Company has been providing innovative and application focused products to enhance
value of its customers globally. The customers are from Technical Textile, Furnishing, Agriculture, Hygiene and
personal care industries. The Company markets several value added products, which are steadily gaining
strength in the overseas market through a net work of dealers and customers. We continue to develop new and
innovative products for various applications. The demand for the products of the Company is dependent on the
global market and economic growth.
The year 2020-21 has been very progressive and it is hoped to scale greater heights.
BUSINESS OUTLOOK:
The Company sees several opportunities for profitable growth in the areas of value added products, and a growing
demand both in the international and domestic markets. Strong quality product development and marketing
efforts have enabled the Company to stay ahead. The Company has also improved its geographic presence by
enlarging its position in Europe and the USA.
OPPORTUNITIES AND RISKS:
The Company’s products depend on the growth of the Global economy and rise in the purchasing power of the
population. The spread of the Company’s business across the continents has enabled it to cater to a steady
demand base, thereby minimizing the dependence on any particular market.
Lack of Govt. backing, frequent policy change, constrains increase in ocean freight and PP prices are major
constrains.
In view of the anticipated growth in the demand for the products of the company in the years to come
opportunities for the company to improve its performance is bright. The Company has also decided to improve its
manufacturing efficiency by incorporating various balancing equipments and also by placing emphasis on efficient
and professional management of the available resources of the company. However, the changing International
developments affecting the production and distribution of the essential petrochemical products and raw materials
are likely to have it’s effect in our activities.
The plant and machinery of the Company are of the state of the art technology. The products of the company are
of best quality and have been accepted by well-known end-users in many advanced countries like U.S.A, U.K.
etc.
In view of very good order book position the Board will be considering expansion and /or diversification plan.
RISK MANAGEMENT
Risk Management is an important business aspect in the current economic environment and its objective is to
identify, monitor and take mitigation measures on a timely basis in respect of the events that may pose risks for
the business.
The Company has a robust Risk Management Policy and Procedure in place for effective identification and
monitoring of risks and implementation of mitigation plans. The Risk Management Committee reviews and
monitors the identified risks and mitigation plans at regular interval. Some of the risks identified and analysed by
the Management are as under:
The Audit Committee and the Board are apprised of the significant risks and mitigation efforts made by the
Management in its quarterly meetings.
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SEGMENT REPORTING:
Your Company's main business is "Polymer Processing" and all other activities of the company revolve around this
main business. As such there are no separate reportable segments within the Company and hence, the segment
wise reporting as defined in Ind AS 108 – Operating Segments (Accounting Standards 17) is not applicable to
the Company.
HUMAN/INDUSTRIAL RELATIONS:
Since the very inception of the company, the industrial relation aspect of the company has been very cordial at
all locations of the company. The Company believes that manpower is the most valuable primary resource for
the growth of the organization. Therefore the company has recruited competent managerial personnel and taken
steps for strengthening their efficiency and competency, through their involvement in the company’s development
and by installation of effective system for improving productivity.
The Number of permanent employees on the rolls of the Company as on 31st March, 2021 was 133 Nos. as
against 133 Nos. on 31st March, 2020.
INTERNAL CONTROL SYSTEM AND THEIR ADEQUACY:
The company maintains adequate internal control systems, which provide among other things, reasonable
assurance of recording the transaction of its operations in all material respects and of providing protection
against significant misuse or loss of Company’s assets. Apart from self monitoring of internal controls, Internal
Auditors have expressed their satisfaction about the adequacy of the control systems and the manner in which
the Company is updating / upgrading its systems and procedures.
The Audit Committee takes due cognizance of the observations made by the auditors and gives their suggestions
for improvement. The suggestions of the Audit Committee further ensure the quality and adequacy of the control
systems.
DISCUSSION ON FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE WITH RESPECT TO OPERATIONAL PERFORMANCE::
Highlights:

Sales and other Receipts
Gross Profit / (Loss) before
depreciation
Less: Depreciation
Profit from regular Activities
Extra ordinary items (Net)
Profit/ (Loss) before and after taxation
Earning Per Share

2020-21
Standalone
Consolidated
10863.17
10863.17
2358.84
2358.84
512.80
1864.04
1437.17
4.99

512.80
1864.04
1437.17
4.99

(` In Lakhs)
2019-20
Standalone
Consolidated
9936.38
19791.43
1666.56
2931.70
471.32
1195.24
1018.24
4.15

454.13
2477.57
1568.93
908.64
3.16

During this year the earning per share (Standalone) of the face value of shares ` 10.00 each has gone up from `
3.54 to ` 4.99 (Basic as well as diluted). The earning per share (Consolidated) of the face value of shares ` 10.00
each has gone up from ` 3.54 to ` 4.99(Basic as well as diluted).
CAUTIONARY STATEMENT:
Statement in this report on Management Discussion and Analysis describing the company’s objectives,
projections, estimates, expectations or predictions may be forward looking statements within the meaning of
applicable security laws or regulations. These statements are based on certain assumptions and expectation of
future events. Actual results could however differ materially from those expressed or implied. Important factors
that could make a difference to the
Company’s operations include global and domestic demand and supply conditions, finished goods prices, raw
material costs and availability, change in Government regulations and tax structure, economic developments
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within India and the countries with which the company has business contacts and other factors such as litigation
and industrial relations.
The Company assumes no responsibility in respect of forward looking statements which may be amended or
modified in future on the basis of subsequent developments, information or events.
On behalf of the Board



Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021

Pravin V. Sheth
Director & Chairman Emeritus
DIN: 00138797

Registered Office:
Air Port Road,
Kadaiya, Nani Daman,
Daman (U.T.) 396 210.
CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
E-mail: fiberweb@fiberwbindia.com
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REPORT ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
This report on Corporate Governance forms part of the Directors Report. This section besides being in compliance
of the mandatory listing agreement requirement gives an insight into the process of functioning of the Company.
Company’s Philosophy on Code of Corporate Governance
● To adopt internal and external measures to increase the level of transparency and accountability.
● To demonstrate to stakeholders that the Company is following right governance practices.
● To lead the Company towards high growth path of higher profits and revenue.
● To respect the laws of the land and rights of stakeholders and to get respect from all concerned.
● To uphold at all times fundamental values of accountability, probity and transparency in all areas of its
operations and business practices.
Board of Directors
●

Composition of Board of Directors

The Board of Directors comprises of Eight Members, consisting of Three Non-Executive & Non-Independent
Directors, Four Non-Executive & Independent Directors and One Executive Director as per the Listing Regulations.
The Board also includes one woman Director. The Board of Directors of the Company consists of eminent persons
with considerable professional experience and expertise in respective fields. The composition is as under:Name of the
Director

DIN

Mr. Pravin V.
Sheth

00138797

Non-Executive &
Non-Independent
Director

3554873

0

0

0

Mr. Bhavesh P.
Sheth

02862487

Non-Executive &
Non-Independent
Director

6249596

0

0

0

Mrs. Soniya P.
Sheth

02658794

Non-Executive &
Non-Independent
Director

11000

4

0

0

Mr. Bhadresh H. 00629457
Shah

Non-Executive &
Independent
Director

44500

0

0

0

Mr. C.A. Rege

01707700

Non-Executive &
Independent
Director

0

0

0

0

Mr. G.M. Rana

01982997

Non-Executive &
Independent
Director

0

0

0

0

Mr. Vijay
Martandrao
Satkalmi*

07712647

Non-Executive &
Independent
Director

0

0

0

0

Mr. Sorabh
Gupta@

05124195

Non-Executive &
Independent
Director

0

0

0

0

Mr. Rajesh
Umashankar
Shukla

08690226

Executive Director

0

0

0

0
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Fiberweb India Limited

*Mr. Vijay M. Satkalmi Director for the Company has resigned from the Board of the Company with effect from
29th June, 2020.
@ Mr. Sorabh Gupta was appointed as an Additional Director (Non-Executive, Independent) of the Company in
the Board Meeting held on 28th May, 2021.
≠This excludes directorship held in Private Companies, Foreign Companies, Companies formed under Section 8
of the Companies Act, 2013 and directorship held in Fiberweb India Limited.
∞ Membership/Chairmanship in committee of Directors includes Audit Committee and Stakeholders’ Relationship/
Grievance Committee of Directors only. This does not include membership/Chairmanship in Committee of
Directors of Fiberweb India Limited.
During the year, Five Board meeting were held and the requisite quorum was present at all Board meetings.
There is no gap of four months between any two meetings. None of the Directors is a member in more than ten
Committees or acts as a Chairman in more than five committees across all companies in which he is a Director.
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth is the father of Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth and husband of Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth. None of the other
Directors have any inter-se relation among themselves.
In case of appointment / resignation of Directors, the Company has notified the BSE Limited, as required under
the Listing Regulations.
Directors’ profile:
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth Age: 82 years, Qualification: B.Com. LL.B., F.C.A. Practicing Chartered Accountant, Nature
of expertise: Expert in field of Finance, Management, Accounting, Auditing, Taxation and Law. Having good
knowledge about plastic industries for last 30 years. Name of the Companies in which also holds directorship:
1) M/s. Sun Properties P. Ltd., 2) M/s. Star Developers P. Ltd., 3) M/s. Parijat Pvt. Ltd., 4) M/s. Sun Capital &
Consultancy P. Ltd. Name of companies in which he holds Membership/chairmanship: Chairman Emeritus of
Fiberweb (India) Ltd. He is husband of Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth and father of Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth.
Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth (N.R.I.) Age: 58 years, Qualification: C.A. Nature of expertise: Financial Systems &
other Software Development and implementation experience, Business development, an organization strategy
experience, Business process, Re-engineering, Management consulting and project management. Name of
the Companies in which he also holds Directorship: None. Name of the Companies in which he also holds
Membership/Chairmanship: None. He is son of Chairman Emeritus & Director Mr. Pravin V. Sheth.
Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth Age: 36 years, Qualification: M. A., Nature of Expertise: She is Interior Decorator, Investment
consultant & Dynamic professional also having good marketing experience. Name of Company in which she
holds Directorship: 1) Kunststoffe Industries Ltd. 2) Stallion Breweries Ltd. 3) Chemical & Alkali Distributors Ltd.
4) Parijat Pvt. Ltd. 5) Sun Properties Pvt. Ltd. 6) Star Developers Pvt. Ltd. 7) Sun Capital & Consultancy Pvt. Ltd.
8) Bharat Capital And Holdings Limited. She is wife of Chairman Emeritus & Director Mr. Pravin V. Sheth.
Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah Age: 68 years. Qualification: B. E. Bachelor of Engineering, Nature of expertise: Civil &
Plastic Engineering, Name of the Companies in which he also holds Directorship, other than Fiberweb (India)
Ltd.: None, Name of the other Companies in which he also holds Membership/Chairmanship: None
Mr. G. M. Rana Age: 79 years Qualification: B.E. Bachelor of Engineering, M.B.A. Nature of expertise: Management
& Marketing, Name of the companies in which he also holds Directorship: None. Name of companies in which he
holds Membership/ Chairmanship: None.
Mr. C. A. Rege Age: 57 years. Qualification: Engineering & Management. Nature of expertise: Engineering &
Plastics with the Management & Business working experience as professional with leading industries in plastics
at higher management level. Mainly expertise in global Marketing with knowledge of financial field. Name of the
Companies in which he also hold Directorship: AM Entertainment And Broadcasting Private Limited and AM
Realty Private Limited. Name of the companies in which he also hold Membership/Chairmanship: Member of
share transfer cum stakeholder relations Committee and Audit Committee of Fiberweb (India) Ltd.
Mr. Vijay Martandrao Satkalmi Age: 69 years. Qualification: Graduation/Bachelor/Equivalent. He is having vast
experienced in the field of Technical Textiles Product Development and Process development. Name of companies
in which he holds Directorship: None. Name of companies in which he holds Membership/Chairmanship: None.
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Mr. Sorabh Gupta Age: 52 years. Qualification: Bachelor in Science from Allahabad University. He has studied
Political Science at Institute of Advance Studies, Meerut. He has also studied M.Phil in Public Administration
from Institute of Advance Studies, Meerut. He has experience in Financial Market and Investment Banking.
Name of companies in which he holds Directorship: None. Name of companies in which he holds Membership/
Chairmanship: None.
Mr. Rajesh Umashankar Shukla Age: 57 years. Qualification: B.Com. Graduation. He is having vast experienced
in Trading and Marketing. Name of companies in which he holds Directorship: None. Name of companies in
which he holds Membership/Chairmanship: None.
●

Number of Board Meetings and Attendance Record of each Director

The Board meets at least once in a quarter to consider amongst other business, the performance of the Company
and financial results.
(i) Five Meetings of the Board of Directors were held during the year ended 31st March, 2021 these were held
on: (1) 29th June, 2020		

(2) 10th August, 2020

(3) 06th November, 2020			

(4) 14th January, 2021		

(5) 11th February, 2021		

The attendance record of each of the Directors at the Board Meetings during the year ended 31st March, 2021
and of the last Annual General Meeting is as under:Directors
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth
Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth
Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth
Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah
Mr. C.A. Rege
Mr. G.M. Rana (N.R.I.)
Mr. Vijay Martandrao Satkalmi
Mr. Rajesh Umashankar Shukla

No. of Board
Meeting held
5
5
5
5
5
5
1
5

No. of Board
Meeting attended
5
1
5
4
5
1
0
5

Attendance at
Last AGM
Yes
No
Yes
Yes
Yes
No
N.A.
Yes

Meeting of Independent Directors and Attendance Record
Independent Directors to meet at least once in a year to deal with matters listed out in Regulation 25 of the SEBI
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015 and Schedule IV to the Companies Act,
2013 which inter-alia includes, review the performance of non-independent directors, chairman and the Board
as a whole and assess quality, quantity and timeliness of flow of information between the Management and the
Board that is necessary to perform the duties by the Board of Directors.
The terms and conditions of appointment of independent directors is also available on the Company’s website:
www.fiberwebindia.com
Attendance Record of Meetings of Independent Directors
Name of the Director

Number of Meetings held

Number of Meetings attended

Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah

1

1

Mr. C.A. Rege

1

1

Mr. G. M. Rana

1

1

Familiarization Programme for Independent Directors
The Company conducts familiarization programmes for Independent Directors with regard to their roles, rights,
and responsibilities in the Company etc. Details of familiarization programmes extended to the Independent
Directors during the year are disclosed on the Company Website at www.fiberwebindia.com
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Secretarial Standards
The Directors state that applicable Secretarial Standards, i.e. SS-1 and SS-2, relating to ‘Meetings of the Board of
Directors’ and ‘General Meetings’, respectively, have been duly followed by the Company. Also SS-3 “Dividend”
also followed by the Company.
Directors’ interest in the company
Sometimes, the Company does enter into contracts with companies in which some of the Directors of the
Company are interested as director or member. However, these contracts are in the ordinary course of the
Company’s business without giving any specific weightage to them. Directors regularly make full disclosures
to the Board of Directors regarding the nature of their interest in the companies in which they are directors
or members. Full particulars of contracts entered with companies in which directors are directly or indirectly
concerned or interested are entered in the Register of Contracts maintained under Section 189 of the Companies
Act, 2013 and the same is placed in every Board Meeting for the noting of the Directors.
Inter-se relationships among Directors:
Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth is spouse of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth and Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth is son of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth.
Mrs. Soniya P. Sheth is step mother of Mr. Bhavesh P. Sheth. Except for this, there are no inter-se relationships
among the Directors.
Audit Committee
The committee’s composition and terms of reference are in compliance with provisions of Section 177 of the
Companies Act, 2013 and Regulation 18 of the Listing Regulations. Members of the Audit Committee possess
requisite qualifications.
During the financial year 2020-21 four Audit Committee Meetings were held on 27/06/2020, 08/08/2020,
05/11/2020 and 10/02/2021. The Composition of Audit Committee and attendance of each Committee member
is as under:
Name of the Audit Committee Member

Designation

No. of Committee No. of Committee
Meetings held
Meetings attended

Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah
Non-Executive & Independent Director

Chairman

4

4

Member

4

4

Member

4

4

Mr. C.A. Rege
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Ms. Soniya P. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

At the invitation of the Company, Director, Statutory Auditor, Internal Auditor, Accounts Manager and Chief
Financial Officer also attended the meeting to answer and clarify queries raised at the Committee meetings.
The Company Secretary of the Company acts as the Secretary to the Committee.
The Chairman of Audit committee was present at 35th Annual General Meeting of the Company held on 30th
September, 2020.
Terms of Reference of Audit Committee inter alia include the following
(1) Oversight of the Company’s financial reporting process and the disclosure of its financial information to
ensure that the financial statement is correct, sufficient and credible
(2) Recommendation for appointment, remuneration and terms of appointment of statutory auditors of the
Company
(3) Approval of payment to statutory auditors, including cost auditors, for any other services rendered by them
(4) Reviewing, with the management, the annual financial statements and auditor's report thereon before
submission to the Board for approval, with particular reference to:
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(a) Matters required to be included in the Director’s Responsibility Statement to be included in the Board’s
Report in terms of clause (c) of sub-section (3) of Section 134 of the Companies Act, 2013;
(b) Changes, if any, in accounting policies and practices and reasons for the same;
(c) Major accounting entries involving estimates based on the exercise of judgment by management
(d) Significant adjustments made in the financial statements arising out of audit findings;
(e) Compliance with listing and other legal requirements relating to financial statements
(f) Disclosure of any related party transactions; and
(g) Qualifications/ Modified opinion(s) in the draft audit report;
(5) Reviewing, with the management, the quarterly financial statements before submission to the board for
approval;
(6) Monitoring and reviewing, with the management, the statement of uses / application of funds raised through
an issue (public issue, rights issue, preferential issue, and so on), the statement of funds utilized for
purposes other than those stated in the offer document / prospectus / notice and the report submitted by the
monitoring agency monitoring the utilization of proceeds of a public or rights issue, and making appropriate
recommendations to the Board to take up steps in this matter
(7) Reviewing and monitoring the auditor’s independence and performance, and effectiveness of audit process;
(8) Approval or any subsequent modification of transactions of the Company with related parties
(9) Scrutiny of inter-corporate loans and investments
(10) Valuation of undertakings or assets of the Company, wherever it is necessary
(11) Evaluation of internal financial controls and risk management systems
(12) Reviewing, with the management, performance of statutory and internal auditors, adequacy of the internal
control systems;
(13) Reviewing with the adequacy of internal audit function, if any, including the structure of the internal audit
department, staffing and seniority of the official heading the department, reporting structure coverage and
frequency of internal audit;
(14) Discussion with internal auditors of any significant findings and follow-up thereon;
(15) Reviewing the findings of any internal investigations by the internal auditors into matters where there is
suspected fraud or irregularity or a failure of internal control systems of a material nature and reporting the
matter to the Board;
(16) Discussion with statutory auditors before the audit commences, about the nature and scope of audit as well
as post-audit discussion to ascertain any area of concern
(17) To look into the reasons for substantial defaults, if any, in the payment to the depositors, debenture holders,
shareholders (in case of non-payment of declared dividends) and creditors;
(18) To review the functioning of the whistle blower mechanism;
(19) Approval of appointment of Chief Financial Officer after assessing the qualifications, experience and
background, etc. of the candidate;
(20) Carrying out any other function as is mentioned in the terms of reference of the Audit Committee.
B. The audit committee shall mandatorily review the following information:
(1) The Management Discussion and Analysis of financial condition and results of operations
(2) Statement of significant related party transactions (as defined by the audit committee), submitted by
management;
(3) Management letters / letters of internal control weaknesses issued by the statutory auditors
(4) Internal audit reports relating to internal control weaknesses; and
(5) Reviewing the appointment, removal and terms of remuneration of the Internal auditor.
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Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors
The Committee’s composition and term of reference are in compliance with provisions of the Companies Act,
2013, Regulations 19 of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
The role of the committee is to perform all such matters as prescribed under which interalia includes –
recommendation to Board of Directors remuneration policy for the Company, appointment of Director, appointment
and remuneration of Whole-time Director and Key Managerial Personnel. The Committee will also deal with
matters as may be assigned from time to time by the Board of Directors. The Committee has formulated a guiding
policy on remuneration for its Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and employees of the Company.
The Board has constituted the Nomination and Remuneration Committee of Directors, consisting of Mr. Bhadresh
H. Shah Chairman, Mr. C.A. Rege and Ms. Soniya P. Sheth. During the financial year 2020-21 Four Committee
Meetings were held on 27/06/2020, 08/08/2020, 05/11/2020 and 10/02/2021 and all members of the committee
attended all meeting. 2 members are Non- Executive and Independent Directors and 1 member is Non-Executive
and Non-Independent Director.
The Composition & Attendance of Nomination and Remuneration Committee is as follows:
Name of the Nomination and Remuneration
Committee Member
Mr. B.H. Shah
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Mr. C.A. Rege
Non-Executive &Independent Director
Ms. Soniya P. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

Designation No. of Committee No. of Committee
Meetings held
Meetings attended
Chairman

4

4

Member

4

4

Member

4

4

Terms of Reference of Nomination and Remuneration Committee inter alia include the following:
(1) To formulate the criteria for determining qualifications, positive attributes and independence of a Director and
recommend to the Board of directors policy relating to, the remuneration for the Directors, Key Managerial
Personnel and other employees;
(2) To formulate the criteria for evaluation of performance of Independent Directors and the Board of Directors;
(3) To devise a policy on diversity of Board of Directors;
(4) To identify persons who are qualified to become Directors and who may be appointed in senior management
in accordance with the criteria laid down and recommend to the Board of Directors their appointment and
removal.
(5) To consider extension or continuation of term of appointment of the independent director, on the basis of the
report of performance evaluation of independent directors.
Performance Evaluation Criteria of Independent Directors
The Board of Directors of the Company has initiated and put in place evaluation of its own performance, its
committees and individual directors. The result of the evaluation is satisfactory and adequate and meets the
requirement of the Company.
Remuneration Policy and Details of Remuneration paid
Executive Directors
Details of remuneration paid / payable to the Directors for the year ended on 31st March, 2021 (from
01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021) is as follows:
Name
Mr. Rajesh Umashankar
Shukla

Position held During the
year Allowances
Executive Director & CEO

Salary &
Perquisites
Remuneration
` 3,60,000 p.a.
` 43,200

Total
` 4,03,200

There is no performance linked incentives, stock option and pension. The employment is on contractual basis
and subject to termination by either party giving to other party three months notice.
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Non-executive & Independent Directors
Non-Executive Directors have been paid remuneration by way of sitting fees only during the year for attending
the Board Meetings. However they have been given sitting fees @ ` 5000/- per meeting for only Board meeting
attendance. No Sitting fees for Committee Meetings.
Board Procedures
The members of the Board have been provided with the requisite information mentioned in the Listing Regulations
2015, well before the Board Meetings and the same were dealt with appropriately. All the directors who are on
various committees are within permissible limits of the Listing Regulations 2015.
Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance Committee of Directors
In terms of the requirements under the provisions of Section 178 of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rules
made thereunder and Regulation 20 read along with Paragraph B of part D of Schedule II of the SEBI (LODR)
Regulations, 2015, the Board of Directors of the Company had re-constituted “Stakeholders Relationship/Grievance
Committee” in place of erstwhile “Shareholders’ / Investors’ Grievances and Share Transfer Committee”, under
the Chairmanship of Non-Executive Director to monitor and review investor’ grievances including complaint
related to transfer of shares, non-receipt of Financial Statements, non-receipt of declared Dividends, to approve
share transfer / transmission / transposition of shares / consolidation of folios and to approve issue of duplicate /
fresh share certificates on account of requests for duplicate / split / consolidation.
The Board has constituted Stakeholders Relationship / Grievance Committee. The committee comprises of non
executive directors of which Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah is the Chairman and the members of the Committee are Mr.
C. A. Rege and Ms. Soniya P. Sheth.
During the year the Company had received 3 (Three) investor complaints. A status report of shareholders
complaints and Redressal thereof is prepared and placed before Stakeholders Relationship / Grievance
Committee of Directors. The number of pending complaints at the close of the year were 2. There were no share
transfer pending for registration for more than 15 days. The Committee met 4 times during the year.
The Committee consists of three Directors and the attendance of each committee member is as under:
Name of the Committee Member

Designation

No. of Meeting
held

No. of Meeting
attended

Chairman

4

4

Member

4

4

Member

4

4

Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Mr. C. A. Rege
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Ms. Soniya P. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

Status of Shareholders’/Investors’ Complaints for the period 01/04/2020 to 31/03/2021
Name of Complaint

No. of Complaints No. of Complaints
received
resolved

No. of pending
complaints

Delay In Transfer Of Shares.

2

0

2

Non-Receipt of Shares/Dividends/Rights/Bonus
Shares.

-

-

-

Delay/ Non Receipt Of Annual Reports.

1

1

0

Total

3

1

2

There are no complaints not solved to the satisfaction of shareholders.
The Secretary of the Company is to act as the Compliance Officer.
The shareholders/investors can send shares related complaints, if any, through e-mail-id fiberweb@fiberwebindia.
com designated for this purpose.
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Corporate Social Responsibility Committee:
The Board has constituted Corporate Social Responsibility Committee of Directors. All the members of Corporate
Social Responsibility Committee have good knowledge and exposure to utilize the company’s resources towards
its corporate social responsibility. The Role of the Committee is to formulate and recommend to the Board, a
corporate social responsibility policy, recommend the amount of expenditure to be incurred on CSR Projects and
Programmes and monitor them.
As per Section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company needs to spend 2% of Average net profit of last
three years on CSR activities. The Annual Report on CSR activities of the Company is provided in Annexure II
and is attached to the Director’s Report.
During the financial year 2020-21 four Corporate Social Responsibility Committee Meetings were held on
27/06/2020, 08/08/2020, 05/11/2020 and 10/02/2021. The Composition of Corporate Social Responsibility
Committee and attendance of each Committee member is as under:
Name of the Committee Member

Designation

Mr. C. A. Rege
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah
Non-Executive & Independent Director
Ms. Soniya P. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

Chairman

No. of
Meeting held
4

No. of Meeting
attended
4

Member

4

4

Member

4

4

Sexual Harassment Committee:
(a) Constitution
The Board has constituted the Sexual Harassment Committee.
(b) Composition
The Sexual Harassment Committee was comprised of following 1 Directors of the company and 2 independent
person. Ms. Soniya P. Sheth, Non-executive Non-Independent Director, Mr. G. Ravindran and Dhwani P.
Sheth, Members.
(c) Power of Sexual Harassment Committee:
The committee is authorized to exercise all powers for compliance of the sexual harassment for women at
work place (prevention), prohibition and redressal) Act 2013.
During the financial year 2019-20 four Sexual Harassment Committee Meetings were held on 27/06/2020,
08/08/2020, 05/11/2020 and 10/02/2021. The Composition of Sexual Harassment Committee and attendance of
each Committee member is as under:
The attendance of Sexual Harassment Committee is as under:
Name of the Director
Ms. Soniya P. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director

Designation No. of Committee No. of Committee
Meetings held
Meetings attended
Chairman

4

4

Mr. G. Ravindran
Member

Member

4

4

Ms. Dhwani P. Sheth
Member

Member

4

4
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Risk Management Committee
The Board has constituted Risk Management Committee. The composition of the Risk Management Committee
(RMC) is as under:
Name of the Director
Mr. Pravin V. Sheth
Non-Executive & Non-Independent Director
Mr. G. Ravindran
Member
Mr. C. A. Rege
Non-Executive & Independent Director

Designation
Chairman
Member
Member

The Committee has adopted a policy on Risk management to assess and determine the risks and potential
threats to the Company.
The constitution of Risk Management Committee is not mandatory to Company, as per provisions of Regulation
of 21 of LODR is applicable to the Top 1000 listed entities.
The Role of Risk Management Committee is as under:
a) To identify, assess and mitigate the existing as well as potential risks to the Company and to recommend the
strategies to the Board to overcome them;
b) To develop and implement action plans or mitigate the risks;
c) To oversee at such intervals as may be necessary, the adequacy of Company’s resources to perform its risk
management responsibilities and achieve its objectives;
d) To review on a half-yearly basis the Company’s performance against the identified risks of the Company;
e) To formulate the strategies towards identifying any areas that may materially affect the Company’s overall
risk exposure and to review the Risk Management Policy;
f)

To regularly review the risk management framework for the operations of the Company that are deemed
necessary; and

g) To perform such other activities related to this Policy as requested by the Board of Directors or to address
issues related to any significant subject within its term of reference.
Compliance Certificate
Compliance Certificate for corporate governance from Auditors of the Company is annexed herewith.
General Body Meetings
●

The details of Annual General Meetings held in last three year are as follows:AGM
33rd

Day
Thursday

Date
25/09/2018

Time
10.00 a.m.

34th

Thursday

26/09/2019

9.00 a.m.

35th

Wednesday

30/09/2020

9.00 a.m.

Venue
Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach,
Nani Daman (U.T.) 396 210
Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, DevkaBeach,
Nani Daman (U.T.) 396 210
Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach,
Nani Daman (U.T.) 396 210

●

In the 33rd Annual General Meeting held on 25/09/2018, a special resolution was passed for Reappointment
of Mr. G. Ravindran as a Whole-time Director, Reappointment of Mr. Bhadresh H. Shah as an Independent
Director and Reappointment of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana as an Independent Director.

●

In the 34th Annual General Meeting held on 26/09/2019, a special resolution was passed for Reappointment
of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth as a Non Executive Non Independent Director and Reappointment of Mr. Gopalji M.
Rana as an Independent Director.
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●

In the 35th Annual General Meeting held on 30/09/2020, a special resolution was passed for Reappointment
of Mr. C.A. Rege as an Independent Director, Continuation of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth as a Non Executive Non
Independent Director and Continuation of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana as an Independent Director.

●

Whether special resolutions were put through postal ballot last year? No

●

As of date, there is no proposal to pass any special resolution by postal ballot.

Means of Communication
●

The Board takes on record the unaudited quarterly financial results in the prescribed proforma of the stock
exchanges within stipulated time of 45 days from close of the quarter and announces forthwith the results
to all the stock exchanges where the shares of the Company are listed. The quarterly unaudited financial
results are also published in newspapers like The Economic Times, Savera India Times, Daman, Free Press
Journal, and Navshakti within 48 hours of the conclusion of the meeting of the Board in which it is approved.
Quarterly financial results and other useful Information of the Company are also available on the Company’s
website: www.fiberwebindia.com

●

The Annual General Meeting is the principal forum for face to face communication with shareholders, where
the Board responds to the specific queries of the shareholders.

●

No presentation was made during the year either to the Institutional Investors or to the analysts.

●

Official press release, if any, is placed on the Company’s Website and sent to Stock Exchanges for
dissemination.

●

Management Discussion and Analysis Report forms part of this Annual Report.

COMPLIANCE OF CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REQUIREMENTS SPECIFIED IN REGULATION 17 TO 27
AND REGULATION 46(2)(B) TO (I) OF LISTING REGULATIONS
Sr. Particulars
No.
1

Board of Directors

2

Audit Committee

3

Nomination and
Remuneration
Committee
Stakeholders
Relationship Committee
Risk Management
Committee

4
5
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Regulation Compliance Compliance observed for the following during the
Status Yes / financial year 2020-21
No / N.A.
17
Yes
• Composition
• Number of meetings
• Review of compliance reports
• Plans for orderly succession for appointments
• Code of Conduct
• Fees / compensation to non-executive Directors
• Minimum information to be placed before the
Board
• Compliance Certificate
• Risk assessment and management
• Performance evaluation of Independent Directors
18
Yes
• Composition
• Number of meetings
• Powers of the Committee
• Role of the Committee and review of information
by the Committee
19
Yes
• Composition
• Role of the Committee
20

Yes

21

Yes

•
•
•
•

Composition
Role of the Committee
Composition
Role of the Committee

61

Sr. Particulars
No.
6

Vigil Mechanism

7

Related Party
Transactions

8

Subsidiaries of the
Company

Regulation Compliance Compliance observed for the following during the
Status Yes / financial year 2020-21
No / N.A.
22
Yes
• Formulation of Vigil Mechanism for Directors and
employees
• Director access to Chairperson of Audit Committee
23

Yes

•
•

24

Yes

•
•
•

•
•
•
9

Obligations with respect 25
to Independent Directors

Yes

10

Obligations with respect 26
to employees including
senior management,
key managerial persons,
directors and promoters

Yes

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
•

11
12

Other Corporate
Governance
requirements
Website

27

Yes

•
•

46(2)(b)
to (i)

Yes

•
•
•
•
•
•
•
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Policy on Materiality of Related Party transactions
and dealing with Related Party Transactions
Approval including omnibus approval of Audit
Committee
Review of Related Party transactions
There were no material Related Party transactions
The Company did not have any material unlisted
subsidiary and as a result the compliances in
respect of material unlisted subsidiary were not
applicable
Review of financial statements of unlisted
subsidiary by the Audit Committee
Other Corporate governance requirements with
respect to subsidiary of listed entity
Significant transactions and arrangements of
unlisted subsidiary
Maximum directorships and tenure
Meetings of Independent Directors
Familiarisation of Independent Directors
Members/Chairmanships in Committees
Affirmation on compliance of Code of Conduct by
Directors and Senior Management
Disclosure of shareholding by non-executive
Directors
Disclosure by Senior Management about potential
conflicts of interest
Agreement with regard to compensation or profit
sharing in connection with dealings in securities of
the Company by key managerial persons, director
and promoter
Compliance with discretionary requirements
Filing of quarterly compliance report on Corporate
Governance
Terms and conditions for appointment of
Independent Directors
Composition of various Committees of the Board of
Directors
Code of Conduct of Board of Directors and Senior
Management Personnel
Details of establishment of Vigil Mechanism /
Whistle Blower policy
Policy on dealing with Related Party Transactions
Policy for determining material subsidiaries
Details of familiarization programmes imparted to
Independent Directors
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General Shareholders Informations
The required information is provided in "Shareholders information" Section.
Other Disclosures
Related Party Transaction
●

There have been no transactions of material nature between the Company and its promoters, directors,
management, their subsidiaries or relatives etc.

Policy on materially significant related party transactions:
•

There are no materially significant related party transactions that may have potential conflict with the interests
of the Company at large. Attention is drawn to Note 10 A to the Financial Statements for disclosure of related
parties.

•

The Company has formulated policy on dealing with related party transactions. This policy has been hosted
on the Company’s websites at www.fiberwebindia.com.

Any Non-compliance, Penalties or Strictures Imposed
●

The Company has complied with the requirements of regulatory authorities on capital markets and no penalty/
stricture was imposed on the Company during the last three years.

●

Policy on determination of materially of event or information:
In accordance with the requirement of the Listing Regulations, the Company has formulated a policy on
determination of materially of event or information which is available on the Company’s website at www.
fiberwebindia.com.

●

Policy for Preservation of Documents:
The Company has framed a Record Management Policy for preservation of documents. This Policy prescribes
the nature of Documents and the period for which the same should be preserved. The archival Policy which
forms part of this policy, is hosted on the Company website at www.fiberwebindia.com.

●

Policy for Prohibition of Insider Trading:
In line with the requirements of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Prohibition of Insider Trading)
Regulations, 2015 the Company has adopted a code of Conduct for prohibition of insider trading duly
approved by the Board of Directors. The objective of the policy is to ensure the prohibition of insider trading
practices in the Company. This policy has been hosted on the Company website at www.fiberwebindia.com.

●

Code of Conduct
The Company has adopted a Code of Conduct for its Directors, Senior Management and employees of the
Company. This Code of Conduct has been communicated to each of them. All members of the Board of
Directors and Senior Management including Key Management Personnel affirm compliance with the Code
of Conduct at the time of their appointment and thereafter on an annual basis. A certificate from Mr. Pravin V.
Sheth, Chairman Emeritus, to this effect has been obtained and forms part of this Annual report. The Policy
for the same is available on Company’s website: www.fiberwebindia.com.

Vigil Mechanism
Your Company has an effective Vigil Mechanism system which is embedded in its Code of Conduct. The Code of
Conduct of your Company serves as a guide for daily business interactions, reflecting your Company’s standard
for appropriate behavior and living corporate values. The Code of Conduct applies to all Company people,
including Directors, Officers, and all employees of the Company. Even your Company vendors and suppliers are
also subject to these requirements as adherence to the Code is a prerequisite for conducting business with your
Company. The Vigil Mechanism is available on the Company website: www.fiberwebindia.com.
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Whistle Blower policy
The Company promotes ethical behavior in all its business activities and has put in place a mechanism of reporting
illegal or unethical behavior. The Company has a whistle blower policy wherein the employees are free to report
violations of laws, rules, regulations or unethical conduct to their immediate supervisor or such other workgroups.
The confidentiality of those reporting violations is maintained and they are not subjected to any discriminatory
practice. The Policy provides adequate safeguard against victimization of director(s) / employee(s) who raise the
concern and have access to the Chairman of Audit Committee who is entrusted to oversee the whistle blower
mechanism and that no person has been denied access to Audit Committee. The Policy is available on the
website of the Company www.fiberwebindia.com
GENERAL SHAREHOLDER INFORMATION
Company’s CIN No.

: CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694

Date, time and venue of 36th AGM
: Tuesday, 28th September, 2021 at 9.00 a.m.
		 At Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach,
		 Nani Daman, Daman (U.T.) - 396 210
Financial Year

: 1st April to 31st March

Dates of Book Closure
: 22/09/2021 to 28/09/2021
		 (Both days inclusive)
Listing on Stock Exchanges
: BSE Ltd, Mumbai
		 The Ahmedabad Stock Exchange Ltd.,
		 Ahmedabad (De-recognized by SEBI)
Listing Fees
: Paid for all above Stock Exchanges as per
		 Listing Regulations
Demat Arrangement

: With NSDL and CDSL

ISIN No.

: INE 296C01020

ASE and BSE Stock Code

: 46910 and 507910

Registered Office
:
(Address for correspondenece)		
		
		

Air Port Road, Kadaiya,
Nani Daman, Daman (U.T.) 396 210.
Tel No. 0260- 2221458
Fax No. 0260-2220758

Company’s E-Mail ID

: fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com

Company’s Website

: www.fiberwebindia.com

WORKS (Plant Location)
: Plot No. 92/93B, 100’ Coastal Highway, Nani
		 Daman, Daman (U.T.) 396 210.
Registrar & Share Transfer Agents
:
		
		
		
		

Link Intime India Private Limited.,
C 101, 247 Park, LBS Marg, Vikhroli West,
Mumbai 400 083
Tel No.022- 49186270
E-mail ID: rnt.helpdesk@linkintime.co.i

Share Transfer System
The power to approve the transfer of securities has been delegated by the Board to the Share Transfer Agents.
Share transfer requests are processed within fifteen (15) days from the date of receipt.
Compliance Officer
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: Ms. Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary & Compliance Officer		
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Stock Market Data:
High and Low prices & Trading Volumes at BSE
MONTH

High (`)

Low (`)

April 2020

18.13

11.50

May 2020

17.35

15.15

June 2020

25.10

16.00

July 2020

25.80

18.35

August 2020

34.35

20.75

September 2020

33.00

26.90

October 2020

31.90

26.60

November 2020

31.60

23.50

December 2020

35.40

25.00

January 2021

33.00

27.60

February 2021

31.95

27.55

March 2021

31.00

26.80

Source: www.bseindia.com
Distribution of Shareholding as on 31st March, 2021:
Category of Shareholder

Number of
Shareholders

(A) Shareholding of Promoters & Promoter Group

Percentage
of (A+B+C)

Total Number
of shares held

(1) Indian

5

46.33

13339261

(2) Foreign

0

0.00

0

Total shareholding of Promoter & Promoter Group
(B) Public Shareholding

5

46.33

13339261

15

1.37

395151

16409
16424
0
16429

52.30
53.67
0
100.00

15057298
15452449
0
28791710

(1) Institutions
(2) Non - Institutions.
Total Public Shareholding
(C) Shares held by custodians
Total (A)+(B)+(C)
Shareholding Pattern by size as on 31st March, 2021:
No. of Equity Shares

Shareholders
Number

No. of Shares

% of holders

Number

% of shares

1 -100

5670

34.512

270155

0.938

101-200

3574

21.754

550591

1.912

201-500

3720

22.643

1269984

4.411

501-1000

1675

10.195

1281187

4.450

1001-5000

1390

8.461

2963285

10.292

5001-10000

180

1.096

1320876

4.588

10001-100000

203

1.236

4988478

17.326

17

0 .103

16147154

56.083

16429

100.00

28791710

100.00

100001- and above
Total
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Dematerialization of equity shares
The shares of the Company have been brought under compulsory demat mode with effect from 30th October, 2000.
As on 31st March, 2021, about 95.77% shareholding representing 2,75,74,463 Equity Shares of the Company
have been converted into demat form. The Company has executed agreements with both the depositories namely
NSDL and CDSL for demat of its shares.
Details of Credit Rating provided by The India Ratings & Research (FITCH Group):
The India Ratings & Research (FITCH Group) has affirmed Fiberweb (India) Limited's Long Term Issuer Rating
at 'IND BBB-'. The Outlook is Stable.
Outstanding GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments
The Company has not issued any GDRs/ADRs/Warrants or any convertible instruments.
Foreign Exchange Risk & Hedging activities
It is the policy of the Company to cover its foreign currency exposure for imports to avoid currency exchange
fluctuation.
Disclosures
The Company has complied with all the mandatory requirements specified in Regulations 17 to 27 and clauses
(b) to (i) of sub-regulation (2) of Regulation 46 of the Listing Regulations.
Discretionary Requirements
The Board
As the Chairman of the Company is an Executive Chairman, hence the provision on entitlement of Chairperson’s
office at the expense of the Company in case of a Non-Executive Chairperson is not applicable.
Shareholders Rights
Half yearly financial results including summary of the significant events are presently not being sent to shareholders
of the Company.
Audit Qualification
There is no Audit Qualification. Every endeavor is made to make the financial statements without qualification.
Separate posts of Chairman and Chief Executive Officer
There is no separate post of Chairperson and Managing Director. Presently, Mr. Pravin V. Sheth is the Chairman
Emeritus and Mr. Rajesh Umashankar Shukla is the CEO and Executive Director of the Company.
Reporting of Internal Auditors
Reports of Internal Auditors are placed before the Audit Committee for its review.
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DECLARATION ON COMPLIANCE OF THE COMPANY’S CODE OF CONDUCT
I, Pravin V. Sheth, Director (DIN: 00138797), Chairman Emeritus of Fiberweb (India) Limited declare that all the
members of the Board and Senior Management Personnel of the Company have affirmed due observance of the
Code of Conduct framed, pursuant to Regulation 26(3) of the Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing
Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015, in so far as it is applicable to them and there is no
non-compliance thereof during the year ended 31st March, 2021.

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021
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Pravin V. Sheth
Director & Chairman Emeritus
DIN: 00138797

67

COMPLIANCE CERTIFICATE ON CORPORATE GOVERNANCE
To the Members of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
1. We have examined the Corporate Governance report of Fiberweb (India) Limited for the year ended 31st
March, 2021 with the relevant records and documents maintained & furnished to us by the Company and as
approved by the Board of Directors as stipulated in Chapter IV of the Securities and Exchange Board of India
(Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirement) Regulations, 2015
2. The Compliance of conditions on Corporate Governance is the responsibility of the management. Our
examination was limited to review of procedures and implementations thereof, adopted by the Company
for ensuring the compliance of the conditions of the Corporate Governance. It is neither an audit nor an
expression of opinion on the financial statements of the Company.
3. We further state that such compliance is neither an assurance as to the future viability of the Company nor
the efficiency or effectiveness with which the management has conducted the affairs of the Company.
4. On the basis of our review and according to information and explanations provided to us, we certify that
the Company has complied with the mandatory conditions of Corporate Governance, as stipulated in the
Securities and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations,
2015.
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants

Place: Mumbai
Date: : 06th August, 2021
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CEO AND CFO CERTIFICATION
We hereby certify that:
a) We have reviewed the financial statements and cash flow statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021 and
to the best of our knowledge and belief :
i.

these statements do not contain any materially untrue statement or omit any material fact or contain
statements that might be misleading;

ii.

these statements together present a true and fair view of the Company’s affairs and are in compliance
with existing Accounting Standards, applicable laws and regulations.

b) They are, to the best of our knowledge and belief; no transactions entered into by the Company during the
year ended 31st March, 2021 are fraudulent, illegal or violative of the Company’s code of conduct.
c) We accept responsibility for establishing and maintaining internal controls for financial reporting and we have
evaluated the effectiveness of internal control systems of the Company pertaining to financial reporting.
Deficiencies in the design or operation of such internal controls, if any, of which we are aware have been
disclosed to the auditors and the Audit Committee and steps have been taken to rectify these deficiencies.
d) We have indicated to the Auditors and the Audit Committee that there are no:
i.

significant changes in internal control over financial reporting during the year under reference;

ii.

significant changes in accounting policies during the year requiring disclosure in the notes to the financial
statements; and

iii. instances during the year of significant fraud with involvement therein, if any, of the management or any
employee having a significant role in the Company’s internal control system over financial reporting.
For Fiberweb (India) Limited

Rajesh Umashankar Shukla
CEO & Executive Director
(DIN: 08690226)

Mukesh M. Pandya
Chief Financial Officer

Place: Mumbai
Date: 06th August, 2021
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

To,
The Members of,
FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED
Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying standalone financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited (‘the Company’), which comprise
the standalone balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive Income, if
any), standalone statement of cash flow and standalone statement of changes in equity for the year then ended and notes to the
standalone financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid standalone financial
statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner so required and give a true and fair
view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India including Indian Accounting Standards (‘Ind AS’)
specified under section 133 of the Act, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2021, and its profit, its cash flows
and the changes in equity for the year ended on that date.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Company in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued
by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the standalone financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other
ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we
have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the standalone financial statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the standalone
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the standalone financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. We have determined that there were no key audit matters to
communicate in our report.
Other Information
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Company’s annual report, but does not include the financial statements and our
auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the standalone financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the standalone financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and, in
doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the standalone financial statements or our
knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we
conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information; we are required to report that fact. We have nothing
to report in this regard.
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Standalone Financial Statements
The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act with
respect to the preparation of these standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial position,
financial performance including other comprehensive income, changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance
with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards (Ind AS) specified
under section 133 of the Act. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and
other irregularities; selection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are
reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were
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operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the standalone financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement,
whether due to fraud or error.
In preparing the standalone financial statements, the Management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concern basis of accounting unless the Board of Directors either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the standalone financial statements as a whole are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with Standards on
Auditing will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions
of users taken on the basis of these financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with Standards on Auditing, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. . Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether
the Company has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls;

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management and Board of Directors;

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may
cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the standalone financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to
continue as a going concern;

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and
whether the standalone financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation;

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1.

As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (‘the Order’) issued by the Central Government of India in
terms of section 143(11) of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A” a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and
4 of the Order, to the extent applicable.
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2.

(A) As required by section 143(3)of the Act, we report that;

		

a)

We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit

		

b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books

		

c)

The standalone balance sheet, the standalone statement of profit and loss, the standalone statement of changes
in equity and the standalone statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books
of accounts

		

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid standalone financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of
the Act;

		

e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors and taken on record by the Board of
Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms
of section 164(2) of the Act;

		

f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to financial statements of the
Company and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate Report in “Annexure B”.

(B) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us:		

i.

The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigation on its financial position as at 31 March 2021 - Refer
note 36 to the standalone financial statements;

		

ii.

The Company has made provision as at 31 March 2021, as required under the applicable law or Ind AS, for
material foreseeable losses, if any, to the standalone financial statements;

		

iii.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and
Protection Fund by the Company during the year ended 31 March 2021;

(C) With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
		

In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid by the Company
to its directors during the current year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197 of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate
Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to be commented upon by us.
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 138182W
Akshay Shah
Proprietor

Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 28 May 2021
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Appendix A to the Independent Auditor’s Report 31 March, 2021
(Referred to our report on even date)
(i)

In respect of the Company’s fixed assets :
a)

The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and situation of
fixed assets.

b)

The Company has a regular programme of physical verification of it’s, by which all fixed assets are verified in
a phased manner over a period of years. In accordance with this programme, a portion of the fixed assets has
been physically verified by the management during the year and no material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification. In our opinion, this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard to the size of the
Company and the nature of its assets.

c)

According to the information and explanations given to us and based on the examination of the registered sale deed
/ transfer deed / conveyance deed / share certificate / other documents evidencing title, we report that the title deeds
of immovable properties of land and building which are freehold, as disclosed in
note no. 8 to the standalone
financial statements, are held in the name of the Company. The Company have not taken any immovable properties
of land and buildings on lease.

(ii) The inventory, except goods-in-transit and goods lying with third parties, has been physically verified by the management
at reasonable intervals during the year. In our opinion, the frequency of such verification is reasonable. In respect of
inventory lying with third parties at year end, these have substantially been confirmed by them.
(iii) According to information and explanations given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, secured or unsecured,
to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or other parties covered in the register maintained under Section 189
of the Act. Accordingly paragraph 3(iii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(iv) According to the information and explanation given to us, the Company has complied with the provisions of Section 186
of the Act, in respect of making investments as applicable. The Company has not granted any loans or provided any
guarantees or security on behalf of the parties covered under Section 185 of the Act.
(v) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not accepted any deposits as per the
directives issued by the Reserve Bank of India under the provisions of Sections 73 to 76 or any other relevant provisions
of the Act and the rules framed there under.
(vi) We have broadly reviewed the records maintained by the Company pursuant to the rules prescribed by Central
Government for maintenance of cost records under Section 148 (1) of the Act and are of the opinion that prima facie, the
prescribed accounts and records have been made and maintained. However, we have not made a detailed examination
of the records.
(vii) According to the information and explanations given to us and the records of the Company examined by us, in our opinion,
the Company is regular in depositing the undisputed statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and
service tax, duty of customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory dues, as applicable, with the appropriate
authorities. According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, duty of customs, cess, professional tax and other material statutory
dues were in arrears as at 31 March 2021 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.
(viii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not taken any loans or
borrowings from any financial institution or bank or Government, nor has it issued any debentures. Accordingly paragraph
3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(ix) The Company has not raised any money by way of initial public offer, further public offer (including debt instruments) and
term loans during the year. Accordingly, the paragraph 3(ix) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(x) According to the information and explanations given to us, no material fraud by the Company or on the Company by its
officers or employees has been noticed or reported during the year.
(xi) According to the information and explanations give to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company
has paid or provided for managerial remuneration in accordance with the requisite approvals mandated by the provisions
of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.
(xii) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not a Nidhi company and
the Nidhi Rules, 2014 are not applicable to it. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xiii) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
transactions with related parties are in compliance with the provisions of Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where applicable
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and the details of such related party transactions have been disclosed in the standalone financial statements as required
under Indian Accounting Standard (Ind AS) 24.
(xiv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records, the Company
has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares or fully or partly convertible debentures during the
year. Accordingly, paragraph 3(xiv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xv) According to the information and explanations given to us and based on our examination of the records of the Company,
the Company has not entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him. Accordingly,
paragraph 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.
(xvi) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company is not required to be registered
under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934. Accordingly, paragraph 3 (xvi) of the Order is not applicable
to the Company
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 138182W
Akshay Shah
Proprietor
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 28 May 2021
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Annexure B to the Independent Auditors’ Report
On the standalone financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid standalone financial statements under Clause
(i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited
(“the Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the standalone financial statements of the Company for
the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls with reference to standalone
financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31 March 2021, based on the internal
financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by the Company considering the
essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial
Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements criteria established by
the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities
include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively
for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act”).
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing,
prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with reference to
standalone financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements
and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls with
reference to standalone financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls, assessing
the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the standalone financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Standalone Financial Statements
A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
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generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the standalone financial statements.
Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Standalone Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to standalone financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 138182W
Akshay Shah
Place:- Mumbai

Proprietor

Date:- 28 May 2021

Membership No.: 155729
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STANDALONE BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Note No.

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

8

956,345,537

784,974,035

Capital-work-in progress

8

58,765,608

122,099,969

Investments

9

2,010,700

2,010,700

Other non current assets

10

14,291,948

35,408,704

Deferred tax asset (net)

11

9,341,838

3,483,781

1,040,755,631

947,977,189

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

12

226,822,046

299,232,612

Trade receivables

13

227,325,686

190,163,862

Cash and cash equivalent

14

68,531,689

83,799,027

Current tax assets

15

66,487,081

20,163,529

Other current assets

16

91,097,053

52,642,409

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

680,263,554

646,001,439

1,721,019,185

1,593,978,628

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital

17

287,917,100

287,917,100

Other equity

18

1,296,254,643

1,166,933,874

1,584,171,743

1,454,850,974

Total Equity
Current liabilities
Trade payables to
		

- Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

		

- Others

19
-

-

68,337,528

42,749,579

Other financial liabilities

20

1,007,354

61,662,610

Provisions

21

-

13,710,623

Other current liabilities

22

3,052,560

1,004,842

Current tax liabilities

23

Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

64,450,000

20,000,000

136,847,442

139,127,654

1,721,019,185

1,593,978,628

The notes referred to above form an integral part of standalone financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

Rajesh Shukla
CEO & Executive Director

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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STANDALONE STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Note
No.

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Revenue from operations

24

1,074,535,950

981,806,221

Other income

25

11,781,996

12,585,260

1,086,317,946

994,391,481

Particulars
INCOME

Total income
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed

26

589,176,988

766,120,609

Changes in inventories

27

94,691,784

(117,164,863)

Employee benefits expenses

28

40,678,159

50,185,992

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

8

51,280,520

47,131,759

Finance cost

29

-

14,111,838

Other expenses

30

125,886,885

114,481,693

Total expenses

901,714,336

874,867,028

Profit before extraordinary items

184,603,610

119,524,453

Exceptional expenses

-

-

Extraordinary expenses

-

-

184,603,610

119,524,453

Profit before tax for the year
Less:
Current tax

44,450,000

20,000,000

Deferred tax (credit) / charge

(5,858,057)

(3,483,781)

2,294,421

-

143,717,246

103,008,234

Basic earnings per share

4.99

3.58

Diluted earnings per share

4.99

3.58

Income Tax of Earlier Years
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share (Face Value of ` 10/- Each)

33

The notes referred to above form an integral part of standalone financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

Rajesh Shukla
CEO & Executive Director

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

143,717,246

103,008,234

51,280,520

47,131,759

-

14,111,838

40,886,364

16,516,219

(3,275,451)

(3,635,139)

(2,383,030)

(753,604)

230,225,649

176,379,307

(37,161,824)

56,285,568

(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories

72,410,566

(134,478,617)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non-current assets

21,116,756

(12,297,397)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other current assets

(38,454,643)

-

(Decrease)/ Increase in Other financial liabilities

(60,655,256)

207,608

(Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions

(13,710,623)

1,958,659

(Decrease)/ Increase in Other liabilities

2,047,717

240,095

(Decrease)/ Increase in Trade payables

25,587,949

(30,979,397)

Particulars
CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit after Tax
Add: Non cash items / items considered separately
Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Cost
Provision for Income-Tax & deferred tax
Less: Non cash items / items considered separately
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
Interest Income
Operating profits before working capital changes
Changes In Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables

201,406,291

57,315,826

Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refund

(48,617,973)

(20,065,924)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATNG ACTIVITIES

152,788,318

37,249,902

2,383,030

753,604

-

174,223

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Sale of Fixed Assets
Purchase of Fixed Assets less re-capitalisation from Capital WIP

(100,552,053)

(26,392,936)

Amount spent on Capital WIP

(58,765,607)

(13,000,000)

NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(156,934,630)

(38,465,109)

-

61,148,959

3,275,451

3,635,139

(14,396,477)

(1,184,290)

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans received during the year
Net (loss) / Gain on foreign currency transactions
Dividend and dividend distribution tax
Finance Cost

-

(14,111,838)

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(11,121,026)

49,487,970

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(15,267,338)

48,272,763

Cash on Hand

3,759,148

1,194,831

Bank Balance

80,039,879

34,331,433

83,799,027

35,526,264

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
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STANDALONE CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Year ended
31 March 2021

Particulars

Year ended
31 March 2020

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year
Cash on Hand

889,527

3,759,148

Bank Balance

67,642,162

80,039,879

68,531,689

83,799,027

(15,267,338)

48,272,763

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The notes referred to above form an integral part of standalone financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

Rajesh Shukla
CEO & Executive Director

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021

Fiberweb India Limited

STANDALONE STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
A. Equity Share Capital
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Equity share capital

Balance at the
beginning of
the reporting
period i.e.
1 April 2019

Change in
Equity Share
Capital during
the year
2019-20

Balance at
the end of
the reporting
period i.e.
31 March 2020

Change in
Equity Share
Capital during
the year
2020-21

Balance at
the end of
the reporting
period i.e.
31 March 2021

287,917,100

-

287,917,100

-

287,917,100

B. Other Equity
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Total
Balance at the
beginning of Comprehensive
Income for the
the reporting
year
period i.e.
1 April 2019

Transfer
to / (from)
Retained
Earnings

Dividend
and dividend
distribution
tax on equity
shares

Balance at
the end of
the reporting
period i.e.
31 March 2020

Reserves and surplus
Securities premium reserve
Share reduction reserve
Revaluation reserve
General reserve
Capital reserve
Retained earnings

296,288,755

-

-

-

296,288,755

42,779,080

-

-

-

42,779,080

153,776,547

-

-

-

153,776,547

21,000,000

-

-

-

21,000,000

63,440

-

-

-

63,440

551,202,108

103,008,234

-

(1,184,290)

653,026,052

1,065,109,930

103,008,234

-

(1,184,290)

1,166,933,874

Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of
the reporting
period i.e.
1 April 2020

Total
Comprehensive
Income for the
year

Transfer
to / (from)
Retained
Earnings

Dividend
and dividend
distribution
tax on equity
shares

Balance at
the end of
the reporting
period i.e.
31 March 2021

296,288,755

-

-

-

296,288,755

Reserves and surplus
Securities premium reserve
Share reduction reserve
Revaluation reserve
General reserve
Capital reserve
Retained earnings

Annual Report 2020-21

42,779,080

-

-

-

42,779,080

153,776,547

-

-

-

153,776,547

21,000,000

-

-

-

21,000,000

63,440

-

-

-

63,440

653,026,052

143,717,246

-

(14,396,477)

782,346,821

1,166,933,874

143,717,246

-

(14,396,477)

1,296,254,643
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NOTES TO THE STANDALONE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
1.

Corporate information
Fiberweb (India) Limited (“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its shares are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchanges. The Registered office of Company is located at Airport Road, Kadaiya, Nani Daman,
Daman (U.T) 396210. The Company is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of Spunbond and Melt-blown
Nonwoven Fabrics from polypropylene.

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1. Statement of Compliance

		

These standalone financial statements of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred to
as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) read with Companies (Indian
Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting principles
generally accepted in India.

		

The financial statements have been prepared on accrual and going concern basis. The accounting policies are
applied consistently to all the periods presented in the financial statements. All assets and liabilities have been
classified as current or non-current as per the Company’s normal operating cycle and other criteria as set out in the
Division II of Schedule III to the Companies Act, 2013.

2.2. Basis of measurement
		

These standalone financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise indicated.

2.3. Use of estimate and judgements
		

The preparation of standalone financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future periods. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows

2.3.1. Property, plant and equipment
		

Determination of the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and the assessment as to which components
of the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed in Schedule II of the
Act. In cases, where the useful lives are different from that prescribed in Schedule II, they are based on technical
advice, taking into account the nature of the asset, the estimated usage of the asset, the operating conditions of the
asset, past history of replacement, anticipated technological changes, manufacturers’ warranties and maintenance
support.

2.3.2. Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
		

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Individual trade receivables are written off when management seems them not
collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model. The impairment provisions for financial assets
are based on assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates. Judgment in making these assumptions and
selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

2.3.3. Allowances for inventories
		

Management reviews the inventory age listing on periodic basis. The review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is required to be made in the standalone financial statement for any obsolete and slow-moving items.

2.3.4. Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
		

Deferred tax asset is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The management
assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognizing deferred tax asset/liability. Management judgment
is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company
reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax asset/liability. The factors used in estimates
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may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the standalone
financial statements.
2.3.5. Recognition and measurement of other provisions
		

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow
of resources and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figures included in other provisions.

2.3.6. Contingencies
		
3.

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/
claim/litigations against the Company as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.
Functional and Presentation Currency
The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees which is the functional currency for the Company.

4. Current / non-current classification
The Company classifies any asset as current when(a) It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Otherwise as non-current.
The Company classifies any liability as current when(a) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelvemonths after the reporting
period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.
Otherwise as non-current.
5.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents.
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

6.

Significant Accounting Policies
6.1. Property, Plant and Equipment

		

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

		

Cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

		

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Company depreciates these components separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

		

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.
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Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising
of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest, if any.

		

Property, plant and equipment are derecognized either on disposal or when the asset retires from active use. Losses
arising in the case of the retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of
property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

		

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, over the useful life of
the assets, as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added
/ disposed of during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis.

		

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

6.2. Financial Instruments
		

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

		Financial Assets
		

Classification:

		

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

		

Initial recognition and measurement:

		

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

		Subsequent measurement:
		

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

		

•

Financial assets at fair value ( FVTPL /FVTOCI)

		

•

Financial assets at amortized cost

		

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized in the statement of profit and loss
(i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).

		Financial Assets measured at amortized cost (net of write down for impairment, if any):
		

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is
to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

		

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”):

		

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, when asset
is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

		

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”):

		

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all
changes recognized in profit or loss.

		

Investment in Subsidiary:

		

Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries are measured at cost. In the financial statements, investment in
subsidiaries is carried at cost. The carrying amount is reduced to recognize any impairment in the value of investment.

		

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

		

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.
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Impairment of Financial Assets:

		

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments and trade receivables.

		Financial Liabilities:
		

Classification:

		

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

		

Initial recognition and measurement:

		

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

		

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments.

		Subsequent measurement:
		

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities:

		

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

6.3. Inventories
		

Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and the net realizable value, cost of which includes
duties and taxes (net of Goods and Service Tax wherever applicable). Cost of imported raw materials and packing
materials lying in warehouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished products and work- in-progress are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is arrived on moving weighted average basis.

		

The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share
of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

		

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

6.4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit/highly liquid
investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

		

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

6.5. Cash Flow Statement
		

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flow from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company is segregated.

6.6. Foreign Currency Transactions
		

Transactions in foreign currencies are translated into the Company’s functional currency at the exchange rates at the
dates of the transactions.
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Monetary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are translated into the functional currency at the
exchange rate at the reporting date. Non-monetary assets and liabilities that are measured at fair value in a foreign
currency are translated into the functional currency at the exchange rate when the fair value was determined. Nonmonetary assets and liabilities that are measured based on historical cost in a foreign currency are not translated.
Foreign currency exchange differences are generally recognized in the statement of profit and loss.

		

Exchange differences arising on the settlement of monetary items or on translating monetary items at rates different
from those at which they were translated on initial recognition during the period or in previous Financial Statements
are recognized in the Standalone Statement of Profit and Loss in the period in which they arise.

6.7. Revenue Recognition
		

Under Ind AS 115, the Company recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the customer.

		

Sale of Goods

		

The Company applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is specified in a contract with customer. Revenues are
net of estimated returns and taxes collected from customers.

		

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the customer and it is
probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon the shipment of the goods to the
customer or when goods are made available to the customer.

		

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed credit terms
with customers.

		

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that
a significant reversal will not occur.

		

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognized and recorded based on historical experience, market
conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology and assumptions used to
estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade practices, historical trends, past experience
and projected market conditions.

		Interest income
		

Interest income is recognizes with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

		

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

		

Export benefit available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the goods are exported
and/ or services are rendered only when there is reasonable assurance that the condition attached to them will be
complied with and the amounts will be received.

6.8. Employee Benefit
		

Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement of profit
and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered;

		

Post-Employment Benefits

		

Defined contribution plans: Company’s contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognized during
the year in which the related service is rendered;

		

The company has not ascertained liability towards payment of gratuity and hence no provision has been made in
accounts. It is accounted for on the basis of payment.

		

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Benefits such as salaries, wages, short-term compensated absences, performance incentives etc., and the
expected cost of bonus, ex- gratia are recognized during the period in which the employee renders related service.
Retirement benefits are accounted as and when the same become due for payment.

6.9. Borrowing Costs
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Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
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other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
6.10. Lease
		

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis over the period of the lease in a manner which is representative of the time pattern in which benefit
derived from the use of the leased asset is diminished.

6.11.Earing Per Share
		

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

		

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning
of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

6.12.Income Taxes
		

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in
the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which
case it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized
at the amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the tax rates and tax laws that
have been enacted by the balance sheet date. Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
financial statements.

		

Deferred tax assets are reviewed at each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable
that the related tax benefit will be realized.

		

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using tax rates and tax laws that have been enacted or
substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in the years in which
those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled.

		

The effect of changes in tax rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in
the period that includes the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized
to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary
differences and tax losses can be utilized. The Company offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it
has a legally enforceable right to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis,
or to realize the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.

		

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can
be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as an asset is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

6.13. Dividends to Shareholders
		

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability for the previous year for which the
dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognized on approval by Board of
Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognized directly in equity.

6.14. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
		General
		

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

		

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.
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If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain reimbursement.

		

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

		

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

		

•

a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation;

		

•

a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;

		

•

a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

		

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the standalone financial statements. Contingent assets are
neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

		

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets and
Non-cancellable operating lease.

		

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

7.

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:
The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization
with adverse impact on economy and business. Supply Chain disruptions in India as a result of the outbreak started with
restrictions on movement of goods, closure of borders etc., in several states followed by a nationwide lockdown from the
25th of March 2020 announced by the Indian Government, to stem the spread of COVID-19. Due to this, the operations
in Company’s manufacturing activities got temporarily disrupted.
In light of these circumstances, the Company has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of financials assets, inventory, receivables, advances, property plant and equipment etc. as well as
liabilities accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the Company has used internal and external information such as our current contract terms,
financial strength of partners, investment profile, future volume estimates from the business etc. Having reviewed the
underlying data and based on current estimates the Company expects the carrying amount of these assets will be
recovered and there is no significant impact on liabilities accrued. The impact of COVID-19 on the Company’s financial
statements may differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the Company will
continue to closely monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

88

Fiberweb India Limited

Annual Report 2020-21

89

-

6,895,203

122,099,969

74,126,794

6,056,457

-

5,063,989

18,712,784

1,150,727

9,971,667

1,035,449

658,850

2,831,935

2,191,227

19,130,250

58,765,608

-

- 1,763,557,253 755,931,197

421,548,467

171,962,380

-

-

4,680,943

-

2,986,770
7,246,975

-

2,373,816

58,765,607 122,099,969

222,652,021

7,291,560
22,039,345

Total Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

B] Capital work-in-progress *

1,540,905,232

347,421,673

24,439,386

147,522,994
-

139,500

Melt blown machinery

Total

113,300
6,270,000

33,240,684

1 April 2020
-

-

51,280,519

11,141,168

575,363

7,226,623

431,655

487,291

5,497

14,132

899,978

294,984

27,810,748

2,393,081

Additions

35,633,765

-

5,358,973

-

1,015,111,145

58,765,608

956,345,537

- 807,211,716
-

391,694,515

29,853,952

-

4,330,367

154,764,090

3,213,839

6,100,834

149,338

168,457

2,009,117

1,932,587

1,726,090

17,198,290

1,467,104

1,146,141

2,837,432

2,205,359

20,030,228

152,418,607

43,681,649

195,882,137

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

- 689,754,383

-

-

Deletion 31 March 2021 31 March 2021

Net block

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation loss

842,172,990 661,943,635

79,315,414

195,882,137

31 March 2021

-

-

28,906

-

396,357

4,541,443

6,056,457

Melt blown building

Melt blown electrical items

976,975

2,873,470

Computer

Other electrical items

2,344,910

22,039,345

-

2,388,722

79,315,414

839,784,268

-

Deletion

114,749,057

Additions

81,133,080

1 April 2020

Office equipment

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

Plant and equipment

Building

Freehold land

Property, plant and equipment

	Melt blown fire fighting
equipment

A]

Particulars

Gross block

Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and investment property

8.1 Current year

8
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67,779,796

6,056,457

-

-

122,099,969

1,540,905,232

347,421,673

147,522,994

-

-

976,975
4,541,443

-

2,873,470

-

* Figures in Capital work in progress deletion column indicates re-capitalisation during the year

Total Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

13,000,000

26,392,936

109,099,969

1,514,946,639

B] Capital work-in-progress

Total

5,425,000

341,996,673

-

7,569,769

Melt blown machinery

139,953,225

6,056,457

Melt blown building

-

208,771

4,541,443

768,204

Melt blown electrical items

Other electrical items

99,400

2,774,070

Computer

2,344,910

-

22,039,345

-

21,386
-

6,895,203

-

338,487

2,344,910

22,452,302

6,556,716

839,784,268

79,315,414

81,133,080

31 March 2020

-

-

11,535,618
1,194,505

-

Deletion
-

Additions

Office equipment

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

838,589,763

Building

Plant and equipment

81,133,080

Freehold land

Property, plant and equipment

1 April 2019

	Melt blown fire fighting
equipment

A]

Particulars

Gross block

Property, plant and equipment, capital work-in-progress and investment property

8.2 Previous year

8

-

-

709,059,558

10,496,287

230,145

2,010,343

172,575

506,593

2,732,536

1,583,885

18,299,925

4,514,161

639,041,988

29,471,120

1 April 2019
-

-

47,131,759

8,216,497

920,582

7,961,324

862,874

152,257

99,399

607,342

1,090,445

549,828

22,901,647

3,769,564

Additions

1,150,727
18,712,784
755,931,197
-

-

9,971,667

1,035,449

658,850

2,831,935

2,191,227

19,130,250

5,063,989

661,943,635

33,240,684

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deletion 31 March 2020

907,074,004

122,099,969

784,974,035

328,708,889

4,905,730

137,551,327

3,505,994

318,125

41,535

153,683

2,909,095

1,831,214

177,840,633

46,074,730

81,133,080

31 March 2020

Net block

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation loss

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
9

Investment in subsidiary
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted, at cost)
- In Subsidiary
100 ( 31 March 2020 - 100) Ordinary shares of `100 fully paid up Sheth
Nonwoven Trading FTZ

2,000,000

2,000,000

- In Others
Goa Bank 107 (31 March 2020 - 107) Ordinary shares of `100 fully paid up
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

10,700

10,700

2,010,700

2,010,700

2,010,700

2,010,700

Information about subsidiary
Proportion (%) of equity interest
Name of the Company / Country of incorporation / Principle activity
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ / United Arabs Emirates / Trading of Nonwoven fabrics

As at
31 March, 2021
100%

As at
31 March, 2020
100%

10 Other non current assets
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances
Capital advances

7,015,199

Advance to Sheth Non Woven Trading FZE

28,131,955

7,276,749

7,276,749

14,291,948

35,408,704

11 Deferred tax asset
Particulars
Deferred tax asset

As at
31 March, 2021
9,341,838
9,341,838

As at
31 March, 2020
3,483,781
3,483,781

12 Inventories
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
Raw materials

118,860,885

98,010,186

Finished goods

85,319,324

180,011,108

Stores and spares

20,608,975

20,588,189

Packing materials

2,032,862

623,129

226,822,046

299,232,612

Annual Report 2020-21

91

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
13 Trade receivables
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due
for payment
Other trade receivable

-

-

227,325,686

190,163,862

-

-

227,325,686

190,163,862

Less: Loss allowance
14 Cash and cash equivalents 		
Particulars
Cash on hand

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

889,527

3,759,148

Balances with banks
-

In current accounts

19,288,811

72,714,228

-

In EEFC (Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency) accounts

45,736,298

4,930,929

2,617,053

2,394,722

68,531,689

83,799,027

Balances held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees
and other commitments

Balances with banks include margin monies amounting to ` 26,17,053/- (31 March, 2020: ` 23,94,722/) which have an original maturity of more than 12 months and also, includes Unclaimed Dividend of ` 8,01,200/(31 March 2020: ` 3,06,043/-)
15 Current tax assets
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Taxes related to:
-

Current year

46,390,290

-

-

Previous year

20,096,791

20,163,529

66,487,081

20,163,529

16 Other current assets
Particulars
Other than capital advances

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

59,659,265

41,813,848

930,769

779,311

10,496,686

9,787,187

Custom duty advance deposit

61,493

232,063

Deposit - Sales tax authority

30,000

30,000

Tax collected at source

82,838

-

19,836,001

-

91,097,053

52,642,409

Prepaid expenses
Other Deposit
Balance with government authorities

Goods & service tax paid
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Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
17 Equity share capital
As at
31 March 2021

Particulars

As at
31 March 2020

(a) Authorised
	5,00,00,000 (31 March 2020: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of `10/each

500,000,000

500,000,000

287,917,100

287,917,100

287,917,100

287,917,100

(b) Issued, subscribed & paid up
	28,791,710 (31 March 2020: 28,791,710) equity shares of `10/- each
(i)

Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares
Equity shares
Opening number/amount of equity shares
Add/(Less):
Issued / forfeited during the year
Closing number/amount of equity shares

As at 31 March 2021
Nos.
`
28,791,710
287,917,100

As at 31 March 2020
Nos.
`
28,791,710
287,917,100

28,791,710

28,791,710

287,917,100

287,917,100

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares having at par value of `10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is
eligible to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by each shareholder, after
settlement of all preferential obligations.
(iii) The Company is not a subsidiary of any other company.
(iv) Details of held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Nos.

Nos.

% held

% held

Equity shares with voting rights
Pravin V Sheth

3,554,873

12.35

3,554,873

12.35

Bhavesh P Sheth

6,249,596

21.71

6,249,596

21.71

Gayatri Pipes and Fittings Pvt Ltd

3,521,463

12.23

3,500,000

12.16

(v) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2021
a

11,00,000 equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2018

b

1,43,95,855 bonus equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2018

c

7,00,000 equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2017

d

For the year ended 31 March 2016, 43,97,238 number of shares were reduced and further allotment of 60,00,000
shares was made as per BIFR order dated 20 October 2015.

18 Other equity		
Particulars
Securities/Share Premium account
Share Reduction Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
General Reserve
Capital Reserve
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As at
31 March 2021
296,288,755
42,779,080
153,776,547
21,000,000
63,440

As at
31 March 2020
296,288,755
42,779,080
153,776,547
21,000,000
63,440
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Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Particulars
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Less: Dividend and dividend distribution tax
Add: Profit for the year
Closing balance

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

653,026,052
(14,396,477)
143,717,246
782,346,821
1,296,254,643

551,202,108
(1,184,290)
103,008,234
653,026,052
1,166,933,874

19 Trade payables
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Total outstanding due to:
-

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise

-

Others

-

-

68,337,528

42,749,579

68,337,528

42,749,579

20 Other current financial liabilities
Particulars
Dividend

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

1,007,354

513,651

-

61,148,959

1,007,354

61,662,610

Short term loan (secured)
-

From banks

Security/Hypothecation:
The loan is primarily secured by hypothecation of raw-materials, finished goods, outstanding money, book debts and
reveivables alongwith a collateral security of the Plant & Machinery and Factory Land & Buildings bearing Survey No.:
Plot No. 92/93B Village limit Kadiya, Nani Daman - 396210 admeasuring total area : 17627.75 sq. mtr.
Rate of Interest:
Working capital loan (Export Packing Credit) @ 9.10% p.a. and Working capital loan (Export Packing Credit) @
LIBOR(6M) + 2%.
The above loan is repayable on demand.
21 Provisions
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefits

-

3,156,326

Provision for expenses

-

10,554,297

-

13,710,623

22 Other current liabilities
Particulars
Advance from customers
Statutory dues **
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As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

101,727

101,727

2,950,833

903,115

3,052,560

1,004,842
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Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

** Statutory dues
Tax deducted at source
Professional tax
Goods & service tax
Tax collected at source

513,818

240,832

1,775

2,150

2,410,934

660,133

24,306

-

23 Current tax liabilities
Particulars
Provision for tax

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

64,450,000

20,000,000

64,450,000

20,000,000

24 Revenue from operations
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Sale of:
-

Finished goods

Other operating revenues

1,073,971,801

980,142,421

564,149

1,663,800

1,074,535,950

981,806,221

25 Other income
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Interest income
- from banks

1,993,740

377,664

- from others

389,290

375,940

Export schemes

6,123,515

7,054,848

Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation

3,275,451

3,635,139

-

1,141,669

11,781,996

12,585,260

Refund from government authorities
26 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars
Opening stock
Add: Purchases
Less: Closing stock

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

98,010,186

80,826,199

610,027,687

783,304,596

708,037,873

864,130,795

(118,860,885)

(98,010,186)

589,176,988

766,120,609

27 Changes in inventories of finished goods
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods

85,319,324

180,011,108

180,011,108

62,846,245

94,691,784

(117,164,863)

Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods
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Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
28 Employee benefits expense
Particulars
Salaries and wages

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

37,486,479

41,939,225

2,316,496

2,685,664

875,184

5,561,103

40,678,159

50,185,992

Employee benefit plans
- Provident and other funds
- Gratuity and other benefit plans
Employee benefits :
As required by Ind AS 19 ‘ Employee Benefits’ the disclosures are as under:
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company offers its employees defined contribution plans in the form of provident fund (PF) and Employees’
pension scheme (EPS) for all employees, with the government authorities. Contributions are made to the Government
administered funds. While both the employees and the Company pay predetermined contributions into the Provident
Fund, contributions into the Pension fund is made only by the Company. The Company recognised ` 23,16,496/- (31
March, 2020 : ` 26,85,664,/-) The contributions are normally based on a certain proportion of the employee’s salary and
the contribution payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
29 Finance cost:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Interest expenses

-

10,857,425

Other finance cost

-

3,254,413

-

14,111,838

30 Other expenses
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Manufacturing expense

63,502,223

15,528,869

Power and fuel

22,372,466

20,808,724

Bank charges

620,007

1,613,964

Communication

233,045

357,970
3,412,200

Donations and contributions

4,126,000

Insurance

1,216,879

433,417

Legal and professional

2,774,332

8,198,656

Postage and printing expenses

1,066,665

1,461,724

254,248

1,372,649

Rent

1,260,000

1,562,000

Security charges

1,284,000

1,564,645

50,000

135,000

Rates and taxes

Directors sitting fees
Travelling expenses
Branch expenses (US)
Other expenses

675,982

2,352,475

18,139,480

17,464,360

5,592,076

2,918,634

57,985

-

390,731

127,069

Repairs and maintenance
- for buildings
- for machinery
- for others
Selling & distribution expenses
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531,029

857,273

34,638,308

125,886,885

114,481,693
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31 Remuneration to auditors:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Audit fees

200,000

200,000

Tax Audit fees

200,000

200,000

Certification & Other matters

115,000

-

Out of pocket expenses

100,000

100,000

615,000

500,000

32 Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
As per section 135 of the Act, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The fund are utilized during the
year on the activities which are specified in schedule VII of the Act. The utilization is done by way of direct and indirect
contribution towards various activities.
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is ` 28.48 Lakh (31 March, 2020: ` 31.11 Lakh)
The particulars of CSR activities and amount spent are as follows:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Education

2,575,000

2,800,000

Health / Medical Relief

1,500,000

600,000

Others
Total

51,000

12,200

4,126,000

3,412,200

33 Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’)		
The numerator and denominator used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share:
Particulars
Profit attributable to equity holders for Basic and diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Basic and
diluted EPS
Basic and diluted earning per share

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

143,717,246

103,008,234

28,791,710

28,791,710

4.99

3.58

34 Details of dues to Micro And Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
development act, 2006:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises(as per the
intimation received from vendors)
a)

Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid

-

-

b)

Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small and
Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount of the
payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day

-

-

c)

Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment (which
have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period) but without
adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Act,
2006

-

-

d)

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid

-

-

e)

Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until such
date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small enterprises

-

-

-

-

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and small
enterprises

This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company.
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35 Working for Capital Work in progress:
‘Expenses capitalized during the year represent direct attributable expenditure for setting up of plants prior to the date of
commencement of commercial production. The same were capitalized on completion of projects and commencement of
commercial operations. The details of expenses capitalized are:
Particulars
Opening Balance

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

122,099,969

109,099,969

32,722,977

8,000,000

Add: Incurred during the year towards
Power & labour expenses
Others
Less: Re-capitalized to tangible assets
Closing Balance

26,042,630

5,000,000

(122,099,969)

-

58,765,607

122,099,969

36 Commitments and Contingencies:
Contingent Liabilities
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Disputed by the Company
Anti-dumping duty

15,277,776

15,277,776

Custom duty

29,484,852

29,484,852

1,744,964

1,744,964

Central Excise duty

Central Excise Department has ordered the Company to pay Anti-dumping duty of ` 1,37,77,776/- vide an
order dated 3 February, 2017 on imports of Polypropylene for the period beginning from August 2009 to March
2015, along with interest and penalty at the appropriate rate. The department has also imposed a penalty of
` 15,00,000/- on Mr. G. R. Ravindran, the then Executive Director of the Company.
The Company presented the BIFR order in rehabilitation scheme specifically directing the Central Excise & Custom
Department for the waiver of penalty and interest, since the Company is 100% Export Oriented Unit, at Daman. The
Company has made a deposit for appeal @ 7.5% on the disputed duty amounting to ` 10,33,333/- and 7.5% on penalty
imposed amounting to ` 1,12,500/. The Company has filed an appeal on 12 May, 2017 in the Customs, Excise and
Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Ahmedabad against the said order. The said matter is pending before the Appellate
Tribunal.
Customs and Central Excise Department, Daman has raised a demand on 26 September 2019 towards Custom
duty of ` 2,94,84,852/- alongwith interest and penalty as applicable. Also a demand of Central Excise duty for
` 17,44,964/- alongwith interest and penalty as applicable. The Company has made a deposit for appeal
@ 7.5% on the disputed duty amounting to ` 22,11,344/- and 7.5% on disputed excise duty amounting to
` 1,30,873/-. The Company has filed an appeal on 9 January, 2020 in the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate
Tribunal, Ahmedabad against the said order. The said matter is pending before the Appellate Tribunal.
The Company does not expect the outcome of the matters stated above to have any material adverse impact on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Capital Commitment
Particulars
Advance for Land acquisition and development

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
-

28,131,955

The Company had committed to spend as at 31 March 2021 approximately ` Nil (31 March 2020 : ` 3,91,14,795/-)
under agreements to purchase/ construct property and equipment. These amounts are net of capital advances paid in
respect of these purchases.
37 Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 -“ Leases”:
Company has taken office premise on lease for 11 months, which is generally cancellable/renewable on mutually
agreeable terms. There is no restrictions imposed by these lease arrangement and there are no sub lease. There are no
contingent rents.
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38 Foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities
 ompany is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales,
C
purchases and borrowings are denominated and the functional currency of Company. The currencies in which these
transactions are primarily denominated is US dollars.
The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as
below:
The following table analyses foreign currency risk as:
31 March 2021
31 March 2020
Amount in "US Dollars"
19,766
19,766
663,857
244,450

Particulars
Bank Balance
Trade Receivables

The audited statement of accounts of USA Branch have not been received till the date of signing the Audit Report of the
Company. All original documents are lying with US Office. The value of total transactions is ` 1,81,39,480/- (31st March,
2020: ` 1,74,64,360/-) i.e. US$ 2,47,200 (31st March, 2020: US$ 247,200) as against total turnover of ` 1,07,45,35,950/(31st March, 2020: ` 98,18,06,221/-), i.e. 1.69% (31st March, 2020: 1.78%) which is insignificant, from the materiality
point of view.
39 Related party disclosure as required by IND AS 24 are given below:
A) Relationships :
Category I - Subsidiary
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ
Category II - Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
Pravin V Sheth
Bhavesh Sheth
Soniya P Sheth
P S Krishnan (uptil 07.11.2019)
Mukesh Pandya (w.e.f. 08.11.2019)
Dipika Shinde (uptill 27.02.2021)
Sonal Sharma (Uptill 31.05.2019)
Sonali Rudre (w.e.f. 28.05.2021)
Dhwani Sheth

Chairman Emeritus
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Chief Financials Officer
Chief Financials Officer
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Daughter of Director

Category III - Enterprise over which persons covered under Category II above are able to exercise significant
control:
Kunststoffe Industries Limited
Sun Capital & Consultancy Private Limited
Sun Properties Private Limited
Star Developers Private Limited
B) The following transaction were carried out with related parties :
Particulars
Compensation to Key Managerial Person
Short Term Employee Benefits
P S Krishnan
Mukesh Pandya
Dipika Shinde
Gratuity
Pravin Sheth

Annual Report 2020-21
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31 March 2020

1,482,000
319,657

1,017,600
625,000
-

-

4,113,461
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Particulars
Leave Encashment
Pravin Sheth

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
-

5,425,000

3,000,000
-

1,800,000
476,667

Loan received
Pravin Sheth

-

2,000,000

Loan repaid
Pravin Sheth

-

2,000,000

1,200,000

96,000
1,200,000

Compensation paid
Pravin Sheth
Sun Capital & Consultancy Private Limited
Sun Properties Private Limited
Star Developers Private Limited

24,000
7,000
7,000
-

28,000
28,000
24,000

Sale of MEIS License to
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

93,073

1,682,344

Professional fees paid
Pravin V Sheth
P S Krishnan

Rent paid
Pravin Sheth
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

		
Director sitting fees are paid during the year which are not considered in the related party transactions		
C) Amount outstanding :
Particulars
Investment in wholly owned Subsidiary
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

2,000,000

2,000,000

Advances
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ

7,276,749

7,276,749

Payable
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

236,843

2,956,442

40 Debtors and Creditors balances are subject to confirmations from the parties.
41 In the opinion of the Board of Directors the Current Assets, Loans & Advances except those shown as doubtful have
a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which items are stated in the
Balance Sheet.
42 Figures of the current year and previous year have been re-grouped / rearranged /reclassified wherever necessary.
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021

100

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

Rajesh Shukla
CEO & Executive Director

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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To,
The Members of,
FIBERWEB (INDIA) LIMITED

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Holding
Company’) and its subsidiary (Holding Company and its Subsidiary together referred to as ‘the Group’), which comprise the
consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2021, the consolidated statement of profit and loss (including Other Comprehensive
Income, if any), consolidated statement of cash flow and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended
and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of the significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information (hereinafter referred to as ‘consolidated financial statements’).
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, and based on the consideration
of reports of other auditors on separate financial statements of the subsidiary company as were audited by other auditors, the
aforesaid consolidated financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (‘Act’) in the manner
so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the
consolidated state of affairs of the Group as at 31 March 2021, of its consolidated profit and other comprehensive income,
consolidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity for the year then ended.
Basis for Opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified under section 143(10) of the Act.
Our responsibilities under those SAs are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in accordance with the ethical requirements
that are relevant to our audit of the consolidated financial statements in terms of the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute
of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAI’) and the relevant provisions of the Act, and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with these requirements. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the
consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in sub paragraph (a) of the “Other Matters” paragraph below, is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the consolidated
financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated
financial statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon. We have determined that there were no key audit matters
to communicate in our report.
Other Information
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the holding Company’s annual report but does not include the financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon.
Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information and we do not express any form of
assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information and,
in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements or
our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on the work we have done/
unaudited report of other auditor, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.
Management’s and Board of Directors’ Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements
The Holding Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the preparation and presentation of these
consolidated financial statements in term of the requirements of the Act that give a true and fair view of the consolidated state
of affairs, consolidated profit and other comprehensive income, consolidated changes in equity and consolidated cash flows of
the Group in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards
(Ind AS) specified under section 133 of the Act. The respective Management and Board of Directors of the companies included
in the Group are responsible for maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for
safeguarding of the assets of the each company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection
and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent; and the
design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring
the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the consolidated
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financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error
, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements by the Management and
Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.
In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the respective Management and Board of Directors included in the Group
are responsible for assessing the ability of each company to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless the respective Board of Directors either
intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.
The respective Board of Directors of the companies included in the Group is responsible for overseeing the financial reporting
process of each company.
Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs will
always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material
if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:
•

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations,
or the override of internal control;

•

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate
in the circumstances. Under section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on internal
financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls
based on our audit;

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and related
disclosures made by management and Board of Directors;

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management and Board of Directors use of the going concern basis of accounting
in preparation of consolidated financial statements and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a
going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report
to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future
events or conditions may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern;

•

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether
the consolidated financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair
presentation;

•

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of such entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audit of financial information of such entities included in the consolidated financial
statements of which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the consolidated financial
statements, which have been audited by other auditors, such other auditors remain responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion. Our
responsibilities in this regard are further described in Para (a) of the section titled ‘Other Matters’ in this audit report.

We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred
to in sub-paragraph (a) of the Other Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the consolidated financial statements.
We communicate with those charged with governance of the Holding Company and such other entity included in the
consolidated financial statements of which we are the independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we
identify during our audit.
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We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those matters that were of most
significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters.
We describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Other Matters
We did not audit the financial statements / financial information of a subsidiary, whose financial statements/financial information
reflect total assets as at 31 March 2021, total revenues and net cash flows for the year ended on that date, as considered
in the consolidated financial statements. These financial statements/financial information were unaudited by other auditors
and the unaudited reports have been furnished to us by the Management for the then year ended and our opinion on the
consolidated financial statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of these subsidiary,
and our report in terms of sub-section (3) of Section 143 of the Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid subsidiary is based
solely on the unaudited reports of the other auditors.
In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us on the consolidated financial
statements, and our report on Other Legal and Regulatory requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters
with respect to our reliance on the work done and the unaudited reports of the other auditors and the financial statements/
financial information certified by the Management.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
A.

B.

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, based on our audit and on the consideration of unaudited reports of the other
auditors on separate financial statements of such subsidiary as were unaudited by other auditors, as noted in the ‘Other
Matters’ paragraph, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
a)

We have sought and obtained relevant information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and belief
were necessary for the purpose of our audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;

b)

In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to preparation of the aforesaid consolidated
financial statement have been kept so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the unaudited
reports of the other auditors;

c)

The consolidated balance sheet, the consolidated statement of profit and loss, the consolidated statement of changes
in equity and the consolidated statement of cash flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of
accounts maintained for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated financial statements;

d)

In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with Ind AS specified under section 133 of the
Act;

e)

On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the Holding Company as on 31 March 2021
taken on record by the Board of Directors of the Holding Company none of the directors of the Holding Company is
disqualified as on 31 March 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of section 164(2) of the Act;

f)

With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of
the Holding Company incorporated in India and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate
Report in “Annexure A”.

With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with rule 11 of the Companies
(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 (as amended), in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to
the explanations given to us and based on the consideration of the reports of the other auditors on separate financial
statements of the subsidiaries, as noted in the ‘Other Matters’ paragraph:
i.

The consolidated financial statements disclose the impact of pending litigation as at
consolidated financial position of the Group;

ii.

The Group did not have any material foreseeable losses on long-term contracts including derivative contracts during
the year ended 31 March 2021;

iii.

There has been no delay in transferring amounts, required to be transferred, to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Holding Company incorporated in India during the year ended 31 March 2021;

iv.

The disclosure in the consolidated financial statements regarding holdings as well as dealings in specified bank
notes were applicable for the period from 8 November 2016 to 30 December 2016 have not been made in these
financial statements since they do not pertain to the financial year ended 31 March 2021:
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C.

With respect to the matter to be included in the Auditors’ Report under section 197(16):
In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the remuneration paid during the current year
by the Holding Company, to its directors is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 of the Act. The remuneration
paid to any director by the Holding Company incorporated in India is not in excess of the limit laid down under Section 197
of the Act. The Ministry of Corporate Affairs has not prescribed other details under Section 197(16) which are required to
be commented upon by us.
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 138182W
Akshay Shah
Proprietor

Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 28 May 2021
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Annexure A to the Independent Auditors’ Report
On the consolidated financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited for the year ended 31 March 2021.
Report on the internal financial controls with reference to the aforesaid consolidated financial statements under
Clause (i) of Sub- section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013
(Referred to in paragraph 2(A)(f) under ‘Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’ section of our report of even
date)
Opinion
We have audited the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements of Fiberweb (India) Limited
(“the Holding Company”) as of 31 March 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
Company for the year ended on that date.
In our opinion, the Holding Company incorporated in India has, in all material respects, adequate internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and such internal financial controls were operating effectively as at 31
March 2021, based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal
Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).
Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls
The Company’s management and the Board of Directors are responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial
controls based on the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements criteria established by the
Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These responsibilities include
the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring
the orderly and efficient conduct of its business, including adherence to respective company’s policies, the safeguarding of
its assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and
the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (hereinafter referred to
as “the Act”).
Auditors’ Responsibility
Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated
financial statements based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards
on Auditing, prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial controls with
reference to consolidated financial statements. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical
requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial
controls with reference to consolidated financial statements were established and maintained and whether such controls
operated effectively in all material respects.
Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements and their operating effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls
with reference to consolidated financial statements included obtaining an understanding of such internal financial controls,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of
internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgement, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.
We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on
the Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements.
Meaning of Internal Financial Controls with reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
A Company’s internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statement is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external
purposes in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company’s internal financial controls with reference
to financial statements include those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonable
detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statements in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made only in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company’s assets that could
have a material effect on the consolidated financial statements.
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Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls with Reference to Consolidated Financial Statements
Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial statements, including
the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may
occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls with reference to financial
statements to future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial controls with reference to consolidated financial
statements may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or
procedures may deteriorate.
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No.: 138182W
Akshay Shah
Proprietor
Place:- Mumbai
Date:- 28 May 2021
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CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET AS AT 31 MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Note No.

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment

10

956,345,537

784,974,035

Capital-work-in progress

10

58,765,608

122,099,969

Investments

11

10,700

10,700

Other non current assets

12

7,015,199

28,131,955

Deferred tax asset (net)

13

9,341,838

3,483,781

1,031,478,882

938,700,440

Total non-current assets
Current assets
Inventories

14

226,822,046

299,232,612

Trade receivables

15

403,843,350

366,681,526

Cash and cash equivalent

16

69,452,386

84,719,724

Current tax assets

17

66,487,081

20,163,529

Other current assets

18

90,642,469

52,187,825

Total current assets
TOTAL ASSETS

857,247,331

822,985,216

1,888,726,213

1,761,685,656

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity
Equity share capital

19

287,917,100

287,917,100

Other equity

20

1,463,961,671

1,334,640,902

1,751,878,771

1,622,558,002

-

-

68,337,528

42,749,579

1,007,354

61,662,610
13,710,623

Total Equity
Current liabilities
Trade payables to
-

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

-

Others

21

Other financial liabilities

22

Provisions

23

-

Other current liabilities

24

3,052,560

1,004,842

Current tax liabilities

25

64,450,000

20,000,000

Total Liabilities
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES

136,847,442

139,127,654

1,888,726,213

1,761,685,656

The notes referred to above form an integral part of consolidated financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT AND LOSS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31 MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Note
No.

Year ended
31 March, 2021

Year ended
31 March, 2020

INCOME
Revenue from operations

26

1,074,535,950

981,806,221

Other income

27

11,781,996

12,585,260

1,086,317,946

994,391,481

Total income
EXPENSES
Cost of materials consumed

28

589,176,988

766,120,609

Changes in inventories

29

94,691,784

(117,164,863)

Employee benefits expenses

30

40,678,159

50,185,992

Depreciation and amortisation expenses

10

51,280,520

47,131,759

Finance cost

31

-

14,111,838

Other expenses

32

125,886,885

114,481,693

Total expenses

901,714,336

874,867,028

Profit before extraordinary items

184,603,610

119,524,453

-

-

Exceptional expenses
Extraordinary expenses

-

-

184,603,610

119,524,453

Current tax

44,450,000

20,000,000

Deferred tax (credit) / charge

(5,858,057)

(3,483,781)

2,294,421

-

143,717,246

103,008,234

Basic earnings per share

4.99

3.58

Diluted earnings per share

4.99

3.58

Profit before tax for the year
Less:

Income Tax of Earlier Years
Total comprehensive income
Earnings per share (Face Value of `10/- Each)

35

The notes referred to above form an integral part of consolidated financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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CEO & Executive Director
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Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
PARTICULARS

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

143,717,246

103,008,234

51,280,520

47,131,759

-

14,111,838

40,886,364

16,516,219

(3,275,451)

(3,635,139)

CASH FLOW FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES
Net profit after Tax
Add: Non cash items / items considered separately
Depreciation and Amortisation
Finance Cost
Provision for Income-Tax & deferred tax
Less: Non cash items / items considered separately
Net gain on foreign currency transactions and translation
Interest Income
Operating profits before working capital changes

(2,383,030)

(753,604)

230,225,649

176,379,307

Changes In Working Capital
(Increase)/ Decrease in Trade Receivables
(Increase)/ Decrease in Inventories
(Increase)/ Decrease in Other non-current assets

(37,161,824)

56,285,568

72,410,566

(134,478,617)

21,116,756

(12,297,397)

(Increase)/ Decrease in Other current assets

(38,454,643)

-

(Decrease)/ Increase in Other financial liabilities

(60,655,256)

207,608

(Decrease)/ Increase in Provisions

(13,710,623)

1,958,659

(Decrease)/ Increase in Other liabilities

2,047,717

240,095

(Decrease)/ Increase in Trade payables

25,587,949

(30,979,397)

201,406,291

57,315,826

Net Income Tax (Paid) / Refund

(48,617,973)

(20,065,924)

NET CASH FLOW FROM OPERATNG ACTIVITIES

152,788,318

37,249,902

2,383,030

753,604

CASH FLOW FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Interest Income
Sale of Fixed Assets
	Purchase of Fixed Assets less re-capitalisation from Capital WIP
Amount spent on Capital WIP
NET CASH FLOW USED IN INVESTING ACTIVITIES

-

174,223

(100,552,053)

(26,392,936)

(58,765,607)

(13,000,000)

(156,934,630)

(38,465,109)

-

61,148,959

CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Loans received during the year
Net (loss) / Gain on foreign currency transactions
Dividend and dividend distribution tax
Finance Cost

3,275,451

3,635,139

(14,396,477)

(1,184,290)

-

(14,111,838)

NET CASH FLOW FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES

(11,121,026)

49,487,970

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

(15,267,338)

48,272,763

Cash on Hand

4,679,845

2,115,528

Bank Balance

80,039,879

34,331,433

84,719,724

36,446,961

Cash & Cash Equivalent at the beginning of the year
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CONSOLIDATED CASH FLOW STATEMENT FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31ST MARCH 2021
Amount in Indian Currency `
PARTICULARS

Year ended
31 March 2021

Year ended
31 March 2020

Less: Cash & Cash Equivalent at the end of the year
Cash on Hand

1,810,224

4,679,845

Bank Balance

67,642,162

80,039,879

69,452,386

84,719,724

(15,267,338)

48,272,763

NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

The notes referred to above form an integral part of consolidated financials statements
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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For and on behalf of the Board of Directors of
Fiberweb (India) Limited
Pravin V. Sheth
Chairman Emeritus

Rajesh Shukla
CEO & Executive Director

Sonali Rudre
Company Secretary

Mukesh Pandya
CFO

Mumbai, 28 May 2021

Fiberweb India Limited

Consolidated statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31 March 2021
A. Equity Share Capital
Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period
i.e. 1 April 2019

Change in
Equity Share
Capital during
the year 2019-20

Balance at
the end of the
reporting period
i.e. 31 March
2020

Change in
Equity Share
Capital during
the year 2020-21

Balance at
the end of the
reporting period
i.e. 31 March
2021

287,917,100

-

287,917,100

-

287,917,100

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period
i.e. 1 April 2019

Total
Comprehensive
Income for the
year

296,288,755

-

-

-

296,288,755

42,779,080

-

-

-

42,779,080

153,776,547

-

-

-

153,776,547

21,000,000

-

-

-

21,000,000

Equity share capital
B. Other Equity

Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Dividend
Transfer
and dividend
to / (from)
distribution tax
Retained
Earnings on equity shares

Balance at the end
of the reporting
period i.e. 31
March 2020

Reserves and
surplus
Securities premium
reserve
Share reduction
reserve
Revaluation reserve
General reserve
Capital reserve
Foreign Exchange
Fluctuation Reserve
Retained earnings

63,440

-

-

-

63,440

9,241,400

-

-

-

9,241,400

709,667,736

103,008,234

-

(1,184,290)

811,491,680

1,232,816,958

103,008,234

-

(1,184,290)

1,334,640,902

Amount in Indian Currency `
Particulars

Dividend
Transfer
and dividend
to / (from)
distribution tax
Retained
Earnings on equity shares

Balance at the end
of the reporting
period i.e. 31
March 2021

Balance at the
beginning of the
reporting period
i.e. 1 April 2020

Total
Comprehensive
Income for the
year

296,288,755

-

-

-

296,288,755

42,779,080

-

-

-

42,779,080

153,776,547

-

-

-

153,776,547

21,000,000

-

-

-

21,000,000

9,241,400

-

-

-

9,241,400

63,440

-

-

-

63,440

811,491,680

143,717,246

-

(14,396,477)

940,812,449

1,334,640,902

143,717,246

-

(14,396,477)

1,463,961,671

Reserves and
surplus
Securities premium
reserve
Share reduction
reserve
Revaluation reserve
General reserve
Foreign Exchange
Fluctuation Reserve
Capital reserve
Retained earnings
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS FOR THE YEAR ENDED 31st MARCH, 2021
1

Corporate information
Fiberweb (India) Limited (“Company”) is a public limited company incorporated and domiciled in India. Its shares are
listed on Bombay Stock Exchanges. The Registered office of Company is located at Airport Road, Kadaiya, Nani Daman,
Daman (U.T) 396210. These Consolidated Financial Statement (“CFS”) comprise the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiary (collectively referred to as the “Group”).
The Group is primarily engaged in the business of manufacturing of activity in ‘polymer processing’.

2.

Basis of preparation of financial statements
2.1 Statement of Compliance

		

These consolidated financial statements of the Company have been prepared in all material aspects in accordance
with the recognition and measurement principles laid down in Indian Accounting Standards (hereinafter referred
to as the ‘Ind AS’) as notified under section 133 of the Companies Act, 2013 (‘The Act’) read with Companies
(Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015 as amended and other relevant provisions of the Act and accounting
principles generally accepted in India. The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on accrual and
going concern basis

2.2 Basis of measurement
		

These consolidated financial statements are prepared under the historical cost convention unless otherwise
indicated.

2.3 Use of estimate and judgements
		

The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with Generally Accepted Accounting Principles
(GAAP) requires management to make judgments, estimates and assumptions that affect the application of
accounting policies and the reported amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expenses and the disclosure of
contingent liabilities on the date of the financial statements. Actual results could differ from those estimates. Estimates
and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Any revision to accounting estimates is recognized
prospectively in current and future periods. Assumptions and estimation uncertainties that have a significant risk of
resulting in a material adjustment in the year ended 31 March 2021 are as follows:

2.3.1. Property, plant and equipment
		

Determination of the estimated useful life of property, plant and equipment and the assessment as to which
components of the cost may be capitalized. Useful lives of tangible assets are based on the life prescribed by
GAAP’s of respective country Assumptions also need to be made, when the Company assesses, whether an asset
may be capitalized and which components of the cost of the asset may be capitalized.

2.3.2. Allowance for uncollected accounts receivable and advances
		

Trade receivables do not carry any interest and are stated at their normal value as reduced by appropriate allowances
for estimated irrecoverable amounts, Individual trade receivables are written off when management seems them not
collectible. Impairment is made on the expected credit loss model. The impairment provisions for financial assets
are based on assumption about risk of default and expected loss rates. Judgement in making these assumptions
and selecting the inputs to the impairment calculation are based on past history, existing market condition as well as
forward looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.

2.3.3. Allowances for inventories
		

Management reviews the inventory age listing on periodic basis. The review involves comparison of the carrying
value of the aged inventory items with the respective net realizable value. The purpose is to ascertain whether an
allowance is required to be made in the consolidated financial statement for any obsolete and slow-moving items.

2.3.4.Recognition of deferred tax assets and income tax
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Deferred tax asset is recognized for all the deductible temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary difference can be utilized. The management
assumes that taxable profits will be available while recognizing deferred tax asset/liability. Management judgment
is required for the calculation of provision for income taxes and deferred tax assets and liabilities. The Company
reviews at each balance sheet date the carrying amount of deferred tax asset/liability. The factors used in estimates
may differ from actual outcome which could lead to significant adjustment to the amounts reported in the group’s
financial statements.

Fiberweb India Limited

		

Uncertainties exist with respect to the interpretation of complex tax regulations and the amount and timing of
future taxable income. Given the wide range of international business relationships and the long- term nature and
complexity of existing contractual agreements, differences arising between the actual results and the assumptions
made, or future changes to such assumptions, could necessitate future adjustments to tax income and expense
already recorded. The Group establishes provisions, based on reasonable estimates, for possible consequences of
audits by the tax authorities of the respective countries in which it operates. The amount of such provisions is based
on various factors, such as experience of previous tax audits and differing interpretations of tax regulations by the
taxable entity and the responsible tax authority. Such differences of interpretation may arise on a wide variety of
issues depending on the conditions prevailing in the respective country.

		

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be
available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant management judgement is required to determine the
amount of deferred tax assets that can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable
profits, future tax planning strategies and recent business performances and developments.

2.3.5. Recognition and measurement of other provisions
		

The recognition and measurement of other provisions are based on the assessment of the probability of an outflow
of resources and on past experience and circumstances known at the balance sheet date. The actual outflow of
resources at a future date may, therefore, vary from the figures included in other provisions.

2.3.6. Contingencies
		

Management judgment is required for estimating the possible outflow of resources, if any, in respect of contingencies/
claim/litigations against the Group as it is not possible to predict the outcome of pending matters with accuracy.

2.3.7. Determination of functional currency
		

3.

Each entity in the group determines its own functional currency (the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the entity operates) and items included in the financial statements of each entity are measured using that
functional currency. Ind AS 21, “The Effects of Changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” prescribes the factors to be
considered for the purpose of determination of functional currency. Management uses its judgement to determine
the functional currency that most faithfully represents the economic effects of the underlying transactions, events and
conditions

Principles of consolidation
These consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statement of the Company and its wholly owned subsidiary.
A subsidiary is an entity over which the Company has 100% control. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or
has rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its
power over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
•

Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of the
investee)

•

Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee, and

•

The ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

		

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights result in control. To support this presumption and
when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all relevant
facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee, including:

•

The contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee.

•

Rights arising from other contractual arrangements

•

The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights

•

The size of the Group’s holding of voting rights relative to the size and dispersion of the holdings of the other voting
rights holders.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are changes
to one or more of the three elements of control.
Consolidated financial statements are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like transactions and other events
in similar circumstances. If a member of the Group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in the consolidated
financial statements for like transactions and events in similar circumstances, appropriate adjustments are made to that
Group member’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial statements to ensure conformity with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Annual Report 2020-21

113

4.

Consolidation procedure
•

		

•
		

5.

Subsidiary
Subsidiary is an entity controlled by the Group. The Group controls an entity when it is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over
the entity. The financial statements of subsidiary are included in the consolidated financial statements from the date
on which control commences until the date on which control ceases.
Transaction’s eliminated on consolidation
Intra-group balances and transactions and any unrealised income and expenses arising from intra-group transactions,
are eliminated. Unrealised losses are eliminated in the same way as unrealised gains, but only to the extent that
there is no evidence of impairment, if any.

Functional and Presentation Currency
Group’s consolidated financial statements are presented in Indian rupees, which is the functional currency of the Holding
Company. The subsidiary determines the functional currency and items included in the
financial statements of such subsidiary are measured using that functional currency.
•

		

•
		

•

Initial recognition
Foreign currency transactions are recorded by the subsidiary Group’s entities at respective functional currency, by
applying to the foreign currency amount the exchange rate between the functional currency and foreign currency at
the date of the transaction.
Conversion
Foreign currency monetary items are reported at functional currency spot rate of exchange at reporting date. ‘Nonmonetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the exchange
rates at the dates of the initial transactions.
Group companies

		

On consolidation, the assets and liabilities of foreign operations are translated into Indian rupees at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the reporting date and their statements of profit or loss are translated at average exchange
rates.

		

For practical reasons, the Group uses an average rate to translate income and expense items, if the average rate
approximates the exchange rates at the dates of the transactions

6.

Current / non-current classification
The Company classifies any asset as current when(a) It expects to realize the asset, or intends to sell or consume it, in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the asset primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) It expects to realize the asset within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) The asset is cash or a cash equivalent unless the asset is restricted from being exchanged or used to settle a liability
for at least twelve months after the reporting period
Otherwise as non-current.
The Company classifies any liability as current when(a) It expects to settle the liability in its normal operating cycle;
(b) It holds the liability primarily for the purpose of trading;
(c) The liability is due to be settled within twelve months after the reporting period; or
(d) It does not have an unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelvemonths after the reporting
period. Terms of a liability that could, at the option of the counterparty, result in its settlement by the issue of equity
instruments do not affect its classification.
Otherwise as non-current.
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7.

Operating Cycle
An operating cycle is the time between the acquisition of assets for processing and their realization in cash or cash
equivalents.
Based on the nature of products / activities of the Company and the normal time between acquisition of assets and
their realization in cash or cash equivalents, the Company has determined its operating cycle as twelve months for the
purpose of classification of its assets and liabilities as current and non-current.

8.

Significant Accounting Policies
8.1. Property, Plant and Equipment

		

Freehold land is carried at historical cost. All other items of property, plant and equipment are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and impairment loss, if any.

		

Cost includes purchase price, borrowing costs if capitalization criteria are met and directly attributable cost of bringing
the asset to its working condition for the intended use.

		

Such cost includes the cost of replacing part of the plant and equipment and borrowing costs for long-term construction
projects if the recognition criteria are met. When significant parts of plant and equipment are required to be replaced
at intervals, the Company depreciates these components separately based on their specific useful lives. Likewise,
when a major inspection is performed, its cost is recognized in the carrying amount of the plant and equipment as a
replacement if the recognition criteria are satisfied.

		

All other repair and maintenance costs are recognized in the statement of profit or loss as incurred.

		

Capital work-in-progress in respect of assets which are not ready for their intended use are carried at cost, comprising
of direct costs, related incidental expenses and attributable interest, if any.

		

Property, plant and equipment are derecognized either on disposal or when the asset retires from active use. Losses
arising in the case of the retirement of property, plant and equipment and gains or losses arising from disposal of
property, plant and equipment are recognized in the statement of profit and loss in the year of occurrence.

		

Depreciable amount for assets is the cost of an asset, or other amount substituted for cost, less its estimated residual
value. Depreciation on the property, plant and equipment is provided on straight line method, over the useful life of
the assets, as specified in Schedule II to the Companies Act, 2013. Property, plant and equipment which are added
/ disposed of during the year, depreciation is provided on pro-rata basis.

		

The assets’ residual values, useful lives and methods of depreciation are reviewed at each financial year end and
adjusted prospectively, if appropriate.

		

The subsidiary does not possess any property, plant and equipment during the year.

8.2. Financial Instruments
		

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial liability or equity
instrument of another entity.

		Financial Assets
		

Classification:

		

The Company classifies financial assets as subsequently measured at amortized cost, fair value through other
comprehensive income or fair value through profit or loss, on the basis of its business model for managing the
financial assets and the contractual cash flow characteristics of the financial asset.

		

Initial recognition and measurement:

		

All financial assets (not measured subsequently at fair value through profit or loss) are recognized initially at fair
value plus transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset.

		Subsequent measurement:
		

For the purpose of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two broad categories:

		

•

Financial assets at fair value ( FVTPL /FVTOCI)

		

•

Financial assets at amortized cost

		

When assets are measured at fair value, gains and losses are either recognized in the statement of profit and loss
(i.e. fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)), or recognized in other comprehensive income (i.e. fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVTOCI)).
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Financial Assets measured at amortized cost (net of write down for impairment, if any):

		

Financial assets are measured at amortized cost when asset is held within a business model, whose objective is
to hold assets for collecting contractual cash flows and contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates
to cash flows that are solely payments of principal and interest. Such financial assets are subsequently measured
at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method less impairment, if any. The losses arising from
impairment are recognized in the Statement of profit and loss.

		

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Other Comprehensive Income (“FVTOCI”):

		

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value, when asset
is held within a business model, whose objective is to hold assets for both collecting contractual cash flows and
selling financial assets. Fair value movements are recognized in the other comprehensive income.

		

Financial Assets measured at Fair Value through Profit or Loss (“FVTPL”):

		

Financial assets under this category are measured initially as well as at each reporting date at fair value with all
changes recognized in profit or loss.

		

Investment in Subsidiary:

		

Investment in equity instruments of Subsidiaries are measured at cost. In the financial statements, investment in
subsidiaries is carried at cost. The carrying amount is reduced to recognize any impairment in the value of investment.

		

Derecognition of Financial Assets:

		

A financial asset is primarily derecognized when the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired or the
Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset.

		

Impairment of Financial Assets:

		

In accordance with Ind AS 109, the Company applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for measurement and
recognition of impairment loss on the financial assets that are debt instruments and trade receivables.

		Financial Liabilities:
		

Classification:

		

The Company classifies all financial liabilities as subsequently measured at amortized cost or FVTPL.

		

Initial recognition and measurement:

		

All financial liabilities are recognized initially at fair value and, in the case of loans, borrowings and payables, net of
directly attributable transaction costs.

		

Financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including bank overdrafts and derivative
financial instruments.

		Subsequent measurement:
		

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include financial liabilities held for trading and financial liabilities
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value through profit or loss. Interest-bearing loans and borrowings
are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the Effective Interest Rate (EIR) method. Gains and losses
are recognized in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognized as well as through EIR amortization process.
Amortized cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are
an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization is included as finance costs in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

		

Derecognition of Financial Liabilities:

		

A financial liability is derecognized when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires. When
an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different terms, or the terms
of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is treated as the derecognition
of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability. The difference in the respective carrying amounts is
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss.

8.3. Inventories
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Raw materials and packing materials are valued at lower of cost and the net realizable value, cost of which includes
duties and taxes (net of Goods and Service Tax wherever applicable). Cost of imported raw materials and packing
materials lying in warehouse includes the amount of customs duty. Finished products and work- in-progress are
valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. Cost is arrived on moving weighted average basis.
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The cost of Inventories have been computed to include all cost of purchases, cost of conversion, appropriate share
of fixed production overheads based on normal operating capacity and other related cost incurred in bringing the
inventories to their present location and condition.

		

Net realizable value is the estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less the estimated costs of
completion and selling expenses necessary to make the sale.

8.4. Cash and Cash Equivalents
		

Cash and Cash Equivalents comprise of cash on hand and cash at bank including fixed deposit/highly liquid
investments with original maturity period of three months or less that are readily convertible to known amounts of
cash and which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

		

For the purpose of the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and short-term deposits,
as defined above, net of outstanding bank overdrafts as they are considered an integral part of the Company’s cash
management.

8.5. Cash Flow Statement
		

Cash flows are reported using the indirect method, whereby net profit before tax is adjusted for the effects of
transactions of a non-cash nature, any deferrals or accruals of past or future operating cash receipts or payments
and item of income or expenses associated with investing or financing cash flows. The cash flow from operating,
investing and financing activities of the Company is segregated.

8.6. Foreign Currency Transactions
		

In case of foreign operations whose functional currency is different from the parent company’s functional currency,
the assets and liabilities of such foreign operations, including goodwill and fair value adjustments arising upon
acquisition, are translated to the reporting currency at exchange rates at the reporting date.

		

The income and expenses of such foreign operations are translated to the reporting currency at the monthly
average exchange rates prevailing during the year. Resulting foreign currency differences are recognized in other
comprehensive income/ (loss) and presented within equity as part of FCTR. When a foreign operation is disposed
of, in part or in full, the relevant amount in the FCTR is reclassified to the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss
as a part of gain or loss on disposal.

8.7. Revenue Recognition
		

Under Ind AS 115, the group recognized revenue when (or as) a performance obligation was satisfied, i.e. when
‘control’ of the goods underlying the particular performance obligation were transferred to the customer.

		

Sale of Goods

		

The group applied Ind AS 115 using the modified retrospective approach. Revenue is measured based on the
transaction price adjusted for discounts and rebates, which is specified in a contract with customer. Revenues are
net of estimated returns and taxes collected from customers.

		

Revenue from sale of goods is recognized at point in time when control is transferred to the customer and it is
probable that consideration will be collected. Control of goods is transferred upon the shipment of the goods to the
customer or when goods are made available to the customer.

		

The transaction price is documented on the sales invoice and payment is generally due as per agreed credit terms
with customers.

		

The consideration can be fixed or variable. Variable consideration is only recognized when it is highly probable that
a significant reversal will not occur.

		

Sales return is variable consideration that is recognized and recorded based on historical experience, market
conditions and provided for in the year of sale as reduction from revenue. The methodology and assumptions used to
estimate returns are monitored and adjusted regularly in line with trade practices, historical trends, past experience
and projected market conditions.

		Interest income
		

Interest income is recognizes with reference to the Effective Interest Rate method.

		

Income from Export Benefits and Other Incentives

		

Export benefit available under prevalent schemes are accrued as revenue in the year in which the goods are exported
and/ or services are rendered only when there is reasonable assurance that the condition attached to them will be
complied with and the amounts will be received.
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8.8. Employee Benefit
		

In case of Holding Company

		

All employee benefits payable wholly within twelve months rendering service are classified as short term employee
benefits. Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the statement
of profit and loss for the year in which the related service is rendered

		

Defined contribution plans: Company’s contribution to State governed Provident Fund Scheme is recognized during
the year in which the related service is rendered;

		

The Company has not ascertained liability towards payment of gratuity and hence no provision has been made in
accounts. It is accounted for on the basis of payment.

		

Retirement benefits are accounted as and when the same become due for payment.

8.9. Borrowing Costs
		

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of an asset that necessarily takes
a substantial period of time to get ready for its intended use or sale are capitalized as part of the cost of the asset.
All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period in which they occur. Borrowing costs consist of interest and
other costs that an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing cost also includes exchange
differences to the extent regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs. Transaction costs are charged to
statement of profit and loss as financial expenses over the term of borrowing.

8.10. Lease
		

Leases in which a significant portion of the risks and rewards of ownership are retained by the lessor are classified
as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases are charged to the Statement of profit and loss on a
straight line basis over the period of the lease in a manner which is representative of the time pattern in which benefit
derived from the use of the leased asset is diminished.

8.11. Earing Per Share
		

Basic earnings per equity share are computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the period.

		

Diluted earnings per equity share is computed by dividing the net profit attributable to the equity holders of the
Company by the weighted average number of equity shares considered for deriving basic earnings per equity share
and also the weighted average number of equity shares that could have been issued upon conversion of all dilutive
potential equity shares. The dilutive potential equity shares are adjusted for the proceeds receivable had the equity
shares been actually issued at fair value. Dilutive potential equity shares are deemed converted as of the beginning
of the period, unless issued at a later date. Dilutive potential equity shares are determined independently for each
period presented.

8.12. Income Taxes
		

Income tax expense comprises current and deferred income tax. Income tax expense is recognized in net profit in
the statement of profit and loss except to the extent that it relates to items recognized directly in equity, in which case
it is recognized in other comprehensive income. Current income tax for current and prior periods is recognized at the
amount expected to be paid to or recovered from the tax authorities, using the respective Country’s tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted by the balance sheet date.

		

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are recognized for all temporary differences arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the financial statements. Deferred tax assets are reviewed at
each reporting date and are reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit will be
realized.

		

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured using respective Country’s tax rates and tax laws that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are expected to apply to taxable income in
the years in which those temporary differences are expected to be recovered or settled. The effect of changes in tax
rates on deferred income tax assets and liabilities is recognized as income or expense in the period that includes
the enactment or the substantive enactment date. A deferred income tax asset is recognized to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the deductible temporary differences and tax losses
can be utilized. The Group offsets current tax assets and current tax liabilities, where it has a legally enforceable right
to set off the recognized amounts and where it intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realize the asset and settle
the liability simultaneously.
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Deferred income taxes are not provided on the undistributed earnings of subsidiaries where it is expected that the
earnings of the subsidiary will not be distributed in the foreseeable future.

		

Minimum Alternate Tax (‘MAT’) credit is recognized as deferred tax asset only when and to the extent there is
convincing evidence that the Company will pay normal income tax during the period for which the MAT credit can
be carried forward for set-off against the normal tax liability. MAT credit recognized as an asset is reviewed at each
Balance Sheet date and written down to the extent the aforesaid convincing evidence no longer exists.

8.13. Dividends to Shareholders
		

Annual dividend distribution to the shareholders is recognized as a liability for the previous year for which the
dividends are approved by the shareholders. Any interim dividend paid is recognized on approval by Board of
Directors. Dividend payable and corresponding tax on dividend distribution is recognized directly in equity.

8.14. Provisions, Contingent Liabilities, Contingent Assets and Commitments
		General
		

Provisions (legal and constructive) are recognized when the group has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event and it is probable that an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation, in
respect of which a reliable estimate can be made.

		

Provisions are not discounted to its present value and are determined based on best estimate required to settle the
obligation at the balance sheet date. These are reviewed at each balance sheet date and adjusted to reflect the
current best estimates.

		

If there is any expectation that some or all of the provision will be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as a
separate asset but only when the reimbursement is virtually certain. The expense relating to a provision is presented
in the statement of profit and loss net of any virtually certain reimbursement.

		

If the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-tax rate that reflects,
when appropriate, the risk specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the provision due to the
passage of time is recognized as a finance cost.

		

Contingent liability is disclosed in the case of:

		

•

		
		

•
•

		

Contingent liabilities are not recognized but disclosed in the consolidated financial statements. Contingent assets
are neither recognized nor disclosed in the financial statements.

		

Commitments include the amount of purchase order (net of advances) issued to parties for completion of assets and
Non-cancellable operating lease.

		

Provisions, contingent liabilities, contingent assets and commitments are reviewed at each balance sheet date.

9.

a present obligation arising from past events, when it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be required
to settle the obligation;
a present obligation arising from past events, when no reliable estimates is possible;
a possible obligation arising from past events, unless the probability of outflow of resources is remote

Estimation of uncertainties relating to the global health pandemic from COVID-19:
The COVID-19 pandemic is an evolving human tragedy declared a global pandemic by the World Health Organization
with adverse impact on economy and business. Supply Chain disruptions in India as a result of the outbreak started with
restrictions on movement of goods, closure of borders etc., in several states followed by a nationwide lockdown from the
25th of March 2020 announced by the Indian Government, to stem the spread of COVID-19. Due to this, the operations
in group’s manufacturing activities got temporarily disrupted.
In light of these circumstances, the group has considered the possible effects that may result from COVID-19 on the
carrying amounts of financials assets, inventory, receivables, advances, property plant and equipment etc. as well as
liabilities accrued. In developing the assumptions relating to the possible future uncertainties in the economic conditions
because of this pandemic, the group has used internal and external information such as our current contract terms,
financial strength of partners, investment profile, future volume estimates from the business etc. Having reviewed the
underlying data and based on current estimates the group expects the carrying amount of these assets will be recovered
and there is no significant impact on liabilities accrued. The impact of COVID-19 on the group’s financial statements may
differ from that estimated as at the date of approval of these financial statements and the group will continue to closely
monitor any material changes to future economic conditions.

Annual Report 2020-21

119

120

Fiberweb India Limited

Plant and equipment

Melt blown electrical items

4,541,443

122,099,969

-

58,765,608

- 1,763,557,253

421,548,467

6,056,457

-

-

4,680,943
171,962,380

-

7,246,975

2,986,770

-

2,373,816

-

58,765,607 122,099,969

222,652,021

74,126,794

-

24,439,386

139,500

6,270,000

113,300

28,906

-

-

22,039,345

7,291,560

-

Total Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

B] Capital work-in-progress *

1,540,905,232

347,421,673

Melt blown machinery

Total

6,056,457

147,522,994

	Melt blown fire fighting
equipment

Melt blown building

976,975

2,873,470

Other electrical items

2,344,910

Computer

22,039,345

842,172,990

-

79,315,414

195,882,137

31 March 2021

396,357

2,388,722

6,895,203

839,784,268

Office equipment

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

-

-

79,315,414

Building

-

Deletion

Gross block
Additions

114,749,057

81,133,080

Freehold land

A] Property, plant and
equipment

Particulars

1 April 2020

Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

10.1 Current year

10

-

-

575,363

7,226,623

431,655

487,291

5,497

14,132

899,978

294,984

27,810,748

2,393,081

Additions

-

-

755,931,197 51,280,519

18,712,784 11,141,168

1,150,727

9,971,667

1,035,449

658,850

2,831,935

2,191,227

19,130,250

5,063,989

661,943,635

33,240,684

1 April 2020

1,726,090
29,853,952
807,211,716
-

-

17,198,290

1,467,104

1,146,141

2,837,432

2,205,359

20,030,228

5,358,973

689,754,383

35,633,765

-

31 March 2021

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deletion

1,015,111,145

58,765,608

956,345,537

391,694,515

4,330,367

154,764,090

3,213,839

6,100,834

149,338

168,457

2,009,117

1,932,587

152,418,607

43,681,649

195,882,137

31 March 2021

Net block

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation loss
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67,779,796

768,204

Total

109,099,969 13,000,000

-

-

-

1,514,946,639 26,392,936

6,056,457

-

122,099,969

1,540,905,232

* Figures in Capital work in progress deletion column indicates re-capitalisation during the year

Total Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

B] Capital work-in-progress

147,522,994

-

347,421,673

976,975
4,541,443

-

2,873,470

-

-

-

7,569,769

-

208,771

99,400

5,425,000

341,996,673

Melt blown machinery

139,953,225

4,541,443

6,056,457

Melt blown building

Melt blown electrical items

Other electrical items

2,774,070

Computer

2,344,910

22,039,345

-

-

-

21,386

2,344,910

22,452,302

6,895,203

-

338,487

839,784,268

79,315,414

81,133,080

31 March 2020

-

-

11,535,618
1,194,505

-

Deletion
-

Additions

6,556,716

Office equipment

Vehicles

Furniture and fixtures

838,589,763

Building

Plant and equipment

81,133,080

Freehold land

Property, plant and equipment

1 April 2019

	Melt blown fire fighting
equipment

A]

Particulars

Gross block

Property, plant and equipment , capital work-in-progress and investment property

10.2 Previous year

10

-

-

8,216,497

920,582

7,961,324

862,874

152,257

99,399

607,342

1,090,445

549,828

22,901,647

3,769,564

Additions

-

-

709,059,558 47,131,759

10,496,287

230,145

2,010,343

172,575

506,593

2,732,536

1,583,885

18,299,925

4,514,161

639,041,988

29,471,120

1 April 2019

1,150,727
18,712,784
755,931,197
-

-

9,971,667

1,035,449

658,850

2,831,935

2,191,227

19,130,250

5,063,989

661,943,635

33,240,684

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Deletion 31 March 2020

907,074,004

122,099,969

784,974,035

328,708,889

4,905,730

137,551,327

3,505,994

318,125

41,535

153,683

2,909,095

1,831,214

177,840,633

46,074,730

81,133,080

31 March 2020

Net block

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Accumulated depreciation/ amortisation loss

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
11 Investment
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Investment in Equity Instruments (Unquoted, at cost)
- In Others
Goa Bank 107 (31 March 2020 - 107) Ordinary shares of `100 fully paid up
Aggregate amount of unquoted investment

10,700

10,700

10,700

10,700

10,700

10,700

12 Other non current assets
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Unsecured, considered good unless otherwise stated
Advances
- Capital advances

7,015,199

28,131,955

7,015,199

28,131,955

13 Deferred tax asset
Particulars
Deferred tax asset

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

9,341,838
9,341,838

3,483,781
3,483,781

14 Inventories
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Valued at lower of cost or net realisable value
Raw materials

118,860,885

98,010,186

Finished goods

85,319,324

180,011,108

Stores and spares

20,608,975

20,588,189

Packing materials

2,032,862

623,129

226,822,046

299,232,612

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

15 Trade receivables
Particulars
Trade receivables (Unsecured, considered good)
Outstanding for a period exceeding six months from the date they were due
for payment
Other trade receivable
Less: Loss allowance
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-

-

403,843,350

366,681,526

-

-

403,843,350

366,681,526

Fiberweb India Limited

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
16 Cash and cash equivalents 		
Particulars
Cash on hand

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

1,810,224

4,679,845

- In current accounts

19,288,811

72,714,228

- In EEFC (Exchange Earner's Foreign Currency) accounts

45,736,298

4,930,929

2,617,053

2,394,722

69,452,386

84,719,724

Balances with banks

Balances held as margin money or security against borrowings, guarantees
and other commitments

Balances with banks include margin monies amounting to ` 26,17,053/- (31 March, 2020: ` 23,94,722/-) which have
an original maturity of more than 12 months and also, includes Unclaimed Dividend of ` 8,01,200/- (31 March 2020: `
3,06,043/-)
17 Current tax assets
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

Taxes related to:
- Current year

46,390,290

-

- Previous year

20,096,791

20,163,529

66,487,081

20,163,529

18 Other current assets
Particulars
Other than capital advances
Prepaid expenses
Other Deposit
Balance with government authorities
Custom duty advance deposit
Deposit - Sales tax authority
Tax collected at source
Goods & service tax paid

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

59,204,681
930,769
10,496,686

41,359,264
779,311
9,787,187

61,493
30,000
82,838
19,836,001
90,642,469

232,063
30,000
52,187,825

19 Equity share capital
Particulars

As at
31 March, 2021

As at
31 March, 2020

(a) Authorised
	5,00,00,000 (31 March 2020: 5,00,00,000) equity shares of `10/- each

500,000,000

500,000,000

287,917,100

287,917,100

287,917,100

287,917,100

(b) Issued, Subscribed & Paid up
	28,791,710 (31 March 2020: 28,791,710) equity shares of `10/- each

Annual Report 2020-21

123

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
(i)

Reconciliation of the number of Equity shares
Equity shares
Opening number/amount of equity shares
Add/(Less):
Issued / forfeited during the year
Closing number/amount of equity shares

As at 31 March 2021
Nos.
`
28,791,710
287,917,100

As at 31 March 2020
Nos.
`
28,791,710
287,917,100

28,791,710

28,791,710

287,917,100

287,917,100

(ii) Rights, preferences and restrictions attached to shares
The Company has a single class of equity shares having at par value of `10/- per share. Each holder of equity share is
eligible to one vote per share held. In the event of liquidation of the Company, the equity shareholders are eligible to
receive the remaining assets of the Company in proportion to the number of equity shares held by each shareholder, after
settlement of all preferential obligations.
(iii) The Company is not a subsidiary of any other company
(iv) Details of held by shareholders holding more than 5% of the aggregate shares in the Company
Class of shares / Name of shareholder

As at 31 March 2021

As at 31 March 2020

Nos.

Nos.

% held

% held

Equity shares with voting rights
Pravin V Sheth

3,554,873

12.35

3,554,873

12.35

Bhavesh P Sheth

6,249,596

21.71

6,249,596

21.71

Gayatri Pipes and Fittings Pvt Ltd

3,521,463

12.23

3,500,000

12.16

(v) Other details of equity shares for a period of five years immediately preceding 31 March 2021
a

11,00,000 equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2018

b

1,43,95,855 bonus equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2018

c

7,00,000 equity shares were issued during the year ended 31 March 2017

d

For the year ended 31 March 2016, 43,97,238 number of shares were reduced and further allotment of 60,00,000
shares was made as per BIFR order dated 20 October 2015.

20 Other equity		
Particulars
Securities/Share Premium account
Share Reduction Reserve
Revaluation Reserve
General Reserve
Capital Reserve
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FZE - Foreign Exchange Revalustion Reserve
Surplus in Statement of Profit and Loss
Opening balance
Less: Dividend and dividend distribution tax
Add: Profit for the year
Closing balance
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As at
31 March 2021
296,288,755
42,779,080
153,776,547
21,000,000
63,440
9,241,400

As at
31 March 2020
296,288,755
42,779,080
153,776,547
21,000,000
63,440
9,241,400

811,491,680
(14,396,477)
143,717,246

709,667,736
(1,184,290)
103,008,234

940,812,449
1,463,961,671

811,491,680
1,334,640,902

Fiberweb India Limited

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
21 Trade payables
Particulars
Total outstanding due to:
-

Micro, Small and Medium Enterprise
Others

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

68,337,528
68,337,528

42,749,579
42,749,579

As at
31 March 2021
1,007,354

As at
31 March 2020
513,651

1,007,354

61,148,959
61,662,610

22 Other current financial liabilities
Particulars
Dividend
Short term loan (secured)
From banks
Security/Hypothecation:

The loan is primarily secured by hypothecation of raw-materials, finished goods, outstanding money, book debts
and reveivables alongwith a collateral security of the Plant & Machinery and Factory Land & Buildings bearing
Survey No.: Plot No. 92/93B Village limit Kadiya, Nani Daman - 396210 admeasuring total area : 17627.75 sq. mtr.
Rate of Interest:
Working capital loan (Export Packing Credit) @ 9.10% p.a. and Working capital loan (Export Packing Credit) @
LIBOR(6M) + 2%.
The above loan is repayable on demand.
23 Provisions
Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

Provision for employee benefits

-

3,156,326

Provision for expenses

-

10,554,297

-

13,710,623

24 Other current liabilities
Particulars
Advance from customers
Statutory dues **

Particulars

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

101,727

101,727

2,950,833

903,115

3,052,560

1,004,842

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

** Statutory dues
Tax deducted at source
Professional tax
Goods & service tax
Tax collected at source
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513,818

240,832

1,775

2,150

2,410,934

660,133

24,306

-
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Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
25 Current tax liabilities
Particulars
Provision for tax

As at
31 March 2021

As at
31 March 2020

64,450,000

20,000,000

64,450,000

20,000,000

26 Revenue from operations
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Sale of:
-

Finished goods

Other operating revenues

1,073,971,801

980,142,421

564,149

1,663,800

1,074,535,950

981,806,221

27 Other income
Particulars
Interest income
from banks
from others
Export schemes
Gain on foreign exchange fluctuation
Refund from government authorities

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

1,993,740
389,290
6,123,515
3,275,451
11,781,996

377,664
375,940
7,054,848
3,635,139
1,141,669
12,585,260

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

28 Cost of materials consumed
Particulars
Opening stock
Add: Purchases

98,010,186
610,027,687
708,037,873
(118,860,885)
589,176,988

Less: Closing stock

80,826,199
783,304,596
864,130,795
(98,010,186)
766,120,609

29 Changes in inventories of finished goods:
Particulars
Inventories at the end of the year:
Finished goods
Inventories at the beginning of the year:
Finished goods

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

85,319,324

180,011,108

180,011,108
94,691,784

62,846,245
(117,164,863)

30 Employee benefits expense
Particulars
Salaries and wages

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

37,486,479

41,939,225

2,316,496

2,685,664

875,184

5,561,103

40,678,159

50,185,992

Employee benefit plans
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-

Provident and other funds

-

Gratuity and other benefit plans

Fiberweb India Limited

Amount in Indian Currency ‘`’
Employee benefits :
As required by Ind AS 19 ‘ Employee Benefits’ the disclosures are as under:
Defined Contribution Plan
The Company offers its employees defined contribution plans in the form of provident fund (PF) and Employees’
pension scheme (EPS) for all employees, with the government authorities. Contributions are made to the Government
administered funds. While both the employees and the Company pay predetermined contributions into the Provident
Fund, contributions into the Pension fund is made only by the Company. The Company recognised ` 23,16,496/- (31
March, 2020 : ` 26,85,664,/-) The contributions are normally based on a certain proportion of the employee’s salary and
the contribution payable to these plans by the Company are at rates specified in the rules of the schemes.
31 Finance cost:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Interest expenses

-

10,857,425

Other finance cost

-

3,254,413

-

14,111,838

32 Other expenses:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Manufacturing expense

63,502,223

15,528,869

Power and fuel

22,372,466

20,808,724

620,007

1,613,964

Bank charges
Communication

233,045

357,970

Donations and contributions

4,126,000

3,412,200

Insurance

1,216,879

433,417

Legal and professional

2,774,332

8,198,656

Postage and printing expenses

1,066,665

1,461,724

254,248

1,372,649

Rent

1,260,000

1,562,000

Security charges

1,284,000

1,564,645

50,000

135,000

Rates and taxes

Directors sitting fees
Travelling expenses
Branch expenses (US)
Other expenses

675,982

2,352,475

18,139,480

17,464,360

5,592,076

2,918,634

Repairs and maintenance
-

for buildings

-

for machinery

-

for others

Selling & distribution expenses

57,985

-

390,731

127,069

1,413,494

531,029

857,273

34,638,308

125,886,885

114,481,693

33 Remuneration to auditors:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Audit fees

200,000

200,000

Tax Audit fees

200,000

200,000

Certification & Other matters

115,000

-

Out of pocket expenses

100,000

100,000

615,000

500,000
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34 Contribution towards Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR):
As per section 135 of the Act, a CSR committee has been formed by the Company. The fund are utilized during the
year on the activities which are specified in schedule VII of the Act. The utilization is done by way of direct and indirect
contribution towards various activities.
Gross amount required to be spent by the Company during the year is ` 28.48 Lakh (31 March, 2020: ` 31.11 Lakh)
The particulars of CSR activities and amount spent are as follows:
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Education

2,575,000

2,800,000

Health / Medical Relief

1,500,000

600,000

Others

51,000

12,200

4,126,000

3,412,200

31 March 2021
143,717,246
28,791,710

31 March 2020
103,008,234
28,791,710

4.99

3.58

Total
35 Earnings Per Share (‘EPS’)		
The numerator and denominator used to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share:
Particulars
Profit attributable to equity holders for Basic and diluted EPS
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding for Basic and diluted
EPS
Basic and diluted earning per share

36 Details of dues to Micro And Small Enterprises as defined under the Micro, Small and Medium enterprises
development act, 2006
Particulars
Total outstanding dues of micro enterprises and small enterprises(as
per the intimation received from vendors):
a) Principal and interest amount remaining unpaid
b) Interest paid by the Company in terms of Section 16 of the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006, along with the amount
of the payment made to the supplier beyond the appointed day
c) Interest due and payable for the period of delay in making payment
(which have been paid but beyond the appointed day during the period)
but without adding interest specified under the Micro, Small and Medium
Enterprises Act, 2006
d) Interest accrued and remaining unpaid
e) Interest remaining due and payable even in the succeeding years, until
such date when the interest dues as above are actually paid to the small
enterprises

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
-

-

-

-

-

-

Total outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprises
This information has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information
available with the Company.

-

37 Working for Capital Work in progress:
‘Expenses capitalized during the year represent direct attributable expenditure for setting up of plants prior to the date of
commencement of commercial production. The same were capitalized on completion of projects and commencement of
commercial operations. The details of expenses capitalized are:
Particulars
Opening Balance

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

122,099,969

109,099,969

32,722,977

8,000,000

Add: Incurred during the year towards
Power & labour expenses
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Particulars
Others

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

26,042,630

Less: Re-capitalized to tangible assets
Closing Balance

5,000,000

(122,099,969)

-

58,765,607

122,099,969

38 Commitments and Contingencies:
Contingent Liability
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Disputed by the Company:
Anti-dumping duty

15,277,776

15,277,776

Custom duty

29,484,852

29,484,852

1,744,964

1,744,964

Central Excise duty

Central Excise Department has ordered the Company to pay Anti-dumping duty of ` 1,37,77,776/- vide an order dated 3
February, 2017 on imports of Polypropylene for the period beginning from August 2009 to March 2015, along with interest
and penalty at the appropriate rate. The department has also imposed a penalty of ` 15,00,000/- on Mr. G. R. Ravindran,
the then Executive Director of the Company.
The Company presented the BIFR order in rehabilitation scheme specifically directing the Central Excise & Custom
Department for the waiver of penalty and interest, since the Company is 100% Export Oriented Unit, at Daman. The
Company has made a deposit for appeal @ 7.5% on the disputed duty amounting to ` 10,33,333/- and 7.5% on penalty
imposed amounting to ` 1,12,500/. The Company has filed an appeal on 12 May, 2017 in the Customs, Excise and
Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Ahmedabad against the said order. The said matter is pending before the Appellate
Tribunal.
Customs and Central Excise Department, Daman has raised a demand on 26 September 2019 towards Custom duty
of ` 2,94,84,852/- alongwith interest and penalty as applicable. Also a demand of Central Excise duty for ` 17,44,964/alongwith interest and penalty as applicable. The Company has made a deposit for appeal @ 7.5% on the disputed
duty amounting to ` 22,11,344/- and 7.5% on disputed excise duty amounting to ` 1,30,873/-. The Company has filed
an appeal on 9 January, 2020 in the Customs, Excise and Service Tax Appellate Tribunal, Ahmedabad against the said
order. The said matter is pending before the Appellate Tribunal.
The Company does not expect the outcome of the matters stated above to have any material adverse impact on the
Company’s financial condition, results of operations or cash flows.
Capital Commitment
Particulars
Advance for Land acquisition and development

31 March 2021

31 March 2020
-

28,131,955

The Company had committed to spend as at 31 March 2021 approximately ` Nil (31 March 2020 : ` 3,91,14,795/-)
under agreements to purchase/ construct property and equipment. These amounts are net of capital advances paid in
respect of these purchases.
39 Disclosure for operating leases under Ind AS 116 -“ Leases”:
Company has taken office premise on lease for 11 months, which is generally cancellable/renewable on mutually
agreeable terms. There is no restrictions imposed by these lease arrangement and there are no sub lease. There are no
contingent rents.
40 Foreign currency exposures on assets and liabilities
Company is exposed to currency risk to the extent that there is a mismatch between the currencies in which sales,
purchases and borrowings are denominated and the functional currency of Company. The currencies in which these
transactions are primarily denominated is US dollars
The year-end foreign currency exposures that have not been mitigated by a derivative instrument or otherwise are as
below:
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The following table analyses foreign currency risk as:
31 March 2021

Particulars

31 March 2020

Amount in "US Dollars"

Bank Balance
Trade Receivables

19,766

19,766

663,857

244,450

The audited statement of accounts of USA Branch have not been received till the date of signing the Audit Report of the
Company. All original documents are lying with US Office. The value of total transactions is ` 1,81,39,480/- (31st March,
2020: ` 1,74,64,360/-) i.e. US$ 2,47,200 (31st March, 2020: US$ 247,200) as against total turnover of ` 1,07,45,35,950/(31st March, 2020: ` 98,18,06,221/-), i.e. 1.69% (31st March, 2020: 1.78%) which is insignificant, from the materiality
point of view.
41 Related party disclosure as required by IND AS 24 are given below :
A) Relationships :
Category I - Subsidiary
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ
Category II - Directors, Key Managerial Personnel and their relatives
Pravin V Sheth
Bhavesh Sheth
Soniya P Sheth
P S Krishnan (uptil 07.11.2019)
Mukesh Pandya (w.e.f. 08.11.2019)
Dipika Shinde (uptill 27.02.2021)
Sonal Sharma (Uptill 31.05.2019)
Sonali Rudre (w.e.f. 28.05.2021)
Dhwani Sheth

Chairman Emeritus
Non Executive Director
Non Executive Director
Chief Financials Officer
Chief Financials Officer
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Company Secretary
Daughter of Director

Category III - Enterprise over which persons covered under Category II above are able to exercise significant
control:
Kunststoffe Industries Limited
Sun Capital & Consultancy Private Limited
Sun Properties Private Limited
Star Developers Private Limited
B) The following transaction were carried out with related parties :
Particulars
Compensation to Key Managerial Person
Short Term Employee Benefits
P S Krishnan
Mukesh Pandya
Dipika Shinde

31 March 2020

1,482,000
319,657

1,017,600
625,000
-

Gratuity
Pravin Sheth

-

4,113,461

Leave Encashment
Pravin Sheth

-

5,425,000

3,000,000
-

1,800,000
476,667

Professional fees paid
Pravin V Sheth
P S Krishnan
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Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Loan received
Pravin Sheth

-

2,000,000

Loan repaid
Pravin Sheth

-

2,000,000

1,200,000

96,000
1,200,000

Compensation paid
Pravin Sheth
Sun Capital & Consultancy Private Limited
Sun Properties Private Limited
Star Developers Private Limited

24,000
7,000
7,000
-

28,000
28,000
24,000

Sale of MEIS License to
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

93,073

1,682,344

Rent paid
Pravin Sheth
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

Director sitting fees are paid during the year which are not considered in the related party transactions.
C) Amount outstanding :
Particulars

31 March 2021

31 March 2020

Investment in wholly owned Subsidiary
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ

2,000,000

2,000,000

Advances
Sheth Nonwoven Trading FTZ

7,276,749

7,276,749

Payable
Kunststoffe Industries Limited

236,843

2,956,442

42 Debtors and Creditors balances are subject to confirmations from the parties.
43 In the opinion of the Board of Directors the Current Assets, Loans & Advances except those shown as doubtful have
a value on realization in the ordinary course of business at least equal to the amount at which items are stated in the
Balance Sheet.
44 Figures of the current year and previous year have been re-grouped / rearranged /reclassified wherever necessary.
As per our report of even date
For Akshay Kirtikumar & Associates
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No: 138182W
Akshay K. Shah
Proprietor
Membership No.: 155729

Mumbai, 28 May 2021
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CFO
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CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
Registered office: Airport Road, Kadaiya, Nani Daman, Daman (U.T) 396210
Website: www.fiberwebindia.com Email: fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com Tel: 0260-2221458 Fax: 0260-2220758

ATTENDANCE SLIP
Only Shareholders or the Proxies will be allowed to attend the meeting

D. P. ID*
Client ID*

Folio No.
No. of Shares held

I/We hereby record my/our presence at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company being held on Tuesday, 28th September, 2021 at
9.00 a.m. at the Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach, Nani Daman, (U.T.) - 396 210.

Name of the Shareholder(s) 1. ………………………….…….…. 2. ……………………….…………....…. 3. …………………………….
Signature of Shareholder(s) 1. ………………………….…….…. 2. …………………….……………....…. 3. …………………………….
Signature of Proxyholder ………………………………………………………..
*Applicable for Investors holding shares in electronic form.
Only Member / Proxyholder can attend the meeting.
Note: Member/ Proxy attending the Meeting must fill-in this attendance slip and hand it over at the entrance of the venue of the
Meeting
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Website: www.fiberwebindia.com Email: fiberweb@fiberwebindia.com Tel: 0260-2221458 Fax: 0260-2220758

FORM NO. MGT-11

PROXY FORM

(Pursuant to Section 105(6) of the Companies Act, 2013 and Rule 19(3) of the Companies
(Management and Administration) Rules, 2014)

CIN: L25209DD1985PLC004694
Name of the Company: FIBERWEB (INDIA) LTD.
Registered office: Airport Road, Kadaiya, Nani Daman, Daman (U.T) 396210
Name of the Member(s)
Registered Address
E-mail ID
Folio No/Client Id
DP/ ID
I/We, being the member(s) of …………… Shares of the above named Company, hereby appoint:
(1) Name:

........................................................

Address:

.............................................................................................

E-mail Id:

........................................................

Signature:

.................................................................. or failing him;

(2) Name:

........................................................

Address:

.............................................................................................

E-mail Id:

........................................................

Signature:

.................................................................. or failing him;

(3) Name:

........................................................

Address:

.............................................................................................

E-mail Id:

........................................................

Signature:

.............................................................................................

PROXY FORM

Please provide E-mail ID for quick response,
information and communication.

as my/our proxy to attend and vote (on a poll) for me/us and on my/ our behalf at the 36th Annual General Meeting of the Company to be held on Tuesday, 28th
September 2021 at 9.00 a.m. at the Hotel Ocean Inn, Plot No. 20, Devka Beach, Nani Daman (U.T.) - 396 210 and at any adjournment thereof in respect of
such resolutions as are indicated below:

Optional*
Resolution No. Resolution
Ordinary Business
1
To receive, consider and adopt :
(a) The Audited Standalone Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2021 together with the Reports of the Board of Directors and Auditors thereon.
(b) The Audited Consolidated Financial Statements of the Company for the financial year ended 31st
March, 2021 and the Report of Auditors thereon.
2
To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment
3
To appoint a Director in place of Ms. Rajesh U. Shukla (DIN: 08690226), who retires by rotation and
being eligible offers himself for re-appointment.
Special Business
4
To appoint Mr. Sorabh Gupta (DIN: 05124195) as a Non-Executive, Independent Director (Ordinary
Resolution)
5
To approve the continuation of Mr. Pravin V. Sheth (DIN: 00138797)as a Non-Executive Non
Independent Director of the Company, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities
and Exchange Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.
(Special Resolution)
6
To approve the continuation of Mr. Gopalji M. Rana (DIN: 01982997) as a Non-Executive Independent
Director of the Company, pursuant to provisions of Regulation 17(1A) of the Securities and Exchange
Board of India (Listing Obligations and Disclosure Requirements) Regulations, 2015.(Special
Resolution)

Signed this……………… day of ………………2021.
Signature of shareholder (s)……………………..
Signature of Proxy holders (s)…………………..
Notes:
(1)

For

Against

Abstain

Affix1
Rupee
Revenue
Stamp

This form of proxy in order to be effective should be duly completed and deposited at the Registered Office of the Company, not less than 48 hours before
the commencement of the meeting.
(2) For the Resolution, Statement and Notes, please refer to the Notice of the 36th Annual General Meeting.
*(3) It is optional to put ‘X’ in the appropriate column against the Resolutions indicated in the Box. If you leave the ‘For’ or ‘against’ column blank against any
or all Resolutions, your Proxy will be entitled to vote in the manner as he/she thinks appropriate.
(4) Please complete all details including details of member(s) in above box before submission.
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